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Ref.: MPL/HYD/SE/33rd AR/2023-24 Date: 04-09-2023 

The Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) The National Stock Exchange (NSE) of India 

Corporate Relationship Dept., Limited, 

1st Floor, New Trading Ring Sth Floor, Exchange Plaza, 

Rotunda Building, PJ Towers Bandra (East), 

Dalal Street, Fort, Mumbai -400 001 Mumbai- 400 051. 
BSE Script code: 531497 NSE Script code: MADHUCON 

Dear Sirs, 

Sub.: Submission of 33rd Annual Report FY 2022-23 under Regulation 30 and 34 (1) of 

the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. 

Pursuant to the requirements of Regulation 30 & 34 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015, 

we wish to inform you that the 33rd Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Members of the 
Company will be held on Friday, 29° September, 2023 at 3.00 P.M. ("IST") at the 
Registered Office of the Company, Khammam. 

Pursuant to the requirements of Regulation 34(1) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, we 

submit herewith 33rd Annual Report for the Financial Year 2022-23 for your reference. 
The same is also available on the Company's website. 

As intimated earlier to your good offices, pursuant to Regulation 42 of the SEBI LODR 
Regulations, the Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will 

remain closed from Saturday, 23 September, 2023 to Friday, 29" September, 2023 
(both days inclusive) for the purpose of the 33rd AGM. 

Kindly take them on record. 

Thanking you, 

For Madhucon Projects Limited 

(D. Malla Reddy) 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

Enclosed: 33rd Annual Report FY 2022-23 
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To 
The Members, 
Madhucon Projects Limited 

NOTICE is hereby given that the 38rd Annual General 
Meeting of the Members of Madhucon Projects Limited will 
be held on Friday, 29th September, 2023 at 03:00 P.M 
(IST) at the Registered Office of the Company situated at 1- 
7-70, Madhu Complex, Jublipura, Khammam-507003 ta 
transactihe following business. 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

1. To receive, consider and adopt: 

a) The Audited Standalone Financial Statements of 
the Company in IND AS format for the financial year 
ended 31st March, 2023 together with the Reports 
ofthe Board of Birectors and Auditors’ thereon; and 

b) The Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of 
the Company in IND AS format for the financial year 
andad 3181 March, 2023 logathar with (he report of 
the Auditors’ thereon. 

To appoint a director in place of Mr. Sesthaiah Nama 
(DIN: 00784487), wha rafires by rotation and being 
eligible offers himself for re-appointment. 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

3. Ratification of the appointment of Mr. K. Venkateswarly 
(DIN 09713108) as a "Direclor Cum CFO" of the 
Company: 

To consider and, if thought fil, to pass, with ar without 
‘modifications, the following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 
Sections 149, 152 and all other applicable provisions of 
the Companies Acl, 2013, and Companies (Appointment 
and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and 
Regulation 17 of the SEBI (Listing Obligation And 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and such 
other approvals as may be required If any; consent of tha 
Beard of Directors be and Is hereby accorded for 
appointment of Mr. K. Venkaleswarlu (DIN 09713108) as 
an additional director in the position of "Director cum 
CFO" ofthe Campany w.e f 11th November, 2022 and in 
respect of whom Ihe Company has received a notice in 
writing from a member under section 160 of the 
Companies Act,2013 and he will be liable retire by 
rolation.” 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director of the 
Company be and is hereby authorized to take all such 
necessary action to give effect to this resolution and to 
file requisite Form DIR-12 to Regisirar of Companies, 
Hyderabad and to do all such necessary acts, deeds and 
compliances as may ba required.” 

Ratification of the appointment of Mr. Sambasiva Rao 
Jasty (DiMN: D9526475) as a 'Director-Finance & 
Accounts” of the Company: 

[DELETE =) 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without 
modifications, the following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 
Sections 149, 152 and all other applicable pravistons af 
ihe Companies Act, 2013, and Companies (Appointment 
and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and 
Regulation 17 of the SEB (Listing Obligation And 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and 
recommendation of the nomination and remuneration 
eommittee and such other approvals as may be required 
if any, cansent of the Board of Directors be and is hereby 
accorded for appointment of Mr. Sambasiva Rao Jasty 
(DIN: 02526475) asadditional direslor in he position of 
"Director-Finance &Accounts” of the Company wed 
28th June; 2023 and in respect of whom the Company 
has received a notice in writing from a member under 
section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 and he will be 
lable retire by ration” 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director of he 
Company be and is hereby authorized to take all such 
necessary action to give effect to this resolution and to 
file requisite Form DIR-12 lo MCA/Reaisirar of 
Companies, Hyderabad and cormpliances as may be 
required.” 

Ratifization of the appointment of Mrs. Geeta Battula 
(DIN 10205129) as an “Independent Director’ of the 
Company. 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without 
modifications, the following resolulion as a Special 
Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 
Sections 148, 150, 152, 161, Schedule IV and other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the 
Act") read with the Rules framed thereunder, and 
applicable provigions of the SEB! (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, ("the 
LODR Regulations™) [including any statutory 
modification(s) of re-enactmant(s) thereof, for the lime 
being in foros]. and Articles of Association of the 
Company, approval and recommendation of the 
Nomination and Remuneration Commitise and that of 
the Board, Mrs, Geeta Batiula (DIND 10205129), who 
was appointed as an Additional Director in the capacity of 
an Indepandent Director with effect from June 28, 2023, 
who meets the gritaria for Independence under Section 
148(6) of tha Act and [he Rules made therdunder and In 
respect of whom the Company has received a notics In 
writing from & member under section 160 af the 
Companies Act, 2013, be and is hereby appointed as an 
Independent Director of the Company for a period of 5 
(Five) years tll June 27, 2028 and that she shall nol be 
lable to retire by rotation, 

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director of the 
Company be and Is hereby authorized lo lake all such 
necessary action (lo give effect to this resolution and lo 
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file requisite Form DIR-12 to MCA/Registrar of 
Companies, Hyderabad and compliances as may ba 
required.” 

To appainl and approve (he remuneration af the Gost 
Auditor for the financial year ending on 31st March, 2024, 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without 
madifications, the following reselution as an Ordinary 
Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to [he provisions of 
Section 148 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules. 2014 (Including any statutory 
modification(s) or enactmentis) thereof, for the time 
being In force), the remureration of Rs. 150,000.00 
(Rupees One Lakh fifty Thousand only) inclusive of all 
lanes payable, Mis AS RAQ & CO. Cosl Accountants 
(Firm Registration Ni, 000328), the Cost Auditors of the 
Campany to conduct audit of cost records made and 
maintained by the Company far the financial year ending 
31st Merch, 2024, as recommended by Audit Committee 
and approved by Board of Direclors be and is hereby 
ratified. ) 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of 
the Company be and |s hereby authorized to do all acts 
and lake all such steps as may be necessary, proper or 
expedient to give effect lo this resolution.” 

Approval for Non-Provision of the Interest on Warking 
Capital Loans & Unsecured Loans of the Company. 

To consider and, if thought fil, to pass, with or without 
modifications, the following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution: 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT (he total interest 
provisions on Rs. 525.26 Cr. and Rs. 8.23 Cr. Working 
Capital Loans and Term Loan respectively aggregating 
fo Rg. 533.49 Cr. for the full financial year 2022-23 be not 
applied and provided for in the books of accounts of the 
Company on the basis that the Campany has submitted 
the One Time Settlement proposal lo all Working Capital 
Banks and Financial Institutions, Company Is working for 
the approval, with required Improvements, 
modifications, if any, as may be mulually agreed upon by 
and between the Company and Working Capital Banks / 
Financial Institutions.” 

By Order of the board 
for Madhucon Projects Limited 

D0. Malla Reddy 

Company Secretary 

tribe LL pei] 

NOTES : 

1. 

on
 

The Explanatory Stalement pursuant to Section 102(1) 
of the Companies Act. 2013 relating lo Special Business 
lo be transacted al the Annual General Mesling Is 
annexed harato. 

The Gompany has provided the facility 10 Members to 
exercise heir right to vole by electronic means both 
through remote e-voting and e-voting during the AGM. 
The process of remote e-voling wilh necessary 
instructions is given in the subsequen paragraphs: 

The Company has appointed Mrs. Vepdra Madhumita, 
Fraclicing Company Secratary (Mambership No. ACS 
52865) (FCS No. 19628), lo act as the Scrutinizer, to 
scrutinize the e-voting process in a fair and transparent 
manner and they have communicatad thar willingness 
to be appointed and will be available for the said 

purpose. 

A member antilled to attend dnd vote al the Annual 
General Moeting ("Meeting") is entilled to appoint a 
proxy to attend and vote on a pall instead of him/her-self 
and the proxy nesd nol be a member of the Company. 
Froxles, in order to be efiective, must be received hy the 
Company nat less than 48 hours before the meeling. 
Proxy form is attached herein, A person can act as proxy 
ort behalf of the members not exceeding 50 (Fifty) and 
holding in the aggregate not more than 10% (Ten 
percent) of the total share capital of the Company 
carrying voting rights. A member holding more than 10% 
{ten percent} of total share capital of the Company 
cartying voting righls may appoint a single person as 
prowy and such person shall pol acl as a proxy for any 
other person or shareholder as per rule 18 of lhe 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules. 
2014. 

Inline with the MCA Circulars, the nolice of the 33rd AGM 
along with the Annual Report 2022-23 are being sent 
only by aléctranic mada 1a lhosa Members whose e-mail 
addresses are registered with the Company/ 
Depositories. Members may please note thal this:Nolioe 
and Annual Report 2022-23 will be available an lhe 
Company's website at hitps:// 
www. madhucap.com/investors! annual-reporis/, 
websites of the Stock Exchanges |e. BSE Limited and 
NSE Limited at www, bselpndig.com and 
www.nseindia.com respectively, and on the website of 
KFintech at hitps;/fevoting kfintech.com. 

Members who have not reqlstered their e-mall address 
are requested to register the same jn respect of shares 
hetd in electronic form wilh he Depository through their 
Depository Participant(s)and in respect of shares held in 
physical farm by writing to the Company's Registrar and 
Share Transfer Agent, WFin Technologies Private 
Limited, (Unit Madhucon Projects Limited) Selenium 

Tower B, Plot No. 31 & 32. Gachibowl Financial District, 
Nanakramguda, Hyderabad-500 032. 
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Brief profile of the Directors proposed ta be-appointed / 
re-appointed is given as under as per the provisions of 
Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulations. 

Members holding sharas In physical mode ara also 
requested to register | update their e<mail addrass with 
the Company | KFintech for receiving all 
communications from the Company electronically, 

Members who are holding shares In physical form are 
advized to submit particulars of thelr bank account, viz. 
name and address of lhe branch of the bank, MICR code 
of the branch, type of account and account number to 
Reglstrar and Share Transfer Agent, KFin Technologies 
Private Limited {Unit Madhucon Projects Limited), 
Selenium Tower B, Plat Ma, 31 & 32, Financial District, 
Nanakramauda, Gachibowll, Hyderabad - 500 032. 

. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of 
the Company will remain closed from Saturday, 23rd 
September, 2023 to Friday 25th September, 2023 (both 
days inclusive), 

11 

12. 

[DELETE =) 

Members are requested fo note that, dividends FY. 
2015-18 ifnot en-cashed for a pariod of 7 years front the 
date af lransfar lo Unpaid Dividend Account of tha 
Company, are liable to be transfer lo the Investor 

Education and Protaction Fund ("IEPF”) on due data in 
Fabruary, 2024, 

Members sesking any Information wilh regard lo the 
accounts or any matter to be placed at the AGM are 
requested to write to the Company on or before Friday, 
22nd. September; 2023 threugh emall to 
cs@madhucon,com. The same will be replied by the 
Company suitably. 

Mame of Diractar Mr. K. Venkataswarlu Mr. J.Samba Siva Rao Mrs, Goeta Ballula 

Date of Birth 28.04-7959 10-07-1574 25-01-1970 

Nationality Indian Indian. Indian 

Dale of appointment 11-11-2022 28-06-2024 28-08-2023 

Qualifications Chartered Accountant ICWA BA EBL 

Expertise in Functional Accounts & Financial Finance & Accounts An Advocate, Legal 

Ares Business Profess|onal Professional Professional 

Sharas hald in the 

Company MIL NIL MIL 

Lisl of Directorships 

held in other Companies NIL MIL NIL 

Chalrman/Membear 

Committee of Boards of 

other Companies in NIL MIL MIL 

which he/she is a 

Hirector 
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ANNEXURETO NOTICE: 

Explanatory Statement Pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 102{1) of the Companies Act, 2013: 

The following explanatory staiement sels out all material 
facts relating lo the special business mentioned under Item 
Nos. 31a 7 of the accompanying Notice, 

item No. 3: Ratification of the appointment af Mr K 
Venkateswarlu (DIN 09713108) asa "Director Cum CFO" of 
the Company: 

Pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Agl, 2013, the 
Board, on Movember 11, 2022 appointed Mr K. 
Venkaleswarlu as an Additional Director in the capacity of 
Diractor Cum CFO of the Company with effect from 
MNowamber 11, 2022 subject to the approval of the 
shareholders through an ordinary resolution. 

Based on (he recommendation of the nomination and 
remunaration commitles, lhe Board, al mesting held on 
Movember 11, 2022 has recommends (he appointment of 
Mr. K. Mankateswarlu as Director Cum CFO, shall liable to 
relire by rotation with effect from November 11, 2022. The 
Company has received consent letter and also recelved a 
notice under Section 160 of the Companies Ast, 2013 from a 
member, Intending to nominate Mr. K Venkateswarlu io the 
office of Director Cum CFO. In the opinian of the Board and 
based on [i= evaluation, Nr. K. Venkateswaru fulfills the 
conditions specified under the Companias Act, 2013. The 
resolution seeks the appreval of membars for the 
appointment of Mr. KK. Venkateswarlu as Director Cum CFO of 
Ihe Company pursuant to Sections 149, 152 of the Act and fhe 
Rules ‘made thereunder (Including any statutory 
madification(s) or re-anacimentis) thargol} and his office 
shall be liable to retire by rotation, 

No director, key managerial personnel or their relatives 
except Mr. K. Venkateswarlu, io whom the resolution relates, 
Is interested in or concerpad, in passing fhe proposed 
afaresaid resolution, 

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution sat forth Ih 
item no, 3 for the approval of members. 

Itam No. 4: Ratification of the appointment of Mr. Sambasiva 
Rao dasty (DIN: 09526475) as a “Director-Finance & 

Accounts” of the Company: 

Pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, the 
Board, an Jung 28, 2023 appointed Mr, Sambasiva Rag Jasty 
(DIN: 09526475) as an Additional Director in the capacity of 
Director-Finance & Accounts of the Company with effect from 
June 28, 2023 subject to the approval of the shareholders 
through an ordinary resolufion. 

Based on the recommendation of the nomination and 
remuneration committee, the Board, at meeting held on June 
28, 2023 has recommended the appointment of Mr 

tribe LL pei] 

Samhasiva Raa Jasty as Director-Finance & Accounts, shall 
liable to retire by rotation with effect from June 28, 2023. The 
Company has received consent letler and also received a 
notice under Section 160 of the Companies Acl, 2013 from a 
member, intending fo nominate Mr. Sambasiva Rao Jasty to 
the office of Director-Finance & Accounts, In the opinion of the 
Board and based on its syaluatlon, Mr. Sambasiva Rao Jasty 
fulfills the conditions. specified Under the Companies Act, 
2013. The resolution seeks the approval of members lar the 
appointment of Mr. Sambasiva Rao Jasty as Director- 
Finance & Accounts of the Company pursuant to Sections 
148, 152 of the Actand the Rules mada thereunder (including 
any statutory modification(s) or re-anactment(s) thereof) and 

his offica shall ba liable to retire by rotation, 

No director, key managerial personnel ar their relatives 
except Mr. Sambasiva Rao Jasly, to whom the resolution 
relates, s interested inorcaoncemed, In passing the proposed 
aforesaid resalution, 

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set forth in 
item no. 4 forthe approval of members. 

Item No.5: Ratification of the appointment of Mrs. Geeta 
Batlula (DIN 18205129) as an “Independent Dirsclor” of the 
Company. 

Purguanl to Section 161 of the Compariies Act, 2013, tha 
Board, on June 28, 2023, appointed Mrs. Geeta Batiula as an 
Additional Director in the capacity of Independent Director of 
the Company fora term of 5 (Five) years with effect from June 
28,2023 10 June 27, 2028 (both days inclusive) subject to the 
approval of Ihe shareholders through a spacial resolution. 

The Company has received the following rom Mrs, Geeta 
Battula: 

(il Consent in writing to act as Director in Form BIR-2 
pursuant to Kule 8 of the Companies (Appointment 
& Qualification af Directors] Rules, 2014 (“the 
Appointment Rules”), 

(i) Intimation in Form DIR-6 in terms of the 
Appointmenl Rules lo the affect that she is not 
disqualified under sub-section (2) of Section 164 of 
tha Act, 

(ii) Adeclaration to the effect that she meets the criteria 
of independence as provided in sub-section (8) of 
Secfion 148 of the Act and under the LODR 
Regulations; 

(vy Declaration pursuant to BSE Circular No. 
LIST/COMP/14/2018- 18 dated June 20, 2018, and 
NSE Circular Mo. NSE! CML/2018/24 dated June 
20, 2018, that sha has not been debarred from 
holding office of a director by virtue of any order 
passed by SEBlor any other such authority; 

(v) A declaration that she is in compliance with Rules 
6(1) and 6(2) of the Companies (Appointment and 
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, with respect 
to her registration with the data bank of 
independent directors: maintained by the Indian 
Instifute of Corporate Affairs, 
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The Company has received a notice In writing by a member 
proposing her candidature under Section 160 of the Act. 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) had 
finalized the desalred attributes for the selection of the 
Indepandent director(s) Based on those attributes, the NRC 
recommended he candidature of Mrs. Geela Ballula, In the 
opinion of the Board, Mrs. Geela Batlula fulfils the conditions 
lar independence specified in the Act lhe Rules made 
thereunder, the LODR Regulations and such other laws | 
regulations for the time being in foree, to the extent applicable 
lo the Company. The Board noted that Mrs. Geeta Batiula 
skills, background and experience are aligned to the role and 
capabilities identified by the NRC and that she |s aligible for 
appointment as an Independant Director. The Board was 
satisfied thal the appointment is justified: 

The resolution seeks the approval of membars for the 
appoiniment of Mrs. Geeta Battula as an Independent 
Director of the Company for a term of 5.(Five) years effective 
June 28, 2023 to June 27, 2028 (both days Inclusive) 
pursuant io Sections 149, 152 and other applicable 

provisions of the Act and the Rules made thersunder 
including any statutory modificationis) or, re-enaciment(s) 
thereof] and she shall not be lable to retire by rotation. In 
compliance with Section 149 read with Schedule WV 10 the Act 
and Regulation 25 of ihe LODR Regulations, the approval of 
lhe Members is sought for the appointment of Mrs. Gesta 
Batlulz as an Independent Director of the Company, asa 
special resolution. 

No director, KMP or thelr relatives except Mrs. Gesta Batiula, 
to whom the resolution relates, isinterested In of concamed, 
nancially or olherwise, in passing the proposed resolulion 
satoutinitem no, 5. 

Item No. 8: To appoint and approve the remuneration of the 
Cost Auditorfor the FY, ending on 31st March, 2024. 

Board of Directors of the Company, on the recommendation 

of Audit Committee approved the appointment and 
remuneration of M/s AS RAD & CO., Cost Accountants (Firm 
Registration No. DO0326) as the Cosl Auditors of tha 
Campany to conduet the audit of the Cost Records of the 
Campany for the financial year ending on 31st March, 2024. 
In terms of the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost 
Auditor as approved by Board of Directors, has to be ratified 
by the Shareholders of the Company, Accordingly, the 
Shareholders ara raguastad to ratify the remuneration of Cost 
Auditor for the financial year ending 31st March, 2024, gs sel 
outin the Crdinary Resalution lem No. 6. 

Nene of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company is concemed ar interested financially or otherwise, 
inthe said Resolution, 

Item No. 7: Approval for Non-Provision of the Interest on 
Warking Capital Loans & Unsecured Loans af the Company: 

[DELETE =) 

Approval for Non-Provision of the Interes! on Working Capital 
Loans and Unsecured Loars: 

The board members discussed In this connection and that the 
Company has submitted the One Time Setfiement (OTS) 
proposal to each of tha Working Capital Banks and is working 
with them. The Company is hopeful to gel It approved with 
suitable modificalions, ifany. It was further deliberated that as 
the Company has put up OTS proposal with each Working 
Capital Bank against their respective pulstanding, Interest 
provision an working capital leans and unsecured loans was 
not made, 

None of the Dirgtctors and Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company is concerned or interested financially or otherwise, 
inthe said Resolution. 

By Order of the board 

for Madhucon Projects Limited 

Place: Hyderabad 

Date: 12-08-2023 

D. Malla Reddy 

Company Secretary 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING: 

1. Usa the following URL for e-voting from KFintech 
website: https: fevating kfintech.com. 

2. Mambers of the Company holding shares sither in 
physical form or in dematerglized form, as on 22nd 
Seplember;, 2023, the cutoff dale, may cast their vote 
electronically. 

3. Enter the login credentials Le. User ID and password 
mentioned in your emall. Your Falio Ne JDP ID Clignt 1D 
will be your User ID. However, If you are already 
registered with KFintech for e-voting, use your existing 
User 1D and password lor casting your votes, 

4. After entering the detalls appropriately, click on LOGIN. 

a. You will reach the Password change ment wherein you 
are required lo mandatorily change your password, The 
ew password shall comprise of minimum 8 charactars 
with at least one upper case (A-Z), one lower case (az), 
one numaric value (0-9) and a special character (@. #. § 
atc), It is strongly recommended not to share your 
password with any other person and take utmost care fo 

keep your password confidential, 
6. You neediologin againwith the new credentials. 
7. On successful login, tha system will prompt vou to select 

the EVENT i.e., Madhucon Projects Limited. 

8B. On the voling page, lhe number of shares (Which 
represents the number of voles) held by you as on the 
cut-off date will appear. If you desire to cast all the votes 
assenting/dissenting to the resolution, enter all shares 
and click 'FORVAGAINST as the case may be or 
partially In "FOR" and partially in "AGAINST, bul the total 
number in FOR" andior ‘AGAINST laken together 
should hot exceed your total shareholding as on the cul- 
off date. You may also chase the option "ABSTAIN and 
the shares held will not be counted under either head. 

9. Members holding muiipie folios / demat accounts shall 
choose lhe voting process separately lor sach folio | 
demat account. 



MADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED <4 7 

10. Cast your vole by selecting an appropriate option and 
click on SUBMIT. A confirmation box will be displayed. 
Click OK to confirm else CANCEL to modify, Ones you 
confirm, you will not be allowed to modify your vote, 
Curing the voting period, Members can login any number 
af times Ul they have voted on the Resalulion. 

11. The Foal will open for voting from 9.00 am. on 
Tuesday, 26th September, 2023 and closes at 5.00 p.m. 
on Thursday, 28th September, 2023 with E-Voling 
Sequence number (EVEN) — 7533). 

12. Mambars of the Company who have purchased their 
shares after the dispatch of the Notice bul before the 
cutoff date (22nd September, 2023) may contact 
KFintech at Tel Mo. 1800 309 4001 (toll free) to obtain 
login id and password or send a request to 
einward.rfis@kfinach.com. 

13. In vase of any queries, you may refer ihe Frequently 
Asker Questions [FAGS) for shareholders and e-valing 
User Manual for shareholders available at the download 
section of hitps;//evating.kfintech.com or cantact 
KFintechat Tel No. 1800 300 4001 (toll free). 

14. 

15. 

[DELETE =) 

Pursuant to SEBI Clroular No. SEBHHO/CFDICMD/ 
CIR/P/2020/242 dated 3th December 2020 on "e-voting 
facility provided by Listed Companies”, e-valing process 
has been enabled to all the individual demat account 
holiters; by way of single login credential, through their 
demat accounts websites of Depositories / DPs inh order 
fo increase Ihe efficiency of the voting process. 
Individual damat account holders would be able 10 cag! 
their vote without having lo reglster again with the e- 
Voting service provider (ESP) thereby nat ‘only 
facilitating seamless authentication but also ease and 
convenience of participating in e-voting process. 
‘Shargholders areadvised to update (heir mobile number and 
e-mail 10 with their DPs ln order 10 access e-voting facility. 

The voting results declarad along with the Scrutinizer's: 
Report shall be placed on the Company's wabsile 
www. madhucon.com and the website of the Registrar 
and Share Transfer Agent viz, evoling@kfintech.com 
immediately afier the declaration of the resull by the 
Chairman or a person authorized by the Chairman. The 
results shall also be immediately forwarded to the BSE 
Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited. 

Procedure to login through websites of Depositories: 

NSDL CDSL 

1. Users already registered for IDeAS facility of NSDL 
& Click on URL: hitps:/feservices nsdl com, 

b, Click on the “Beneficial Owner’ icon under 'IDeAS’ 
section. 

c. EnferyourUser ID apd Password for accessing IDeAS, 

d: On successiul authentication, yeu will enter your 1DeAS 
sarvice login, 

g. Click on Access toe-Vating™ 
i. Click en Company name or e-voling service provider and 

you will be re-directed to KFintech website for casting the 
vole during the remote e-voting period, 

2. Users notregistered for IDeAS facility of NSDL 

a, Toreglster, clickon URL: hitps:/leservices nad com 
hb. Select "Register Online for |DeAS" 

©: Proceed tocomplete registration using your BPID, Client 
10, Mobile Number, atc. 

d. After successful registration, please follow steps given 
undar Sr. No. 1 above ta cast your vole, 

3. Users may directly access the e-voting module of 
NSDL as perthe following procedure: 

a. Click én URL: hitps:iwww. evoting.nsdl. com/ 

Bb. Click on the button "Login available under “Shareholder 
/ Memlser” section. 

¢. Entar your User ID (Le. 16-digit demat account number 
hald with NSDL), login type, Password / OTP and 
Verification code as shown on the screen 

d. On succassiul authentication, you will enter the e-voting 
module of NSDL 

e. Clickon Company name or e-voting service provider and 
you will be re-diracled lo KFintech website [or casting the 
vole during [he remote e-voting period. 

1. Users already registered for Easi/Easiest facility of 
CDSL 

Clleck an URL: 
hitps://web cdslindia.com/myeasi’homalloging ar 
www, cdslindfa.com and click an New System Mysas 

Enter your User ID and Password for accessing Easl / 
Easiest. 

Click on Company name or e-voting service provider for 
casting the vote, 
Users not registered for | Easi [Easiest facility of 
CDSL 

To regleter, ollek on 
hitps:fiweb. odslindia. comimyeasi! homeflogin 

Proceed lo complete registration using your User 10, 
Client ld, Mobile Number; etc. 

After successful registration, please follow steps give 
underSr. No. 1 above to cast your vote. 

Users may directly access the e-voting module of 
COSL as per the following procedure: 

Click on URL: www.cdslindia.com 
Provide demat account number and PAN 

System will authenticate user by’ sending OTP on 
registered mobile & email as recorded In the demat 
account 

On successful authentication, your will enter the e-voting 
modula of COSL. 

Click on Campany name or 8-valing service provider and 
your will be re-directed th KFinlech weabsila Tor casling 
tha vole during the remole e-voling period, 

URL 
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Procedure to login through their demat accounts / website of Depository Participant 

NSDL CcOSL 
Individual shareholders holding shares of the Company in Demat mode can access e-Voting facility provided by the Company 
using login credentials of their demat accounts (online accounts) through their demat accounts f websites of Depository 
Participants registered with NSDLICDSL. An option for “e-Voting™ will be avallable once they have successfully logged-in 
through their respective logins. Click on the option "e-Voting” and they will be redirected (o e-Voting modules of NSOL/CDSL (as 
may be applicable). Click an the e-Valing link available against the name of Company or select eVoling service provider 
“KFintech” and you will be redirected lo the &-Voting page of KFinteenh lo cast your vate without any further authentication, 

Members who are unable to retrieve User ID / Password are advised to use “Forgot User ID" / "Forgot Passward” options 
available an the websites of Depasitories ( Depository Participants. 

Contact details in case of technical issue on NSDL websila Contact details in case of technical issue on COSL website 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
NSDL helpdesk by sending a request al-evoting@risdl.colin 
proall at toll free ne: 1800 1020 980and 1800-22 44 30 

Members facing any lschnical issue in login can’ contact 
CDSL helpdesk by sanding & request at 
helpdesk evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 
23058738 or 22-23058542-43, 



Directors’ Report 

Your Directors Nave pleasure In presenting (he 337 Annual Report of the Company together with the Audited Financial 
Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023, 

1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY {" R5.In Lakhs) 

S.No. Partloulars Standalone Yaar ended | Consolidated Year anded 

31032023 | 31042022 | 31.03.2023] 31.00 2002 
(Audited) (Audited) (Audited) | (Audited) 

i Income fram Operations: 

(a) Net Safes! Income fram Operations G00B0.B4 70614 85 11623046 A4814.79 

(D) Other incom 1304.78 1656.95 a0153.51 11745:09 

Total Income 10348542 TZ271.80 | 206383897 | 10656078 

2 Expenses: 

(a) Cost of Matenals Consumed T7811.03 51899.33 103075.48 Tas73.07 

(b) Changes in Inventory of Finished goods, 

Worksin-Progress and slock-indrade - . 434.34 

{c) Employes benefits: sxpense 1839.41 1678.16 2996:83 292022 

(d) Other expenses 24411 64 19308.89 35419.83 2373070 

{e) Financial Costs 202.97 417.54 471z 18 a137.00 

{fy Dapraciation and amonization expense BE1.95 478.06 7989393 14094.98 

Total Expenses 10504700 T37E299 276008,25| 116839021 

3 | Profit{Loss) Before Exceplional lems (1-2) {1661 88) (161118) | (1971428) (11829.43) 

4 Excaptional Items Share of (Loss) from Associata Co, - 982,30 

g Profiti{Loss) Before Tax (3-4) {1661.58) (1611.18) | (19714.28)| (10847.04) 

fi Tax Expense 

a) Current Tax — | J 
bj Income Tax Refund Received 8:1 - 

¢} Deferred Tox (2007.68) 1870.14 (2007.62) 1870.14 

Total Tax (a+b) (2007.69) THTD. 14 (1998.78) 1870.14 

7 | Nat Profit{Loss) After Tax (546) 446.11 (2381.33) | (1771550) (1271718) 

Bhar of Loss trensfared ty Nan-Controlling Inlares! (3345.53) (208268) 

Profiti{Loss) after Tax after Non-Controlling interest 448.11 (3381.33) | ($4369.91) (10634.51) 
Share of Profil or Loss from Associated Companies 

ProfiviL oss) after Tax after Share of Minority 
InthreshB: Assoristad Sommries: 448.11 (3381.33) | (14369:81)| (10834.51) 

8 | ‘Other Gomprahansive Income 43.10 19.45 | “43.10 19.45 
Ii } Amount not re-classifiable fo PEL - - pi (1.896) 

Share of Other Comprehensive Income — B o = 

lransferrsd lo Non- Controlling Interest 

9 | Total Comprehensive Income (7+8) 4BRZ\ | (3361488) | (M3Z6E1)| (10617.02) 
10 | Paldup erly stars capital (Face Values! Rs 1» ach) 7aros 747.95 787.95 737.95 

1 Other Equity BZEE0.2T 2181.06 | (192680 38) | (2105256.29) 

12 (1) Earning per shar af Rs 1/- each (not annuahzed) 

{a) Basic 0.60 (4.58) (10.47) (14.41) 

(b) Diluted 080 (4 58} (19.47) (14.41) 

10



MADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED =; % 
MALI LI Cal 

Extractof Annual Return: 
Pursuant lo Section 92{3) of the Companies Ac, 2013 and Rule 12{1) af the Oompanies (Managemen! and Administration) 
Rules, 2021, the annual return 23 referred under section 134(3)(a) of the-Act for the Minarcial veer ended 31% March, 2022 1s 
available on the Company website at www madhucon.cominvester/Annualretum. 

. Indian Accounting Standards: 
The Company has foliowsd Indian Accounting Standards and accounting princlpfas nenarally acaepled in India in preparation 

of financial statements for the financial year 2022-23! 

Dividend: [Section 134(3)(K)]] 

No dividend was declared on equity shares for the year sanded 31.03.2023 due to Loss. 

Board Meetings: 
Thi Board met 4 (Four) mes dunng the financial year 2022-2023. The following are the dates of meeting convened in 

differant Qusnars of the financial year, 

First Quarter Second GQuartar Third Quartier Fourth Quarter 

Meating No. Date Mealing Nao. Date Meeting Mo. Daa Weseting Na. Crate: 

596 28-05-2022 BaF 11-08-2022 588 11-11-2022 589 13-02-2023 

6. Directors’ Responsibility Statement: 

9. 

10. 

Pursuant tothe requirement under section 134(3) ic) of the Companies Act. 2013, it is hereby confirmed 

|, That in the preparation of annual accounts for the finandial year ended 31% March, 2023; the applicable 
Arcoodnting Standards have been followed along with proper explanation refaling 10 matensl deparuras, 

il, That the Diragtors have selected Acoounting Policies and applied them consistantly and made [udgments and 
aslimales thal are reasonable and prudent, 50 8s lo. give a true and fair view of the state of afaim of he Company, al 

the and of the financial year and of the profit or ioss of the: Company for hat period. 

lit. Thal the Direclors have taken proper and sulficlent care for the mainlenance of adeguals accatinting records in 

accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding ihe assets of the Company and for 
preventing snd detecting (rouds and other jregulanties. 

iv. That the Directors have preparad the annual accounts for tha year ended, 31 March 2023 on 2 "Going Concam™ 
lrasis. 

v. That the directors had laid down intemal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal 
financial controls ane adequate and are operating ofoctivaly, 

yl. That the directors had devised proper syslems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and 
that such systems ore sdeguate and operating effectively. 

Adequacy of Internal Financial Controd: 

The Company has structured and implemented framework for Internal Fingnmal Centrols ("IFCT) in terms of tha 
explanation to Soction 134(5) (8) of the Companias Act, 2013. The Board of Directors of the Company is of tha opinion that 
the Company has sound IFC for the year 2022-23 The Company Is continuously monitoring and Identified the gaps If any, 
and implements improved controls whisrever the effeat of such gaps would have a matenal effect on the Company's 
pparations. 

Declaration from Independent Directors on Annual Basis: 

Tha Company has racelved Daciarations of independence as stipulated undar section 148(7) of Companies act 2013 and 
raguiation 25 of the listing regulations from Independant directors confirming that he (sha is not disqualified from continuing 
as (nifepandant Director, he same annexed lo his report as ANNEXURE-A. 

Nomination:and Remunermtion Policy: 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committes has laid down the policy for Remuneration of Directors, KMP & other 
Employees and the orilera has been formulated by the Commitee for determining quafifications, positive altributes and 
independence of a Director. The Company's policy on Director’ appointment and remuneration and other matters provided 
in Section 178{3) df the Act has been disclosed In tha Corporate Governance Report 

Share Capital: 
The paid up share capital is Rs. 7.37.94 940(- of Rs.1/- each. There were no olhar changes that have been made In the 
shure capital of the Company during lhe year untar review. The Ostalls of Share Capital are given in Us notes lo Lhe 
Financial Statements. 
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11. Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments underSection 186 of the Companies Act, 2013: 

Petalls of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Aol, 2013 ae 
flven in the notes to the Financial Statements 

1Z. Related Party Transactions: 

The transactions entered with the refated parties by the Company for the year under review with respeci to rendering of 
services wem on arm's length basls and in the ordinary courses of business. Hence Section 188(1) ls nol attracted to thie 
Company. Thus disclosure in Form AQC-Z is not applicabls fo the Company, There are no materal related parry 
transacbons during the yaar under review wilh the promatars, Directors or Key Managerial Personnel, 

13. Material Changes and commitments sffecting the financial position of the Company: 
There are no maternal changes and commitments affecting lhe financial position of the Company occured between he and 
of the financial year to which the financial statements relate and the date of this report. 

14, Particulars regarding Energy Consumption, Technology Absorption and Ferelgn Exchange Eaming and Oulgoe: 

The parliculars preséribed under Section 134 of fhe Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 (3) of the Companies (Accoutits) 
Rules, 2014, relating lo Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo are 
furnished as ANNEXURE-! to this report. 

15. RiskManagemant: 
Penodic assessments to ideally the risk areas are carried aut-and management is briefed on he TIsks In advange to snabls 
lhe Company fo control risk through a propertly defined plan: The risks are taken Iho account while preparing the annual 

business plan for the veal, The Board is also panodically informed of (he business nsks and the actions taken lo manage 
them, 

16. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy: 

Pursuant lo he provisions of Section 135 and Schedule Wil of (he Companies Acl. 2013, CER Committee af the Board of 
Directors was formed to recommend; 

a) The policy on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) and 

by Implementation of the CSR Projects of Programs fo be underiaken by the Company a3 per CSR Policy by the Board 
of Directors. 

17. Formal Annual Evaluation: 

In compliance with the Companies Acl, 2013 and Regulalion 1710) ol SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Ragulrements), Regulations, 20156, the performignee: avalustion of the Bosrd was cared oul during the year Linder 
review, 

18. Reportonthe Performance/Financial Position of the Subsidiaries fAssociates/ Joint Ventures Companies: 

A separate stalameant Containing the sallent featurus of tha financial statements of the subsidiary Companies/Associate 
Companies/doint Ventures 1s prepared in Form AQC-1 ag per the provisions of Section 128 of the Companies Act. 2013 
read with Campanies {Accounts} Rules, 2014 as Amended and is altached lo Financial Slatemenis. 

18, Consolidation of Accounts: 
In compliance with Regulation 33 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulabons, 2015 and in compliance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Ind AS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint ventures and Ind AS 110 Consolidated 
Financial Statements; Your Directors have pleasure in attaching the consolidated fmancial statements for the finanaoial 
year endad March 31, 2023 duly. audited by the Statutory Audithrs which farms part of the Annual Report 
The Annual Asoounts of lhe Subsidiary Compiles and the related Information will ba made available to sharsholdsrs, 
who may be jnlerested in obtaining the same at any poinl of time as they have besn kept for inspection by any 
sharehuider al the Registered Office of the Company and also al [1s Subsidiary Companies, 

20. Details of Directors and Key Managerial Personnelappointed and resigned during the Year. 

a) Change in Key Managerial Personnel during the year: 

1. Mr. K. Venkateswarlu was appolnied as Director Cum CFO wel 11" November, 2022 

by Change in Directors during the year: 
1. Mr. Samba Siva Rao Jasly appointed as Dirsctor-Finance & Accounts of the Company wel 28% June, 2023 

2 Mra Geals Batlula appointed as Independent direction of the Company w.el 28" June, 2023, 

21. CEO and CFO Certification : 
In accordance with Lhe Regulation 17(8) of the SEB! (Listing Obligations and Disclosurs Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 

this Managing Director and Director Cum CFO of the Company have submilted a cenlificats for ihe year anded 31st March 

2023 to he Board of Dirscters which lorms part of the Anhual Reporl 
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22. 

24. 
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Vigil Mechanism | Whistle Blower Policy: 

The Company has established Vig Mechanism for Directors | Employees to report thelr genuine poncems of grievancss. 

Tne Audit Committee of the Company overseas the vigil Mechanism through the Committee: It provides for adequate 

safeguards against victimization of directors! employess who avail of the mechanism. It also provides for direct acess to 

the Chairman of the Audit Committen. In case of repeated frivolous complaints, the sutabile action will ba initiated by the 
Chairman of the Audit Committe 

Disclosure under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition And Redressal) Act, 

2013: : 

The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in ling with the requirements of The Sexual Harassmanl 

of Women af lhe Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act 2013 Internal Complaints Committees (ICC) has 

bean set up 10 radmess complaints received regarding sexual harassment All employees (permanenl, contractual, 

temporary trainees) are covered under this policy. 

Clunng the financial year 2002.23, the Company received no complaints on sexual harassmenl 

Daposits: 

“The Company had nol accepted or invited any Deposits and consequenlly no depasit has malured f become due for re 

payment #5 on 31 March 2023, 

Audit Committees; 

Four meetings of the Audit Committee were held during the year, The details pertaining io oomposition of Audit 

Committes are Included In he Corporate Governanis Report 

Stakeholders’ Relationship Committe: 

Tho Committee focuses on shareholders grievances and strengthening of mvestor redations: The Committos coordinates 

the services of the Registrars and Share Transfer Agents. There were no complaints pending for redressal as at 2's 
Mareh, 2023. 

Statutory Auditors and their Report: 

P. Murali & Ca.. Chartered Accountants (FRN 0072575) were reappoinied as Statutory Auditors of the Company for the 

penod of 4 (Four) Finanodl Years wel FY 2022-23 1g FY 2025-26 and expressed heir willlhgness ta hold the pifice up 

to tha conclusion of the 38" Annual General Meatlhg was approved by the Shareholders at their 32 Annual Ganeral 

Meating of te Company, hald on 22% September, 2002. 

Cost Auditors: 

The Board of Directors, on recommandstion of Audit Committee appomted AS RAD & CD, Cost Accountants 

(Registration No, D00328) as the Cost Auditors of the Company to conduct audit of cost records made and maintained by 
the Company pertaining to Works Contracts, Construction of Rosds, ste, for finanoal year commencing on’ 19 Apnl, 2023 

and anding on 31% March, 2024, 

Secretarial Auditors and Secretarial Audit Report: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Segtion 204 of the Companies Act 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managenal Personne!) Rules, 2014, Mis VV. Madhumita and Assocfates, Company Secretaries (ACS 

52966 and CP Noi 19626) has basen appoinisd as Secratarnal Audliors of the Company for the financial year 2023-24 1o 

carry oul the Sacrelsral Audlt and sue report therson. Secretadial Audit report issued jor the financial year ended 314 

March, 2023 by Mis V, Madhumita and Assomaies, Company Secretaries Is annexed to the Report as ANNEXURE IL 

30. Listing With Stock Exchanges: 

The Company's sscurilias Have been listed with Bombay Stock Exchande (BSE), and Naticnal Stock Exchange (MSE), 

Listing fee has been pald to BSE and NSE within the prescribed time limll as sel in Regulation 14 of Listing Regulations 

far the Financial Years 2022-2023 and 2023-2024. 

MM. Particulars of Employees: 

The Company has:notl employed Ary Individual whose mmunaration Talis within the plirview of the limits prasoribed under 

the provisions of Seclion 197 of the Companies Acl, 2013, read wilh Rule 52) of (he Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnsl) Rules. 2014. 
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Depository System : 

As the Mambars are aware. your Company's shares are tradable compulsorily in elscirenic form and your Company has 

established connactivity with Central Depository Saevicas (India) Limited (CDSL) & National Securities Depository Limitsd 

(NSDL). In view of the numerous advantages offered by the depository systom, the mambers are requesied lo avail the 

facility of Demateralization of the Company's shares on COSL or NSDL. The ISIN allotted to the Company's Equity shames 
lis INE 378001032 

Prevention of Insider Trading: 

Your Company has in place coda of conduat 10 regulate, monitor and report trading by designated’ parsons and code of 

practices and procedures for fair disclosure of unpublished price sensitive Information which is In adherence to the SEBI 
(Prohibition of insider trading) Amandmeant Regulations, 2018. Tha disclosures received pursuant to this code and the 
Regulations are disseminated to the Stock Exchanges wiihin prescribed time fimit. The Report of compliance officer was 

placed before the Board. The code Is avallable al the company’s wibsite al the following link www. madhueon.com 

Corporate Govemnanceand Shareholders Information: 

As por SEB! (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, m Report on Corporate Governantcs 
farming part of this Report, together with the Practising Company Secretaries Cantificale regarding the compliance af the 
conditions of Corporates Govemanie is given In a separate section in the Annual Report. 

Appreciations: 

The Directors wish to express their appreciation for the assistance and continued co-operation received from tha Central 
and State Governments, Banks. Financial Institutions, JV partners, clients, consultants, sub-contractors; Customers, 
Suppliers and dlso the Directors wish to thank all the amployees for their dedicated contribution, suppor and continued 
co-oparalion throughout the yearal all levels, 

For and on behalf of the Board of Madhucon Projects Limited, 

(MN Saedthaiah) (Mohammad Shafi) 
Place: Hyderabad 

Date: 12-08-2023 Managing Director Whole-lime Director 

BIN: oF 8449 DIN OF178285 

ANNEXURE 

INFORMATION AS PER SECTION 134 (3) (F) THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ 
WITHRULE 8 (3) OF COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014 

A COMSERVATION OF ENERGY 

The Company is engaged in Civil Construction, Activity which is not a predominantly power intensive. 
Howser, anergy consarvation measures are taken up wherever required, 

8 TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION: 

The Company is constantly updating its fechnology in the areas whersvar necessary for improving he 
productivity, efficiency and quality of its performance 

C. FOREIGNEXUHANGE EARNINGSANDOUTGO: NTL 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS ANNEXURE - 1 

Industry Structure and Developments: 

Infrastructure sector is a key driver for the Indian economy, The sector is highly responsible for propelling India's ovarall 
development and enjoys intense focus from Government for initlating policies that would ensure time-bound creation of world class 
infrastructure in the country. Infrastructure sector includes power, bridges, dams, roads, and urban infrasiructire development. Tha 
Government of India's napital expenditure as a percentage of GOP increasad from 1.7 per cent in 2014 to nearly 2.9 par cant in 
2022-23. The Union Budget 2022-23 continues lo give 8 sirong push lo infrastructure development by Increasing the capital 
investment outlay by 33% to Rs 10 Lakh Crore - almost three limes the autlay in 2019-20, 

For a healthy acondgmy, GDP growth [8 the result of strategic focus on Mecal prudence and comprehensive development driven by a 
strang push on infrastructure development — particularly the highways infrastructure sactor. They play & dominant role in nation’s 
building by creating abundant comprehensive growlh opportunities io uplift local communities, provide efficient connectivity for 
movamert of goeds, people, and services. In view af this, Underthe Union B Lrkgat 20. 23-24 the Govarmmernt of Iridia has ailocated 
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Rs.2.70 Lakh Crom to tha Ministry of Road Transport and Highways. In the Union Budget of 2023-24, the increase in Budget was a 
whopping 36% compared ko the last year, which will also play a crucial role inthe ssheme ol things with nearly 26% of the capital 
axpanditure earmarked for this sector. These targeted investments will not only create vital physical infrastructure and improve 
connettivity that will accelerate the movement of passengers and freight, but alsa create jobs, spur private investments, and 
provide a cushion agains! global headwinds. The continuing trend showed a rapid rise In NHS antl roads construction with 10.4567 
kmieNHs constructed in FY 22 as soalnst 8,061 kms in FY 18. 

Indian Railways received a capital oullay of Rs 2.40 lakh crate, Ihe highest-evel since 2013-14 with funds to accelerate projects 
like introducing hydrogen-powared wagons and trains, laying of addilional tracks; gleclrification of retwark, and revamping 
stations with batter amenities for passengers. Meoording lo Railway Minister Ashwini Vaishnaw, the first indigenously designed 
and developed hydrogen-fuelled train will be rolled out by December 2023, and such trains will be operated on Heritage Routes. 
The allocation for the railways is 48% mare than the revised estimate (RE) for the currant fiscal and nearly 72% higher than the 
budgel estimate (BE), The maximum increase in allocation is meant for passenger amenities, which include redevelopment of 
slaliona. For 2023-24, Rs 13,350 crore has been earmarked for (his compared to the RE of Rs 3,824 crora for the current fiscal. 
Ovar 1,275 stabions are being revamped under the "Amnt Bharat Station’ scheme and tha redevelopment of Delhi, Mumbai, and 
Ahmedabad stations is underway The second highest Increasa in allocation has bean proposed for raillway's rolling stock — 
trains, locomotives, and wagans. The government has proposed allocation al Rs 37,581 crare, mare than double of the RE for 
rolling stock. 

The government |s working on a mission to provide first and last-mile connectivity to ports, coal, steel, fertilizer, and food grains 
sectors, [0 addition, it has also identified 100 critical transport projects for connectivity and higy will be taken up on a priority basis 
with an investment of Ra 75,000 crore, 

The country’s first high-speed Regional Rapid Transit System (RRTS) carrider being constructed between Dalhiand Meerut gota 
major boost af Rs 3,586 crore in the Union Budget The Budget set aside an avarall Rs 19,518 crore for all metro rail projects 
across the country, 

Budget 2023 has taken a proactive and integrated view on Logishcs, givan the goal of the government to lower the cost of fogistics 
from its current 14% of GDP to less than 10%, With coastal shipping belng promoted as an enargy efficient and lower-cost mode of 
transport, bath for passengars and fraight, through PPP mode with ibility gap furiding along with a focus an freight corridors on 
raars and track malntanance and doubling for railways, India will soon see a cost-efficient convergence on Logistics. IL will be a 
huge boost lo every business on land. 

The multimodal solutions 8s & first mile to [ast mile connectivity, decreased lead times and costs, will ensure GDP growth and 
logistics efficiency of goods across the domestic periphery as well as exports. Strong locus and budget allocation 10 dedicated 
freight corridors will enable faster on-land transpartation of goods to the ports-of expart, ensuring batter delivery time and thus 
cheaper logistics cost factor. [Lwlll provide suppart for export efficiency that has been ensured through clstom-duly tweaks. 

The Budget proposed that the government will sat up an Urban Infrastructure Development Fund (UIDF), which will maka Rs 
10,000 crore available to states to create infrastriicture in Tier-2 and Tier-3 cities. The government's focus an sanitation is clear 
from the allocation for 2023-24, While the Cente has proposed at Rs 76.432 crore forthe Housing and Urban Affairs Ministry, it has 
aliocdled Rs 5.000 crore for Swaohh Bharat Mission for the next fiscal— a whopping 250% mare than the revised estimate of the 
current fiscal. The UIDF will be managed by the National Housing Bank and will be ussd by public agencies to creats urban 
infrastructure in Tier-2 and Tier-3 clties. This Is a laudable move as construction of housing and the development of surrounding 

infrastructure should go handin hand 

Pradhan Mantrl was Yolana (MAY) which includes affordable housing. got a boost with an allocation of Rs 73,000 crora, A 
rapidly growing country with a large young population nisds more homes at affordable price points which would enable more 
households fo become homeowners; 

Regional serial connectivity has gol a boost with the gevarnment planning to ravive old, and unused airstrips across the colintry 
As many as 50 additional airports, heliporis, water aerodraomes and advanced landing grounds will be revived for improving 
radional gir connectivity. [nthe last eight years, (Fe number of airports in uss has increased from 74 to 147! this is due to the 
subsidized reglenal connectivity scheme (RES) 'Ude Dash Ka Aam Nagrik' (WDAN). Dameastic air traffic recovery has been amang 

the highest in India globally, post-Covid, and India Is now the world's third largest sylation market at svar 1.1 crore fiyars have 
Laken UDAN flights in (he last six years, 

Incentivizing stales lo accelergte capital spending for improving infrastruciure, the Centre extended the 50-yaar interest-free loan 
scheme by Gna year for state governments and increased the outfay from Rs 1 lakh arore ta BS 1.3 lakh crore. Certain pars of the 
outlay will alsa be linked Io projects such as sorapping old govammani vehicles, reforms in urban planning, housing for police 
personnel, constructing Unity Malls, childrenand adolescents! branes; and digital infrastructure 

The government has put Rs 35,000 crore on the table for fransition to grean enargy as part of India's 2070 ‘net 2erd” emission 
ambition. The fund will be used to suppor new-age energy solutions ranging from green hydrogen and ammonia, battery storage, 
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and transmission lines for evacuating renewable power and biofuels such as biogas and ethanol (patrol laced with ethyl aleotiol). 
True le the Budget intention, par of the money will be used for providing VGF (viability gap funding) for 4,000 MWh {megawatt- 
hour) and VEGF of Rs 8,000 crore for the proposed Ra 20,700-grore transmission line for evacuating power from the proposed 13 
GW salar-wind-battery storage project In Ladakh ta reduce the tariff initially, tll a domestic market scales up and prices come 
down, A lramewark for purnped storage generation projects will also be formulated. Both these technologies will play a key role in 
the govemimant's bid lo promote round-the-clock solar or wind pewsr projects by providing standby pow during night of no-wind 
scenarios. This will be an important element for mamtaining and stability as the share of renewables ses. 

This govarn ment will form an expan committes to review the Harmonized Master List of Infrastructures whereby he committee will 
recommend the classification and financing framework suitable for Amit Kaal, The Finance Minister tasked the newly established 
infrastructure finance seoretanat to assist all stakeholders with more private investment in various sectors. including raibvays, 
raads, urban infrasiructure, and power generation. 

Overall, the infrastructura sector is the winner in this year's Budgst. However, its suceass lies in its effective implementation and 
focusing an profects with quick tumaraund time, 

Opportunities and Strengths: 

The Government of India i= taking-eveary possible initiative to boost the infrastructure sector and is expected to Invest highly in the 
infrastructure sector, mainly Transportation, Urban Development & Industral Projects. Many steps have been taken to improve 
funding avenues fo the infrastiuciure sector. There ara huge apponunities for the industry in the future. Your Company Is having 
opportunities and strengths with an order book position of Rs. 6401 Crores. 

Segment-wise performance: 
1. Transpantation Division: 

Your Company has completed 11.407 lane kms of road projects across India ill date. Besides, work amounting Rs. 1817.38 Crore 
was dane till March, 2023 out of the tatal work amounting to Rs. 2,776.59 Crore, Balance work of Rs. 959.21 Crore is outstanding 
ag on date: 

Irrigation Projects: 

aur Campany exacLind many Irrigation projects such as Canals, Dams, Tunnls, Splitways, Pump house and Lift Irrigation 
Projects across FAN India. Al presen various Irrigation Projects having a total value of Re 1,769.33 Crore are under progress 
across PAN India, Out of which work amounting to Rs. 1,083.80 Crore was already execuled till March, 2023, while work 
amounting to Rs. 75.53 Crore is the balance culslanding lo be exaculad, 

Outlook: 

Future outlook of Infrastruclureindustry in India: 

Th autlook for the Infrastruclure seclor appears posilive sine (he country [5 looking forward with & strong rmandals lo stimulate 
sconomic growth. In Union Budget FY 2023-24, the government has given a massive push to the infrastructure sector by 
allocating Rs:2,70 Lakh Crom tn the Ministry of Road Transport and Highways 1o enhance the transport infrastructures. The Union 
Budget 2022-23 continues {o give a strong push to infrastruclure developmant by increasing the capital investment ou lay by 339 
ta Rs 10 Lakh Crore - almost three times the outlay in 2019-20, 

Thi infrasiructure sector has tiscome the bigoest foous area for the Govemment of Indfa, The Government has suggested 
investment af Rs. 2.40 Lakh Crore for railways infrastructure for FY 2023-24. 

The allocation far the Ministry of Baad Transport and Highways has seen 3 36% Increase with around 22.7 lakh crore for 2023-24. 
Thizis nearly 10 percent jump over the Budgetary allocation of 1.89 lakh crore made In the Budget for 2022-23, 

Out of the total Rs. 2.7 lakh crore. the National Highways Authority of India (MHA) has bean allocated around Rs. 1.62 lakh crore 
as marl of MoRTH's capital expendilure plan for 2023-24, 8 21 percenl increase compared lo 2022-2023, when || was allocaled 
Rs.1.34 lakh ctire. As per the revised astimates of tha government, Ive NHAT will spsnd around R$. 1.42 lakh crorein 2022-23. 
The government had sel a target of 13,000 km af highway construction in FY2022-23, but the speed of construction was affected 
by unfavorable weather conditions. The road ministry is likely to complete the construction of 11,000 km of national highways in the 
gurrant financial year 

Finance Minister allocated Rs 2 40iakh crore for the Railways for 2023-24, The outlay is Rs 1 lakh crore more than the Rs 1.40 lakh 
crore allocated lo fie Railways last fiscal. Railway Minister also sald double lines would be ald over 2,800 km, gauge somversion 
would be carried out over 150 km and new lines over B00 km would be constructed. Other big-ticke! item on the agenda af the 
Railways was upgradation of railway stations. As many as 1,276 stations, including New Delhi, Mumbai, Kanpur, would be 
upgraded, With high speed Vanda Bharal trains set la hit the tragks. the allocation for track renewal has been increased from Rs 
15,386.05 crore in RE 2022-2310 Rs 17,296.84 crore this yaar, 

Your Gompany is giving major thrust in vanous infrastructure projects to reap the benefit of growth in infrastructure sector. 
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Road Ahead: 

Thi roadmap to India’s infrastructure Is exciting and futuristic, and it will not be an exaggeration 10 say thal the new decade seems 
tn hea promising ong. 

An economy's Infrastructure is pivotal in propelling is progress and setting he stage for is future development possibilities. 
Infrasiruchire development | crucial 1o achieve the Indid 2047 vision far a § 40 trillion. 8Canomy and be reclassified from a 
developing eoonomy {0 8 developed economy. The Indian governmenl focuses on India's infrastructural needs and has 
developed various schemas and policies in this ragard. The National Infrastructure Pipaline (NIP), introdiiced in 2019 emphasizes 
social and infrastructure projects including energy, roads, rallways, and urban development projects woh INR 102 fakh crores. 

India's high growth imperative in 2823 and beyond will significantly be driven by major strides in key sectors with infrastructure 
development being a critical force alding the progress. The government's focus on building infrastructure of the future has been 
evident piven the slew of mitatives launched scantly. Tha USS 1.2 trillion national master plan for infrastructure, Gati Shakti, has 
bean a forerunner lo bring about systamic and effective reforms in the sector, and has already shown a significant headway, 

In order to meel India's aim of reaching a USS 5 irillon economy by 2025. infrastructure development is the nead of the hour. The 
govemmeni has izunchad the National Infrastruciure Pipeline (NIP) combined with olher infliatives such as ‘Make in India’ and lhe 
productioninked incentives (PL) scheme to augment the growth of infrastructure sactor. Historically, more than 80%: of the 
country'sinfrastrutiure spending has gone loward funding for ransporiation, electricity, and water & irrigation. 

India's logistics markat is estimated to reach LSS 410. 75 tillion in 2022 and is expected to reach USS 556.97 billion by 2027, 
growing at a CAGR of 6.28%. India intends to raise its ranking in the Loglstics Performance Index to 25 and bring down the 
Ingistics cosl fmm 14% 16 8% of GDP, Igading loa reduction of ap proximately 40%, within he next five years. 

In December 2022, AA| and other Alport Developers have fargsted capital oullay of approximately Rs: 98,000 crore (USS 11.8 
billion) in airport sector In the next five yas far exparision and madification of existing terminals, new terminals and 
strengthening of runways, among other activities. 

Hundreds of new cities need lo be developed ovar the next decade. Over the naxt 10 years, dermand far urban freighl is pradicted 
to Increase by 140%, Finalmile freight transit in Indian cities accounts for 50% of the total logistics expenditures in tha country's 
increasing e-commerce supply chains. Indian logistios marke! is estimated to {ouch USS 320 billion by 2025. The: overall 
nfrastruclure capex is aslimated to grow ata CAGR of 11:4% over FY21-26 dnven by spending on walter supply, transport and 
urban infrastructure. Investmeantin infrastructure contributed around 5%, of the GDF in the 10h five year plan as against 9% in the 
Th five yaar plan. Further, USS 1 trillion investment in infrastructure was proposed by the India's planning commissien during the 
12th five year plan, with 40% of the funds coming from the private sector. 

This depicts the upward Irpjectory of the Indian Infrastruclure space which is on fhe rise. Algo, with Covid-19 restrictions bean 
removed, thie infrastructure work has progressed, and the (ndian National Highways are continuously being upgraded based on 
the lates! technology. 

Risks and Concerns: 

The COVID-19 pandemic has the major effect on limaly camplefion of various projects, Tha Svailability of construction labor laroe 
is expected io affect the projects for anolher one year. On the olker hand, other construction delays continue to. be a concern 
faator which stems fram number of factors outside the control of the project sponsors, which includes land acquisition, regulatory 
approvals, inflation, and litigation ele. which can delay ihe timely completion of the project and Increase in cost of project. This can, 
niu, lead fo additional funding, additional cost of fund ate, 

Tha construction sector js expectad lo face a simullansous reduction in both supply and demand on account of this pandemic. As 
the sector is doven by infrastructure projects to a large extent, Lis expactad © be hit severely by he current levels of uncertainty, 
‘dismal business and cansumer sentiments, loss of income as well as the diversion of government funds towards COVID-19 
management 
Internal Control Systems and theiradeguacy: 

Your Company has adaguate system of Iiternal Control developed by our in-house Internal Audit team consisting of qualified and 
experienced accounting, costing and technical professionals to ensure that Ihe resources of the Company ars used afliciently and 
effectively, all assels are safaguarded and protected against loss from unauthorized use or dispeditian and the transactions are 
authorized, recordad and reported correctly, financial and olher data are reliable for preparing financial Information and ather data 
and lor maintaining accountability of assats 

Discussion on financial performance wlth respect lo operational performanca: 

During the year under review. your Company has achieved a total income (standalone) of Rs; 1,03 485.42 Lakhs against Rs 
72,271.80 Lakhs and Eaming per Share (EPS) of Rs, 0.60 against Rs: (4.58) of lhe Pravious Yaar 

Human Resources| ndustrial Relations: 

Your Cotnpany has recruited competent Prafessionals atl all levels of management for all verticals of the Company as a part of 
corporate restruciuring process and strengthening its Business Verlicals to meel the pace of growth of vour Company. The 
Industrial refation is very cordial. 
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

In Compliance with Schedule V of the SEB! (Listing Obligations and Disolosre Requireriens) Regulations, 2015, the compariy 
seis forth this reporl on the Corporate Govemance on the iniatters as menlionsd In the said schedule-and practices followsd by 
he company. 

1. COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: 

The Company's philosophy on corporale governance oversees business siralegles and ensures Fsoal sooourdability, 
othigal corperate behavior and faimess lo all slakeholders comprising regulators, employes, customers, vendors; 
Investors and (he society at large. [1 Ts imperative thal out Company's affairs am managed in & fair and transparent 
manner, We apsure that we evolve and follow nat just the staled corporate governance guidelines, but also global best 
praciioes. We consider it our inherent responsibility to disclose timely, adequate and accurate Information regarding eur 
financlals and performance, as well as Ihe leadership and governance of the Company. The Gompany is In compliance 
with all requirements stipulated under SEB (LODR) Regulations, as applicable, with regard to corporate govemance. 

BOARDOF DIRECTORS: 

I. Composition and Category of Ihe Directors as dn 318 March, 2023 

In terms of compliance with the reguirsmenl of The Companies acl, 2013&a0d the SEBEL (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure: Requirements) Regulations 2015, (he: Company endeavor to have an optimum combination of Execute 

and Nor-Exsautive Director with one woman director jo: maintain the independence of the Board and geparate the 

functions of Governance and Management through Board and Commillzss, 

As an 31st March 2023. the Board consist of 6 (Si) Directors. There is 1(0ne) Managing Cirector, T(onn) Wholo-time 

Diroctor, 1{one) Executive Dimctor and 3 (three) Non-expcutive Independant Girectors meluding 1 (One) chaiman and 

tone) Woman Director 

Si No Name of th Director ‘Dasignation Category } 

1 Mr Ramadss Kesarneni Chairman MNon- Executive & Independent Direator 

2 Mr. MN. Seethamh Managing Director Executive & Non-Indapendanl Dirsotor 

3 Mr. Mohammad Shafi Whole-time Director Exeoutive & Non-Indepaendant Director 

4 Mrs. Ch. Lakshml Kumari | Woman Direstar MNin- Exdcutive & Woman Independenm Direclor 

5 Mr. P. Madhava Rap Direator Nur- Exaputive & [ndepandsnt CHracior 

& Mr. Madhu Malampai Non-Exeaulive Dirnclor | Up te 11-11-2022 (Resigned) 

Li Mr. K. Verikateswarlu Executive Director weet, 11-11-2022 (Appolited) 

Il Number of Board Meetings held during the year: 

The Board met 4 (Far) times during the financial year 2022:2023. 

First Quarter Second Quarter Third Quarter Fourth Quarter 

Mesating No. | Dale Meelng No. | Dale Mesting No. | Date Meisting No. | Data 

596 20-05-2022 | 597 11-08-2022 | 598 11-11-2022 | 593 13-02-2023 

fir. Allendance of each Direalor al (he Beard Meelings and the last Annual General Mesling. 

The particulars of attendance of Board Meetings and Annual Gensral Masting by. Directors for the financial year 

ended have been set oul hers below: 

oe | Name of the Director I DEER eet RON anced aimee = 

: rire Sa uk A hald an 28-08-2022 
| (2022-2023) 

1 Mr. Ramadas Kasamenl 4 Yes 

2 hr. M, Seethaial 4 Yaz 

3 | Mr. Mohammad Shafi 4 No 
4 | Mr. P. Madhava Rao 4 Yes 
5 Mrs. Ch. Lakehimi Kumar a4 Yeg 

8 Mr. K. Venkateswarlu 1 Yes 

nv. Number of other Boards or Board Commiltees in which haishis Is a member of Chairperson. 
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None of the directors are members of mote than ten commitiees or chairman of mare than five committees In public 

limited companies (1 which they are directors, Netessary disclosures Have been oblaingd fram all the directors 

regarding their directorship and have been taken on record by the Board, 

The names of the Directors and the details of other chalrmanship f directarship | committee rembership of aauh 

Direclor as on 31st March 2023 is glven below! 

sl, Name of the Director Position Na. of Committes Committea 
Mo, Directorships | Membarship in Chairmanship 

ry thier alher in other 
Companies Companiss Companies 

1 Mr. N, Saothaiah Managing Director 5 0 D 

MF. Mehammad Shafi Whode-times Director 4 i] 0 

Mr. Hamedas Kasarmem Chairman and 

Independent Director a o 0 

4 | Smb Gh, Lakshmi Juma Independant Director 2 o 0 

B Mr. P, Madhava Rao Independant Dirsclor 0 0 0 

B Mr. K. Verkateswaril Executive Director [i] 4] 0 

woo In terms of sub regulation 8 regulation 10 part © of Schedule V a cartificate fren the Company S2cretary in 

praclice was obtained to the effect (lial nene of the directors on the Board of the company have bean debarred 

or disqualified from being appointed on continuing as direqtors of companies hy the Board ( Ministry of corporate 

affairs ar any such statutory authanty. 

CODE OF CONDUCT: 

Pursuant (6 SEBI (Listing Obligalions and Tisclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board has sultably 
modified [he 'Code of Gonducl for Board of Direstors, Senlor Management and Key Managerial Personnel’ (Code of 
Condudt) and is available an the Company's website. The Directors, Key Managerial Persoiinel and Serilor 
Management Personnel have affirmed their compliance with the Code of Conduct as al 3151 March 2023 

AUDIT COMMITTEE: 

i. Brief description of terms of reference: 

In terms of compliance with the requirement of Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations, ts Audit Commies has been 
constituted consisting of qualified snd Indapendean Board members for providing accurate and transparent financial 

reporting 19 the Board and shal have the powers and roles to perform the functions as menlicnad in Listing 

Regulations and respectively read with Section 177 of the Companies Ad, 2013, 

il. Composition. Nama of Members and Chairperson: 

Tha Audit Committees comprises of tha following membess ason 398! March 2024 

1. Smt. Chi Lakshmi Kumarl, Independent Directér as Chalrparson 

2. Gn Madhava Rao P, Independant Director os Member 

3, Sil. Ramadas Kasarnen|, Independenl Director 2a Member 

iil Mestlng and attendance during the year 

In terms of compliance with the requirement of Regulation 18 (2) of tha Listing Regulations the Audit Comimiltas 
met 4 (Four) mes dunng the financial year under review, 'on 28-05-2022, 11-08-2022, 11-11-2022 and 13-02-2023 

and the attendance of the members of the Audit Committees as recorded 15 as Under 

SL. Na, Name of the Director Status hao. of meafings attended 

1 Smb Ch Lakshmi Kumar Chairparson 4 

Mr. P. Madhava Rao Member a 

3 Tir. Ramadas Kasamen Member | 4 

Head of Finance & Aooounts Division and intemal Auditors attended the meatings of the Audit Committes as Inyiess 

In terms. of complisnce with the requirement of Listing Regulations, The Audit Committe reviews tho information from 

time to time as speafied in the aforesaid cause, 
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5 NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE: 

i. Briefdescription of tarms of refarance: 

Tha terms of reference of Nomination and Remuneration Committes ame as follows: 

1. To determing the Company's policy an specific ramuneration package for Exgoutive Directors inehiding 

compensation payment, | any, on behalf of the Board of Director: and Sharohalders 

2 To review, assess and recommend tha appointment of Exgcutive Director from time to time and also 

onuneration package Including Employees Stock Option Scheme lo the Board of Diréclors. 

3. Any other function as may be delegated by Board of Ciraciors. 

il Composgition-and Role of Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

Nomination and Remuneration Commilige comprises he following non-exsoulive independent directors 

as on 31 March 2025; 

1. Sml Ch. Lakshmi Kumar, Woman Independent Direclar 85 Chairperson 

2. Mr. Ramadass Kasameni. dependent Director 55 Member 

3, Mr. P. Madhava Rao |, Independent Director as Member 

This commitioe recommends the appointmantreappeintmant of executive dirociors and the appointments of 

employees from fhe level of vice-president and above along with the remureration 10 be paid © Mem The 

rarmuneration is fixed keeping in mind the persons track mcord, hisher potertial individual performance, tha market 

trends dnd scales prevailing in the similar industny 

i Attendance during lhe-year 

The Nomination and Remunerstion Committee met 3 (Three) times, duting the financial year under review, an 20+ 

04-2022, 11-08-2022 and 11-11-2022 The attendance of the meeting by the members of the: Committee as 

recorded fe 38 Unda 

SL Na, Nama of the Director Pasition No. pfmeetings Attended 

1 ‘Bmi, Ch. Lakshiml Kumari Chatrparson 3 

Mr. P Madhava Rao Memb 3 

3 Mr. Ramadass Kasarnenl Member 3 

fv. Remuneration Policy. 
The Policy provides for the following: 

a8) Attract recruit. and retain good and excepbonal talent: 

by List down the crtana for determining tha qualifications, positive attributes, and independance of the directors 
of the Company! 

¢)  Edsure hal the remuneration of the diredlors, key managerial personnel and olher employees is pedormands 
driven, molvalss them: recognizas thelr marits and achisvements and promotes exesilence in their performancs; 

df Metivale such parsannel fo align Weir individual inlerasts with fe interests of the Company, and further the 
interests of its stakeholders; 

&)  Enswe a transparent nomination process for direclors with the diversity of thought. expenance, krnwledge, 
perspegiive and gender in the Board; and 

fy Fulfil fhe Gompany's abjectives and goals, Including in. rlatinn lo good camporate gevemanoe, transparency, 
dnd sustained long-term value crayon for fis stakeholders, 

Critena for performance evaluation as laid-down by nemination and remuneration committas 

The performance al Directors is evaluated by the Beard (excluding the Director being evaluated) an the following 
criteria, as laid down by [he Nomination and Remuneration Commillee. 

Evaluation Criteria; 

+ Aglive Parficipation in Board discirssions and deliberations 

+» Contribution to development of strategy and risk management 

+ Guidance on corporate strategy, nsk policy, corporate govemancs practices 

«+ Independznos and unbiased decsonsiopnions sie 

v  Datails of Remuneration to Executive Directors 
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Of the Iotal & (Six) Directors, 3 (Three) are Executive Directors. The remuneration payablé Wo these dirsclors & 

determined by the Board an the recommentation of the Nomination and remuneration committee. This Is subject to 

thie approval of thie shareholders at the Annual General Mesting. THe non-executive directors Have dawn sittirig fees 

from the Company for allending the meelings of the board and the committees, Délatls of Remuneration of the 

executive Directors for the financlal year 2022-2023 are as follows: 

Bl Director Consolidatad Parguisiles, Pedfarmancs Sitlina Talal 
Na. Salary Allowances Bonus! Faas [Per 

{Par Month) and athor Iheantve/ (R=) Annum} 
(Rs) Benefits Commission (Rs) 

Stock Option 

1 Mr. N.Saethaigh 

Managing Direatar 5,00,600/- = - - f0,00,000 

2 Mr. Mohammad Shafi 

While-lime Director 3.00.000/- - = ~ 36.00,000 

3 Mr. Ramadas Kasamani, 
Independent Director = = = 50,000 B0,000 

a Mr. P. fadhava Rao, BN 

Independent Dirasior - - = 50,000 50.000 

5 Mr. Ch. Lakshiml Kumari, 

Indeparident Dirsctor = ¢ = 60,000 £0,000 

§ Mr. Madhu Malampat) 

Non-Exaoutivo & Non- 
Indepeandsiil Diracior 

Rasigned . - Nil Mil 
wea f 11-14-22 

@ Details of shareholding of Dirgctors as on 31% March 2023: 

Az on 31st March 2023, the Company had 3 (Three) Executive Dirpoiars, 3 (Three) Nen-Exsaitive Independent 

directors, the ana axecutive director and ong Non-Executive’ & Non-Indepandent Director holds aguily shams in the 

‘Company, Tha othar non-executive directors do nol Bold-any shares In the Company. The details are as follows: 

Mame of the Director Status Nn, of Sharesheld | Percentane (% jof 
otal shares 

Mr. Ramadas Kasamani Chalrman & . 
Independent Director Hil mil 

Fl Mr. Mama Saethalah Managing Director 23802 0.03 

| & Mr Mohammad Shafi Whale-time Director Nil Nil 

| a Mr. P. Madhava Ran Independant Dirsator Nil Nil 

g Smt Ch Lakshiml Kumar Independant Director Hil Ii 

| 8 Mr. Madhu Malarpall Mon-Executive & Man- 24000 boa 

(Resigned we f11-11-20p2) | Independent Director 
ff, STAKEHOLDERS'RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE; 

The Committees is empowered fo pverise the radressal of Shareholders/Investors Complaints! Gnevances pertiining to 
share anafers/ion-recsint of Annual Reparts/dividend payments, issue of duplicate share cerificates, transmission of 
shargs and other complaints eto. 

i CGompesibon of the Committes: 

The Stakeholders” Relationship Committee comprises of he following Members as on 31st March 2023, 

4. smi Ch. Lakshmi Kumar, Independant Direclor as Chairperson 

5 Mr P Madhava Rao, Independant Diregtor ps Member 
6. Mr. Mobarmimad Shafi, Whole-lrms Dirsctar as Member 

no CAttendanca during the year: 

The: Shateholdera/investors Grisvancas Commiltse! Stakeholders’ Relationstup Committes mat 4 (Four) limes during 
the year on 28-05-2022, 11-08-2022, 11-11-2022 and 13-02-2023, attendance of members of tha Committee as 
recortiad 1B as under 
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Si. Na, Name af the Direqtar Position Nao, of meilings attended 

1 Sm. Ch, Lakshmi Kumari Chairpersan | 4 

2 Mr. Mohammad Shafl, Member 

3 Mr. P. Madhava Rao Member | 4 

Name and Designation of Compliancs Officer: Mr. D. Malia Reddy, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer. 

Iv. Number of Shareholders’ Complaint received during the year under report: 

All the requests and complaints received from the shareholders were attended to within the sbpulated time and 
nothing was pending for disposai at the end of the year. During the period under review, the Company has no 

received the Complaints from Shareholders. 

v. Number of Complaints nol solved lo lhe sstislaction of Shareholders as on the dale ol approval of Olrectors 
Report-NIl 

vi. Number of Pending Complaints as on the date of approval of Directors Report - NI 

vil. E-megil ID lor redressal of Shareholders’ Grigyanoes; 

The Company has created a separate e-mail I cs@madhucomoom for the Grievance Redressal Division | 
Compliance Officer exclusively for the purpose of reglsteding and redressal of complaints by lwvestors! 

shareholders, 

. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS: 

I Location and Time for the last three Annual General Meetings held and 

ji Spogal resolutions passed in the last three Annual General Meatings held: Two Special Resolutions passed for the 
m-appointment of Independent Diraclars al 32™ Annual Gansral Meeting held on 28" September, 2022. 
The partictilars of pravious 3 (Three) Annual Genergl Mestings of the Company held js set out here under; 

Pariiculats Dale & Time | Vanue Special Resolution passed 
32M AGM 29-08-2027 Venue: Registered Office; Yag [Z(Two) Special Resolutions 

(R0Z1-2022) 300 PM Madhu Complex, 17-70. passed for tha re-appointment of 

Jubfipura; Khammam Independent Directors. 

319 AGM 30-04-2021 Desned Venus: Regd. Office: Nil 

(2020-2021) 3.00 PM Madhu Complex. 1-T-70, 

Jublipura, Khammam 

A0thAEM 05-12-2020 Boemed Venus, Regd. Office. Nil 

(20189-2020) 3.00 PM Madhu Complex, 
1-7-70, Jublipura, Khammam 

ili. Postal Ballot: 

During the year no resolution wae passed through postal ballet 
Maria of the business which i proposed to be transanted at the énsulng Annual General Mesting requires passing of 

‘a resolution through postal Ballot process. 

fw.  Mesting of Independent Directors 

Pursuant to the compani@s Act, 2013 read with rules made there under snd Secretarial Standard-| Issues by fhe 
Institute of Company Secrstarkes of Indla and SEB (LODR) Regulations, 2015 8 mesting of the Independent Direstars 
of the Company for the finano@| year 2022-2023 was held on 13" February, 2023; 

DISCLOSURES: 

Related Party Transaction (RPT): 

There has been no maledally significant Related Parfy Transactions (RFT) wiin the Company's promafers, 
directors, he niansgament. thelr subsidiaries or relatives which may have potential confllet with the Interests of the 
Company al large: Tha necessary disclosures regarding the Iransactions are given in he notes lo aooolnts. The 
Company has also formulated a policy on dealing with the Related Party Transactions and nocessary approval of the 
audit committee and Board of directors will be taken wherever required in accordance with the Policy. 

The Company has also formulated a policy for determining ha Material RPT and the details of such policy for dealing 
with RPT are disseminated in the website of the Company under the following Tink: nto. madhecon comiconporats 

investors html 
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Disqualification of Directors: As on March 31. 2023 nang of the Directors of he Company were disqualified under 

motion 164 (2) of the Companies Act, 2013. Carification by a company secretary in prasiice (0 the effect that none 
of the directors on the beard of he company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or dontinuing as 
dirsctors of companies by tha BoardMinistry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority. AS fequired under 
Schodufe V Part © Rogulation 10 Sub-rogulstions (i) of SEB (LODR) Regulations, 2015 disclosure was also made 
appropriately (Annexure = A). 

There is no non-compliance by the Company, penalties, and strictures imposed an the Company by SEB! of Statutory 

Authority. ar any matters: relating to capital markets during ihe (ast three years. 

Whistle Blower Policy. 

The Company has an established mechanism for Directors | Employees to report conuems aboul unethical bekavior, 
actual or suspected fraud, of violafion ofthe code of conduc! or efiics policy. I1.alse provides for adequate safeguards 
agains! victimization of direclosfemployess who aval of the mechanism. Thé Company has formulated a Polley of 
Vigil Mechanism and has established a meshanism that any personnel may ralse Reportable Matters within 60 days 
after becoming aware of the same. All suspected violations and Reportable Matters are reported (othe Chairman of 

the Auch Committee at e-mail |0. whisteblowsrfimadhucon.com. Key direotions/actions will be informed to the 
Managing Olrector of the Compary 

wo The CEQ cum Director and Managing Director has Issued canifioate pursuant to the: provisions of Listing Regulations 

vi 

will. 

cartfying that the financial statements do not contain any untrue statement and these statements reprosant a trua-and 

fair view of the Company's affairs. The sald certificate is annexed and forms part of the Annual Report 

Practising Company Secretaries Certificate on: Corporate Governanoe as refjuirad under Schedule VV. Part C of Listing 
Regulations annexed forming a pan of Corporate Govemancs Report. 

Subsidiary Companies. 

The financials af all the subsidiary companies have boan duly reviewed by he audil commifioe, Tha Board = also 
perodically informed about all significant ansactions and amdngements entorad into by the subsidiary companies. 

Thee Company has also formulated a policy for determining the Material Subsidiary and the details of such policy are 
disseminated in the website of the Company under the lollowing link: 

hip madhudon, com/corporate/investons him 

SEB! Prevention of Insider Trading. 

With SEBI imposing the responsibility of "Profebilion of Insider Trading” In the Organizations, Board lias designed a 

Codes of Conduct strictly in accordance with the Model Code of Conduel prescribed under SEB (Prohibition af Insider 

Trading) Regulations 2015. The Code, besides other relevant matters, prohibits an insider from dealing In the shares 

af the Company, while in possession of the unpublished price sensitive Information in relation to the Company. As an 

thie date, thers have been no vialations of insider trading regulation, 

Code of Conduct forthe Board of Dirgatars and the Senior Management 

The standards for busiiess conduct provide that the directors and the senior management will uphold ethical 
values and legal standards as he Company pursues ts objectives, and thal honesty snd personal intagrity will not 

be compromised undel any circumstances. The- Board of Directors has adopted 2 code of conduct for all Board 

members and senior managemsnt of the Company and affirmed its compliance on annual basis for ihe Financial 
Year ended 3st March 2023 In terms of compliance with the requirement of Regulation 468 of ithe Listing 
Regulations are disseminated in the website of the Company under the following link: 

hitp www madhucon,com/carpd late investors mm 

Distretionary requirements under Llsling Regulations: The Company has complied with &l the discretionary 
requirements of Corporate Governancs stipulated under Pant E of Schadila VV of the | sling Regulations, Cerificate (0 
this effect has been Issued by Mrs Véndra Madhumita, Pradiicing Company Ssorélary and Ihe same has bedn 

Incorparatsd as an Annexure 1o the Reporl 

SHAREHOLDER'S COMMUNICATION: 

The quadardy nancial provisiond| un-audiled saul af the Company published in the leading dally newspaper Within 
45 days from fhe end of the respective quarters and four quarter duly audited Within 60 deys as per the Regulation 
33 of Listing Regulations. 

The financlal calendar events of 2002-2023 relating to quarterly un-audited and quarterly and yeady Audited financial 
resus are as follows: 

Finaniial Resulls Reporitg for the : Far 2022-23 were announced on 

1st Quarter ended 307 June, 2022 ith August, 2022 

2rd Quarter shied 30th September, Z022 11th November, 2022 
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Ard Quarter sanded 31s] December, 2022. 13" Fabrudry, 2023 

Ath Quarter ane financial year ended 3181 March, 2023 16th May, 2023 

Il, The financial pravisional un-audifer rosulis are published In 2 leading daily newspaper in English and in Regional 

language having nationwide ciroulation vie Financial Express and Mana Telangana and are disseminated in the 
website of the Company under the following link: hitpo/feww.madhucon, com/FmenclislResults 31022023. pdf 

li. These financial provisional results and shamsholding pater arg submitted to National Stock Exchange in https: 
www canneciZnae cami ISTING! and 1a Bombay Stock Exchanges in hitp//listing bsaindia oom 

wv. Tha paformahce of the quarterly, all yesrly and gnnusl together with francs! results of the Company releasad time 
to hme in media by the press statements and also displays on Company's websalta 

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER'SINFORMATION: 

I, Financiat¥Ysar: 
The Company follows the financial year commencing fram 19 April to 31" March on consistant basis 

i. Listing on Stock Exchanges. 

Hombay Stock Exchange (BSE) 

Stock Code No: BSE - 531487 

National Stock Exchange (NSE) 

Stock Coda No.: NSE - MADHUGON 
iL ISIN: INE 378001032 

Iv. Markal Price Dala) 
High and Low during =ach month In lest financial year 2022-2023; 

High-and Low of Market Price of the Company's Equity Shares Traded on the BSE & NSE during the 12 months 
period ended 31st March 2023 are as under- 

A) NSE: 

Peariod High (Rs) Low (Rs. Mo. af Shares No. of Trades 

April 022 7.65 6.75 2.11480 737 

May. 2022 8.90 5.40 433,528 1,565 

June, 2092 8.90 5.70 3.70,929 1.047 
July, 2022 7.72 5.94 7.28257 2,301 

August, 2022 85 A.00 1.98.014 384 

Sepombor,2022 | 895 545. 8.03076 | 1.801 
October,2022 6:30 545 289084 | 1120. 
Movember, 2022 5.95 5.00 6.69129 1.451 

December, 2022 5.65 510 1,67.897 364 
January, 2023 6,85: 4.20 4.73925 1.418 

February, 2023 5.74 75 3,91,302 1.251 

March, 2029 4,80 168 423 625 1,142 

g) BSE 

Pariod High Low | Traded Guaniily ho. of 
(Rs) (Rs.} No. of Shares Trades 

April, 2022 805 5.70 9.83,800 Tar 

hay. 2022 5.80 5.40 483.041 1237 

Jie, 2022 6.90 4:80 5.26500 1046 

July, 2022 5,50 4.85 9,865,200 1500 

August, 2022 7.25 5.00 12,84,020 384 

September, 2022 6.95 545 8.044.545 1928 

Detober, 2022 8.30 5.45 2,99.660 1132 
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Novembsar, 2022 585 5.00 &,89,000 1452 

Dacember, 2022 B70 5.10 13,986,500 1363 

Jarry, 2023 5,45 4.45 5.25800 1244 

Fabruary, 2003 5.30 4.05 5,05,950 1284 

Match, 2023 4.80 3.40 41.800 1372 

vi. Registrar and Transfer Agents: 

a KFin Technologies Private Limited 
{Formerty known as Kany Fintech Private Limited) 

Karvy Salanium Tower B, Plot 31- 32, Gachibawl, 
Financial Distnot, Nanakramguda Hyderabad. 
Telangana-506032 

Pharma No,(40-87 161605 

vil. Share Transfar System 

All ther Shara Transfors that are received will be processed by the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents (RTA) and approved 
and registered by te Board of Directors within 15 days from the date of lodgment and de-mal requests ars omally 

confirmed within an average period of 15 days from the date of lodgment for transfar 

viii. Others: 

Sharsholders holding shaces In physical farm should communicate (he change of address, IF any, direcily 10 the 

Regisirars and Share Transfer Agent of the Company. 

It has become mandatory for transferees to furnish a copy of Permanent Accaunt Mumber for registration of transfer of 
shares held in physical mode, 

Shareholders holding shares m physical farm, who have nat avalled nomination facility and would like to do so are 
requested to aval the same, by submitting the nomination in Form Na. SH 13. the form will be made available on 

request Those holding shares in electronic form are advised to contact their DPs. 

A) Distribution of Shareholding as on 31s! March, 2028. 

Equity Share Enuity Sharshalders Equity Shares Amount 
holding of Numbers |% of Shareholders InAs 45 of holding 

naming! Value of 
Rs 1/- each 

1- 5000 19280 05.91 89,094,234 13.54 

5.001 - 10,000 418 208 31.08.8356 4.21 

10,001 - 20,000 183 0.95 27.22.5663 3.89 

20,001 - 30,000 B1 0.40 20,78.802 2.81 

30.001 - 40,000 a7 0.74 8.45247 1.28 

40,001 - 50,060 20 0.10 8,90,658 1.21 

50.001 - 1,00,000 40 0.20 28,29,096 363 

1,00,001 - Above “43 0.21 5.12.27 369 60.43 

Total 20.102 100.00 7.37.04.940.00 100.00 

ix. Dematerialization of shares and liquidity: 

T,36,08,130 Equity Shares equivalent to 93.75 % of the total equity share capital have been de-matenalized and 

1.86810 aren physical form equivalent to 0.26% as-on 31st March 2023. 

Elgtrunie Physical Mo, of Holders No. of Shares th to Equity 

NSOL aa69 54088193 73,50 

CpsL 11084 19519337 25 45 
Fhiysical EL] 186810 00.25 

Total 20102 7.37.94.940 100.00 
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Sharehglders are requested to convert their physical holding to demal /electronic farm through any of the DPs to avoid 

any possibiity of loss, mutilation er of physical share certificates and also to ensure safe and speedy transaction in 

setairities, 

# Outstanding GORsADRs\Warrants or any Convertible Instruments; converstan date and likely Impact on egulty - No 

iistanding instruments. 

®i, Plant Locations — Nat applicalkia since the Company (snot engaged in manufacturing activities 

xii. Address far Investors Correspondenca: 

Far any assistance in respect of sistus on Dematorialization of Shares, Transfer, Transmission, Transposition, ssue 
of Duplicatz Ceftificales, Change of Address elo. mambers are requested lo contact the following Registrar antl 
Transfer Agent of the Campany 

Is: Fin Technologies Pl Lid 
(Formerly known a3 Karvy Fintech Private Limited) 
Karvy Seleniurn Tower B, Plat 31-32, 
Gachibewll, Financial District, 
Nanakramauda Hyderabad, 
Telangana-500 032 
Phone No, 040-67 161608. 

For any queries regarding shares kald in Demat Form, members are requested to contac! their respective Depository 
Paricipants oo 

For any other information about the Company. members are requested to contaot the following offiver of the Company. 

Company Secralary & Compliance Officer 
Mr. D. Malla Reddy 
Corp. Off: "Madhucon House”, Phat No, 1128/4, 
Foard No 36, Jubilee Hills, Hyderabad — 500 033 India 

Telephone: (040) 23556001 /21 3/4 
Fax Mo: (040) 23556005 

E-Mail: cs@madhucon. corm 

11. LISTINGFEES: 

Listing fen has been paid to BSE and NSE within the prescribed ime limit as set in (he Listing Regulations for the Financial 
Year 2023-2024, 

12. RECONCILIATION OF SHARE CAPITALAUDIT: 

The Cuartarly Audit on Share Capital will be conduttad by Practicing Company Sseretary in accordance with circular of SEB) 
No. DAGC IFITTC/CIR-16/2002 dated 31% December 2002 and Certificates will be msusd acoordingly. 

14 DECLARATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT: 

| horeby confirm that the company has obtained from all the mambars of the Board and Senior Managament personnal, 
affirmations thal they have complied with cate of conduct for Board Members and séninn Management personnal in respect 

For and on behalf of the Board 

Nama Sesthaiah 
Place: Hydarabad Managing Director 

Date. 11-06-2023 DIN: 00784481 

26



MADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED <4 7 
[DELETE =) 

VMADHUMITA & ASSOCIATES 

PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY 

CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE REGULATIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

TO THE MEMBERS OF MADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED 

1. |, Vendra Madhumita, Company Secretary In Practice, the secretarial auditor of Madhucon Projects Limited 

“the Company") have examinsd the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by the Company, far the year 

ended March 31, 2023, Bs stipulated in regulations: 17 lo 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 4&2) and paras C and 

D of Schedule VV of the SEB| (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and amendments 

fram time to ime (Ihe "Listing Regulations”), 

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY 

2, The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. This 

responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of intemal cantrol and procedures to ensure 

compliance with the canditions of the Corporate Governance stipulated in the Listing Regulations, 

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY 

3 My examination is limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring 

the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. IL is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on 

the financial statements of the Company, 

&. | have examined lhe relevan! records and documents maintained by the Company for the purposes of 

providing reasonable assurance on the compliance with Corporate Governance requiremants by the Company. 

OPINION 

5. Based on my examination of the relevant records and according to the information. and explanations provided 

lo me and lhe represantallons provided by the Management, | cerlly that the Company has compliad with the 

conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in regutations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 46{2) and 

paras C and D of Schadile V of the Listing Regulations duting the year ended 31st March 2023, 

B. I, further state that such compliance ls naither an assurance as to the future viabllity of the Company nar the 
efficiency oreffectivensss with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

For V. Madhumita and Associates 
Company Secretaries 
Sdi- 
Vendra Madhumita Place: Hyderabad 
Proprietor Date: 24 June, 2023 
(ACS 52965; CP 19626) 
UDIN: AD52965E000494912 
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Annexure - A 

V MADHUMITA & ASSOCIATES 
PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY 

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

Pursuant to Requlation 34{3) and Schedule V Para C clauses (10)(i) of the SEBI {Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Requlations, 2015) 

To; 

The Members of 
Madhucon Projects Limited 
H. ne. 1-7-70, dublipura, 

Khammarm-507003, 
Telangana, India. 

We have examined the relevant regisiers, records, forms, relums and disclosures received from lhe Diregiors of 
MADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED having CIN: L74210TG1990PLC011114 and having registered office at H No, 1- 
7-70, Jublipura, Khammam, Telangana - 507003 IN (hereinafter referrad to as ‘the Company’), produced before me 
by the Company for the purpase of issuing this Certificate, In accordance with Regulation 34(3) rsad with Sghadule V 
Fara - C Sub clause 10(1) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Reguiremanis) Regulations; 2015. 
In my-opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (Including Directors identification 
Number (DIN) status at the portal www mea.gov.n} as considered necessary and explanations fumished to me by the 
Campany & [ts afficers, |, hereby perify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for 
the Finangial Year ending on 31" March, 2023 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing 
as Directors of companias by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such 
olher Statutory Authority. 

S.No Name of Director DIN 

1. POTLA MADHAVA RAD 00365838 

2 SEETHAIAH NAMA QO7HA4481 

3. RAMADAS KASARANENI 02182093 

4. CHINTHAPALLI LAKSHIMIKUMARI BE42473 

5. MOHAMMAD SHAE] 07178285 

8 VENKATESWARLU KOTHARALLI Da713108 

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board Is the responsibility of the 
management of the Company. My responsibility is lo express an opinion on these based on our verification. This 
certificate is neither. an assurance as io the future viabllity of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with 
which the management has conducted he affairs of the Company. 

For V. Madhumita and Associates 

Company Secretaries 
Sd/- 

Vendra Madhumita Place: Hyderabad 
Proprietor Date: 24 June, 2023 
(ACS 52965; CP 19628) 

LDIN: ADS2965E000494934 
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CEQJ/CFO/GM (Finance & Accounts) Cerlification 

In relation lo the Audited Financial Statements of the Company as al March 31, 2023; Mr, Nama Sesthaiah, 
Managing Director and Me. K, Venkaieswarlu, Diecor cum CFO of the Company gartify that: 

A. We have ravigived the financial statements and the cash flow statement lor the year and thal 10 the best 

of our kndwladge and belief: 

1. That the Financial statements do nol contain any materially unirie statement or omit any 
material factor contain statements that might be misleading; 

2. These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance 
wilh existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

B. To lhe bast of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered inte by. the Company during the year 
which Is fraudulent, legal ar violates the Company's code of conduct. ) 

0 Wa accapl the responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for inaneial reporting and 
that hay have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the: Company pertaining fo 
financial reporting and we have disclosed to the Auditors and Audit Committee, deficiencies In the 
design or operation of such Internal control If any of which we are aware and steps that we have 
taken or proposed fo take to rectily these deficiencies: 

DO. Further, we have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee. 

1. Significant changes ininternal control over financial reporting during the year, wherever applicable; 

2 Significant changes in accounting policies during the year and correct informatian has been 
disclosed In the nates to the financial statements in IND AS format, wherever applicable and 

3. instances of sgnificant fraud of which we hava become aware and involvement tharein, if any, of lhe 
management or an employee having a significant rale in Company's internal control 
system over fimancial reporting, wherever applicable, 

Sd/« Sd/- 
{K. Venkateswariy) (MN Seethaiah) 
Director cm CFO Managing Director & CEQ 
DiN: 08713108 DIN-0DTA4451 

Plage: Hyderabad 
Date: 1605-2023 
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V DHUMITA & ASSOCIATES 

PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY 

Form No. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 3157 MARCI, 2023 

[Pursiont to Section 20401) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No, 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment anil Remunerution of Manugerin] Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

Ta, 

The Members of 

MADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED 

CIN: L7T42I0TGH90PLC0 1 14 

H.No, 1-770, hublipur 

Khommam 

Telanaga- 507003 

1 have conducted the seerctanial audit of the compliance of applicable staory provisions and the 

adherence 10 good corporate pructices by Madbucon Projects Limited (hereinafter called the 

Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted ina manner that provided me a reasonable basis for 

eviluiting the corporate conducts/stututory eomplianees and expressing my opinion thereon. 

Based on my verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms und retuims filed and 

other records maintiined by the company and also the formation provided by the Company, iis 

officers. agents and authorized represenuatives during the conduct of secretarial audin, | hereby report 

that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering he Financial Year ended on 

March 31, 2023 (re: from April 01, 2022 fo March 31. 2023) complied with the statutory provisions 

listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Boards processes and complisnce-moechonism 

in place to the extent. in the manner and subject to the reporting mode hereafter: 

I hive examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and relums filed and other records 

maintained by the Company for the financial vear ended on 31 March, 2023 according to the 

provisions ofl 

a) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereymnder; 

b) The Seeurfties Compacts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ("SCRA and the rules made 

thereunder; 

cl The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

d) Foreign Exchange Management Act, [999 and the rules and regulations made 

thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment. Overseas Direct Investment and 

External Commurcial Borrowings, 

The following regulations and guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchidnge Board of India 

Act, 1992 ("SEB Act’) to the extent applicable: - 

i. The Securities nnd Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares ond 

lakenversy Regulations, 2011; Not applicable during the period under review 

i. The: Securities snd Exelwmge Board of Indie (Prohibition of Insider Treading) 

Regulations, 2013, as amended 

ii. The Secuniies und Exchange Board of Indig (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Roeguirbments) Regulations, 2015; 
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ivi The Secunties and Exchange Board of Indin (Share Based Employee Benefils) 

Regulations, 2004 and Securities and Exchange Bord of India (Share Bused 

Employes Benelits and Sweat Equity) Resulntions, 2021: Not applicable during the 

period under review 

wv, The Securities anit Exclionge Board of Indig (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 

Regularons, 2008; Not applicable during the period under review 

vi, The Securities and Exchange Board ol India (Registrars 10 an Issue and Share 

Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with 

client; 

wif, The Sceuritics und Exthanpe Board of Indic (Delisting of Equity Slutres) 

Regulations, 2021; Not applicable during the period under review 

vith, The Securities und Exchange Board of India (Buy-buck of Securities) Regulations. 

207%; Not applicable during the period under review and 

ix, The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulanons. 2015, as amended 

I have also exnmined complinnee with the applicahle clauses/regulations of the following: 

(i) Secreturial Standards issued ty The Institute of Company Secretames of India (1CS]) 

(in) The Company has complied with the requirements under the Equity Listing 

Agreements efiteried into with the BSE Limited, National Stock Exchange of India 

Limited, and the Securities und Exchange Board of nda (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations. 2015. 

During the period under riview the Company hos complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules; 

Regulations, Directions, Guidelines, Standards, ete. mentioned above. 

I further report tia the Board of Directors of the Company 1s duly constituted with proper balance of 
Exeoutive Directors. Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors, The changes in the 

composition al the Board of Directors that took place during the year under review were carried out in 

complisnee with the provisions of the Act. 

Adequate notice is given to all directors Ww schedule the Board Meetings, including Committees 
thereat, slong with agendas snd detailed notes on agenda were sent and o system exists for seeking wd 
obtmmng further information ond clinfiestions on the pgends tems before the meeting and for 
meaningful participation at the meeting, 

Majority decision 1s carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded 

as part ol minutes. 

| further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the 

size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable lwws. mules, 

reirilations, and guidelines: 

I fwrther: report that during the: sudit period there have been enbisted mujor actions or events 

andertaken by the Compiny which may have o major bearing on the Comparty’s affairs in pursuance 

of the above referred laws, rules, guidelines, stundards ele: - 

(0) The company has yet to transfer unpaid dividend relasing 10 Financial Years 2000.10 

te 2070-11 from unpaid dividend account to lnvestor Education and Protection Fund 

(IEPF) 
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(hy The company bus defaulted in repayment of dues to Banks sod Onancial institutions 

However, dues in cose of some banks were settled through “One time settlement”. 

(¢) The company bas petition pending case in NOLAT relating to one of the financial 

creditors. 

id pu
 Munpgerial remunerution paid by the compuny during the year 1s in excess of the 

lies specified under section 197 read with schedule V of Companies Act.2013. 

tod Incase of “Runcht Expresswoys Lid (REL). a step-down subsidiury of the company, 

CBI has filed FIR againsd REL, its Promoters and Directors on 12-03-2019 under 

Prevention of Conuption Act and Indium Penal Code, Subsequently, the Enforcement 

Directorate hos, aided the premises of “the compiny™ on 11-06-2021 and (he 

investigation is still pending. 

iF) As per the press release dated, 02-07-2022 and 17-10-2022 The Directorate of 

Enforcement hos provisionally attached immovable properties and other assets 

belonging to Madhucon Group of companies, its directors and promolers mon case 

against M/s Ranchi Expressway Ltd, under the provisions of PMLA, 2002. Further 

mvestigion is going on. 

The Independent Pircetors hove registered their names on HCA portal, for which the 

renewal is pending. 
LE 

I further report that the compliance of applicable financial laws, like direct and indirect wo laws by 

the Company. hus pot been reviewed by me since the sume bus been audited by Internal auditors, 

statutory auditors and other designated professionals. 

1 further report thet, having regard (o the complimdce system previuling in the Company wid on 
examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, ontest-check basis, the 
Company has complied with the specific industry/sector related lows as applicable except 

the following: 

1] Emplovess Provident Fund Scheme, 1952 fad the rules made there under as applicable is 

under Implementation 

Provident Fund commmissioner-1 of Madbapur, Hyderabad had initiated Proceedings against 
the Company for the recovery of past old dues relating 1o the=vedrs 2007 - 2008 & 2009 - 

2014. The Honourable High Court of Telangana Issued Stay on the Proceedings, 

1 have relied on the information supplied and representation made by the Company and its officers, 

agents, for systents snd mechanisms followed by the Company for compliance under the applicable 

Acts, Laws ond Regulations to the Company and my Annexed letter 15 tw be read along with this 
report 

For V Madhumita & Associates 
Company Secretaries 

Place: Hyderabad Proprietor 

Date: 24 June, 2023 Vindra Madhumita 
CP NO: 19626, ACS No: 52965 

UDIN;: A052965E000494881 
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ANNEXURE TO SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT (FORM MR-3 

Ta. 

The Members of 
MADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED 

CIN: E7421 01GI990PLCOT 14 

HI Ne 7-70, Jublipura 

Khammam 

Telunaganas ST003 

My Seeretarml Audit Report of even date is tobe read along with this letter, 

I. The complionce of provisions of all laws, rules. regulanons, standards applicable fo 

MADHUCON. PROJECTS LIMITED (the ‘Company’) is: the responsibility of the 

management of the Company. Our examination was limited to the verification of records and 

procedures: on test check basis for the purpose of issue of the Secretarial Audit Report. 

LE
] Mamtenunce of sécretarinl and other records of applicable lows is the responsibility of the 

management of the Company. Our responsibility 15 we issue Secretarial Audit Repo, based 

on the audit of the relevant records maintained and fumished wus by the Company, nlong 

with explanations where so required. 

30 We have followed the audit practices and processes as were uppropriste to obtain reasonable 

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the seeretarial and other legal records, legal 

compliance mechanism and corporate conduct. The verification was done on test check basis 

to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial and other records: We believe that the 

processes and practices: we Tollowtd. provides a rebsonuble basis for our opinion for the 

purpose of issue of the Secretarial Audit Report. 

4. We have not verified the correctness ind sppropridtencss of fnanclal records and Books of 

Accounts and Statutory Dues of the Company as commented by the Auditors. 

5, Wherever required, we have obrained the munagenient representation about the compliance of 

lwws. rules and regulations and major events during the audit period. 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company 

nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with ‘which the management has conducted the affairs of 

the Company. 

Vendra Madhumita 

CP NO: 19626, ACS No: 52965 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Members of M/s, Madhucon Projects Limited 

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements 

Qualified Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of M/s. Madhucon Projects Limited (‘the 
company”). which comprise the standalone balance sheet as at 31st March 2023, 
and the standalonestatement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive 
income), the standalone statement of changes in equityand the standalonestatement 

of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information 
required by the Companies Act, 2013 (*Act”) in the manner so required and give a 

true and fair view In conformity with the accounting principles generally accepled in 
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, itsloss and other 
comprehensive income, changes in squity and its cash flows for the year ended on 
that date. 

Basis for Qualified Opinion 

1. We refer to the carrying value of investments of Rs 1,34,212.99 lakhs held 

in subsidiaries/other companies and unsecured loans and advances of Rs 

5624.18 lakhs given by the company te its subsidiaries/other companies, Some of 

these have been incurring losses ‘and in case of some of the subsidiaries, net 

worth was fully or substantially eroded / Going Concern is affected. We are unable 
to comment upon the carrying value of investments and leans & advances, 
whether any provision for impairment in the value of investments and loans & 

advances is required; the effect of same upon the profitability could not be 

ascerlained in the absence of fair valuation. 

2. “The Company “has written back Trade Payables amounting to Nil and Rs 

10,001.95 lakhs for the quarter ended 31% March, 2023and for the Year ended 

31% March, 2023 respectively. 

3. "The Company "has written back Other Payables amounting to Rs 873.94 lakhs 

and Rs 1,211.82 lakhs for the quarter ended 31% March, 2023and for the Year 

ended 315" March, 2023 respectively. 

4. "The Company "has written off loans , advances and other Investments from 
Related Parties amounting to Rs 4,306.13 Lakhs and Rs 18,530.32 Lakhsfor the 

guarter ended 31%" March, 2023and for the Year ended 31% March, 2023 
respectivaly. 

35



MADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED 

“The Company “has written off advances from Other Parties amounting to Rs 

2,298.31 Lakhs and Rs 3.44654 Lakhs for the quarter ended 31% March, 
2023and for the Year ended 315 March, 2023 respectively. 

The company is yet to transfer unpaid dividend of an amount aggregating to 

Rs. 4.46 Lakhs relating to Financial Years 2009-10 to 2010-11 from unpaid 

dividend account to Investor Education-and Protection Fund (IEPF). 

‘The company” has defaulted in repayment of dues to Banks and financial 

institutions amounting to Rs 48,839.25 lakhs and Rs 4,508.69 lakhs respectively 

as per books of account and the same were classified as NPA by the lenders . 
Interest on these loans have not been provided for the FY 2018-19 to FY 2022-23. 

However Dues in case of some banks were settled through "One time setilement”, 

but entries in respect of OTS have nol been passed in the books of account and 

the effect of same has not been quantified and as such the impact of the same on 

profitability could nol be ascertained. 

Balance Confirmation in respect of the loans from banks have not been obtained. 

As per note in financial statement, One Financial Creditor Appeal and Company 

Appeal against NCLT order is pending with NCLAT. 

Undisputed Statutory dues in case of following are outstanding carried from previous 

Year: 

LUE =r] Dd
 

S.No: Name of the Status Nature of Due i Period Rs 

in Lakhs 

Distribution Tax & 

Interest an it 

Me Income Tax Act, 1961 Dividend 2011-12 to 2015-16 139.93 

funds and Miscellaneous 

provision act 1952 

The Employees Provident Provident fund 2013-14 to 2020-21 93.65 

Value Added Tax VAT payable 20 13-14 to 2017-18 9.77 

Works Contract Tax Works Contract Tax 2014-15 to 2017-18 611.42 

10. In view of losses incurred by “the company” andin the absence of prior 

approval from the lender banks and financial Instifutions. managerial 

remuneration of Rs. 104.51 Lakhs paid by the company during the year is in 

excess of the limits specified under section 197 read with schedule V of 

Companies Act, 2013. 
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11. The turnover and input credits as per the books of account are subject to 

reconciliation with the GST returns filed. 

12. Internal Audit has not been conducted for the period 01st April 2022 to 31% 

March 2023. Internal auditor has not been appointed for the period from 
October 2022. 

13. The Company has not produced Title Deeds in respect of certain immovable 

properties (lands) held. 

14. The Company” has given a Bank Guararitee for Rs 1,224.33 Lakhs on behalf of its 

step-down subsidiary “Vijayawada-Machilipatnam Expressways Limited" in favor of 

NHAI and the same was invoked in FY 2014-15 by NHAL The Company has 
accounted the invoked amount as receivable from *Vijayawada-Machilipatnam 

Expressways Limited" and subsequently “The Company” has written off the same by 

charging it to "Statement of Profit and Loss" in FY 2015-16. 

Consequent to receipt of claims on arbitration by “Vijayawada-Machilipatnam 
Exprassways Limited", an amount of Rs 1,955.00 lakhs was paid by "Vijayawada- 
Machilipatnam Expressways Limited" to "The Company”, against the invocation of 
Bark Guarantee, which is offered as income during the quarter ending 30-08-2022. 

15. In case of "Ranchi Expressways Lid (REL)", a step-down subsidiary of Ihe 

company, CBI has filed FIR against REL, its Promoters and Directors on 12-03-2019 

under Prevention of Corruption Act and Indian Penal Code. Subsequently, the 

Enforcement Directorate has raided the premises of “the company” on 11-06-2021 

and the investigation is under progress. 

16. As per the press release dated02-07-2022 and 17-10-2022TheDireclorate of 

Enforcement has provisionally attached 108immovable propertiesand 28 other 

assets worth Rs 96.21 Crore and Rs80.65 Crore respectively belonging to 

Madhucon Group of companies, ils directors and promoters in a case against Mis 

Ranchi Expressway Ltd, under the provisions of PMLA, 2002. Further investigation 

is going on. 

17. In the absence of confirmations of Trade payables, Trade Receivables and various 

advancesfloans, we are unable to comment on the extent to which such balances 

are payablefrecoverable, 

18. Balance confirmation of current accounts, which have become Dormant, are not 

obtained in case of Bank Branches at various project sites. 
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Matters Relating to Going Concern 

We draw attention to Note 2.45 to Standalone financial statements-"The 
Company's” current liabilities exceeded current assels and “The Company” has 

defaulted in payment of dues to banks, all these indicate a material uncertainty 
existing that may cast a significant doubt on “The Company's” ability to cantinue 
as a going concern. However, the management believes the use of going 
concern assumption on the preparation of lhe financial statements of “the 
company” is still appropriate in view of implementation of OTS agreements 
already entered into in case of some banks, and its continuing discussions with 
its lenders to obtain approval for and an appropriate debt resolution plan and 
also, that "The company” will continue to be in operation in the foreseeable 
future, 

Emphasis of Matter 

+ "The Company" has offered Rs. 259.60 Lakhs as Revenue during the year 
which was an Advance received against work bills from a step-down subsidiary. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 

significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These 

matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a 

whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion 

on these matters. 

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be 
communicated in our report 

1) The carrying value of investments held in and unsecured loans and 

advances given by the company to its subsidiaries, which have been 
incurring losses and in case of some of these companies, net worth was 
fully or substantially eroded. 

How the matter was addressed in our audit: 

We have examined the key controls in place for making Investments in 

subsidiaries. We assessed the networth of subsidiaries on the basis of latest 
available financial statements. In the absence of fair valuation of investments, 
taken Into account the management representations made for the internal 

assessments and initiatives to be implemented to improve the working of the 
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subsidiaries basing on which they are of the view that the carrying value of the 
investments and loans and advances are realizable at the value stated in the 
books and no impairment is considered. 

2) "The Company” has defaulted in repayment of dues to Banks and financial 
institutions All the loans oulstanding were classified as NPA by the Banks 
and Financial Institutions. Interest on these loans have not been provided 
for the financial years 2018-19 t02022-23.Dues in case of some banks were 
settled through "One time settlement”, but entries in respect of OTS have 
nol been passed in the books of account. 

How the matter was addressed in our audit : 

Dues in case of some of the banks were setiled through "Ong time 
seltlement” butentries in respect of OTS have not been effected in the books 
of accounts due to Procedural Formalitiesas explained by the management. 
However the same has been qualified in our Audit Report(Clause 7 of Basis 
for Qualified Opinion). 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified 

under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those 

Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the 

Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 

accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 

of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 

financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Acl, 2013 and the Rules 

there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities In accordance with 

these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we 

have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

In connection with our audit of the Information Other than the Standalone 

Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other 
information. The other information comprises the information included inthe 

Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexure fp Board's 
Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder's 
Information, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor's 
reporl thereon. 

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other 
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereen. 
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standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, 

in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our 

audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If,based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a malerial 
misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have 
nothing to report in this regard. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 

134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") with respect to the preparation of 

these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, 

financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance wilh the 
accounting principles generally accepted In India, including the accounting 
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of 
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and 
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls, that were operating sffectively for-ensuring he accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, relevant lo the preparation and presentation of the 
financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud orarror, 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company's ability to continua as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters 

relatedio going concem and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 

management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has 
no realistic alternative but to doso. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's 
financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objeclives are to obfain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone 
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantes thal an audit conducted 

in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatemenis can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users laken on the basis of these standalone financial slatements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
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« |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 

responsive lo those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a maternal misstatement 
resulting from fraud Is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, ar the override of internal 
control, 

+» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing cur opinion on whether 
the Company has adequate internal financial controls system In place and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls. 

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosuresmade by management, 

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 

exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's 
ability to continue as & going concern. If we conclude that a malerial uncertainty 
exists; we are required lo draw attention in our auditor's report lo lhe related 

disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our auditor's repert. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Company to cease lo continue as a going concem. 

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial 

statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner thal 
achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 

the planned scope and liming of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit, 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied 
with ‘relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and lo communicate with 
therm all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independance, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 

matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of 

the current period and are there fore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our 

auditor's report unless lawor regulation precludes public disclosure about them after or 

when, in extremely rare clrcumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 

communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 

reasonably be expected to out weigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order") issued 

by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of 

the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a slatement on [he malters Specified in 

paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we further report that: 

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the 
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit; 

b) Except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for 

Qualified Opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept 
by the Company so far as appears from our examination of those books; 

t) Except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for 

QualifiedOpinion the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including 
Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and the statement 
of changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of 
account; as perCompanies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended. 

d) Except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for 
Qualified Opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the 
applicable Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Acl, read 
with relevant rules issued there under. 

e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 
31, 2023, and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 
disqualified as on March 31, 2023, from being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164(2) of the Act. 

fi With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer 
to our separate report in "Annexure B'. 

g) In view of losses incurred by “the company” and in the absence of prior approval 
from the lender banks and financial Institutions, managerial remuneration of Rs. 
104.51 Lakhs paid by the company during the year is in excess of the limits 
specified under section 197 read with schedule V of Companies Act, 2013. 

h) With respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in 
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors} Rules, 2014 as 
amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us: 

I. The Company has disclosed the pending litigations which would impact its 
financial position in its noles to financial statemenls. 
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ii, The Company does not have long-term coniracts including derivative 
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

ii. The company is yeil lo transfer unpaid dividend of an amount 
aggregating to Rs. 4.46 Lakhs relating to Financial Years 2009-10 to 
2010-11 from unpaid dividend account to Investor Education and 
Protection Fund (IEPF). 

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge 
and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the 
aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from 
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by 
the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity 
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 

olherwise, that the Intermadiary shall, whether, direclly or indirectly lend or 

invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by 
or on behalf of the Company (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any 
guaraniee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

{b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge 

and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the 

aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or entity. 

including foreign entity {Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether 

recorded in writing or otherwise, thal the Company shall, whether, directly 

or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 

manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate 
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of 

the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

{c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable 

and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that 

has caused us fo believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and 

(ii} of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material 

misstaternent, 

v. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the 
year. 

For P.Murali&Co., 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No: 007257S 

A. Krishna Rao 
Partner 
Membership No. 020085 
UDIN: 23020085BGQFZB683 

Place: Hyderabad 
Date:16-05-2023 
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Annexure A to the Auditors Report 

Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors Report to the Members of Mis. 

Madhucon Projects Limited on the Financial Statements for the year ended 31% 

March 2023, we report that: 

In respect of the Company's Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets: 

a) 

« The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, 

including quantitativedetalls and situation of Property, Plant and 

Equipment. 

¢ The Company doesn't have any intangible assets. 

b) As explained to us, Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified 
by the management at regular intervals; as Informed to us no material 

discrepancies were noticed on such verffication. In our opinion, the frequency of 

verification is reasonable. 

¢) The Company has not produced Title Deeds in respect of certain immovable 

properties (lands)held, as such we are unable to provide the details as 
required. 

d) According to the information and explanations given lo usby the management the 

Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including 

right-of-use assels) during the year. 

e) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the company for holding 

any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 

1988) and rules made thereunder. 

a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to usthe 

Inventory has been physically verified during the year by the Management and in 

our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable. As per our observations 

the coverage and procedure of such verification was appropriate. and there are no 

major discrepancies found on and above 10% aggregately of such classes of 

invenlary. 
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b) The Company has nol been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs 5 

crore, in aggregate, al any points of timeduring the year, from banks or financial 

institutions on the basis of security of current assets . 

(a) The Company has not provided loans or provided advances in the naiure ofloans, 

or stood guarantee, or provided security to other entity during the year. 

{b} In our opinion, the leans provided and the lerms and conditions of the grant of 

loans, during the year are, prima facie,not prejudicial to the Company's interest. 

(c) In respect of loans granted by the Company, the schedule of repayment of 

principal and payment of interest has beenstipulated and the repayments of principal 
amounts and receipts of interest are generally been regular as per stipulation. 

(d) In respect of loans granted by the Company, there is no overdue amount 

remaining outstanding as atthe balance sheet date. 

(2) No loan granted by the Company which has fallen due during the year, has been 

renewed or extended or fresh loansgranted to settle the overdues of existing loans 

given to the same parties. 

(f) The Company has granted loans or advances in the nature of loans either 

repayable on demand or withoutspecifying any terms or period of repayment during 

the year.Aggregate amount of loans granted during the year Rs 4,946.54/-lakhs and 

outstanding balance as on 31st March, 2023 is Rs 18,432 .44/- lakhs. 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 

Company has complied with the provision of sections 185 and 186 of the Act to the 

extent applicable, in respect of loans, investments guarantees and security. 

During the year The Company has not accepled any deposits from the public covered 

under Sactlon 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed there under. 

Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is 

reguired to maintain cost records as specified under Section 148(1) of the Act in 

respect of its products. We have broadly reviewed the same, and are of the opinion 

that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and 

maintained. We have nol, however, made a detailed sxamination of the records with 

a view to detarmine whether they are accurate or complete. 
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vii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records 

of the company examined by us, in respect of the Statutory dues: 

a) There are some delays in depositing undispuled stalulory dues for the current 

year in case of Provident Fund, ESI Goods andService Tax, TDS. 

Undisputed amounts payable in respect of Statutory dues which were 

outstanding for more than six months from the date they became payable are as 

follows: 

S.No. Name of the Status Mature of Due Period Rs. 

in Lakhs 

1 | The Income Tax Act, 1961 Dividend Distribution 2011-12 to 2015-16 139.93 

Tax & Inlerast on il 

2 | The Employees Provident Provident fund 2013-14 to 2020-21 93.65 

funds and Miscellaneous 
provision act 1952 | 

3 | Value Added Tax VAT payable 2013-14 to 2017-18 9.77 

4 Works Contract Tax ‘Works Contract Tax 5014-15 to 2017-18 611.42 

bk) Details of dues of Sales tax, Entry tax, Service tax which have not been 

deposited as on March 31, 2023 on account of dispules are given below: 

Name of the | Forum where | Period to which | Amount involved 

Statule dispute is pending | the amount | (Rs.in lakhs) 
relates 

Sales Tax | Hon'bleHigh Court | 2001 to 2005 & | 637.42 
2009-10 

Entry Tax | Hon'ble High Court | 2015-16 & 2016- | 8.85 

17 

Service Tax | Settlement 2010-12 | 1,655.75 

Commission 
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There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been 

surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the 

Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). 

a) Based on the examination of books of account and related records and according 
to the information and explanations given by the management, the company has 

defaulted in repayment of dues lo financial institutions and banks during the year 

[Refer Clause? of Basis for Qualified Opinion], as follows: 

Delay in Principal and Interest payments: 
Amount in Rs.Lakhs 

Nature Name of the |Amount not Principal or | No. of days | Remarks, if 

Lender paid on due | Interest delay or | any 

dale unpaid 

‘Cash credit | Bank of India 2661.70 Principal 181 and | The loan 

above days | has become 

NPA 

Cash credil | Canara Bank 5768.56 Principal 181 and | The loan 

above days | has become 

NPA 

Cash credit | Axis Bank 338.37 Principal 181 and | The loan 

above days | has become 

1 NPA 
‘Cash credit | ICICI Bank 18625.35 | Principal 181 and | The loan 

above days | has become 

| I | NPA 
‘Cash credil | State Bank of | 4045.82 Principal 181 and |The loan 

India above days | has become 
NPA 

‘Cash credil | Punjab National | 4991 80 Principal 181 and | The loan 

Bank (Formerly above days | has become 
Oriental Bank of NPA 

Commerce) 

Cash credit | Kotak Mahindra | 2036.26 Principal 181 and | The loan 

Bank above days | has become 

NPA 

Cash credit | IDBI 5278.70 Principal 181 and | The loan 

above days | has become 
NPA 
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Term loan | NBFC 4000.00 Principal 181 and | The loan 

above days | has become 

NPA 

Interest on | Axis Bank 35.25 Interest 181 and | The loan 

loans above days | has become 

NPA 

Interest on | ICICI Bank 4107.30 Interest 181 and | The loan 

loans above days | has become 
NPA 

Interest on | IDB] Bank 348.19 Interest 181 and | The loan 

loans above days | has become 

NPA 

Interest on | Canara Bank 193.00 Interest 181 and | The loan 

loans above days | has become 
NPA 

Interest on | Punjab National | 249.40 Interest 181 and | The loan 
loans Bank(Formerly above days | has become 

Oriental Bank of NPA 

Commerce) 

Interest on | Stale Bank of 168.56 Interest 181 and | The loan 

loans India above days | has become 

NPA 

Interest on | NBFC 508.69 Interest 181 and | The loan 

loans above days | has become 
NPA 

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared 
a wilful defaulter by any bank or other lenders, 

¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and in our opinion, the 

Company has nol raised any term loans during the year. 

d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds 

raised on short-lerm basis have, prima facie, not beer used during the year for 

long-lerm purposes. 
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e) On an overall examination of the financial slalements of the Company, the 

Company has not laken any funds from anyentity or person on account of or 

to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries. 

f) The company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of 

securities held in itssubsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. 

a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further 

public offer (including debt instruments)during the year, 

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis 

of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has nol 

made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares orconvertible 

debentures(fully or partially or optionally convertible) during the year. 

Xi. 

a) No fraud by the Company and on the Company has been noticed or 
reported during the year. 

b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has 

been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed underrule 13 of Companies (Audit 

and Auditors) Rules; 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and 

up to the dale of this report. 

c) We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by 

the Company during the year and up tothe date of this report. 

xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of 

the Order is nol applicable. 

xiii. In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 with respect to applicabletransactions with the related 
parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the 

standalone financial statements as required by the applicable accounting 

standards, 

xiv. Internal Audit has not been conducted for the period 01st April 2022 to 31st 

March 2023, Internal auditor has not been appointed for the period from 

October 2022. 
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xv. In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash 

transactions with ils Directors or personsconnected with its directors. As per 

the provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 

xvi. 

a) The Company is nol required lo be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve 

Bank of India Act, 1934. 

b) The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance 

‘activities . 

¢) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the 

regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of 

the Order Is not applicable. 

d) There is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core 

Investment Companies(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) 

xvil. The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year and incurred 
cash loss of Rs (2,884) lakhs In the immediately preceding financial year 2021-22. 

Further we state that the effect of anlnquantified Qualification (Refer Clause 7 of 

Basis For Qualified Opinion) on the figure of cash losses, has not been taken into 

consideration for the purpose of making comments in respect of this clause. 

#viii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the 

year. 

xix. According to the Information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the 

financial ratios, ageing and expected dales of realization of financial assets and 

payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial 

slatemenls, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and 

based on our examination of evidence supporting the assumptions, we conclude 

based on the information obtained from the management and audit procedures 

performed that material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicate 

that the Company is nol capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of 

balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of ane year from the balance 

sheel dale, which depend on the oulcome of the management planson the 

discussions with its lenders to obtain approval for and implementation of appropriate 

dabt resolution plan (Refer note on Going Concern 2.45). 

50



MADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED = 

XK. 

LAN 

Dd
 

LUE =r] 

In view of the losses incurred by the company, it is nol covered under the provisions 

of section 135 of the companies act 2013. 

The qualifications or adverseremarks by the respeclive auditors in the Companies 

(Auditor's Report) Order (CARO) reports of the companies included in the 

consolidated financial statements, the details of the companies and the clauses of the 

CARO report containing the qualifications or adverse remarks - 

S | Name CIN | Holding Clause 
No Company/subsidiary | number of 

{Step down the CARO 

subsidiary report which 

Associata/Joint is qualified or 

Venture adverse 
1 | TN(DK) U45200TG2006PLC048941 | Step down | (vii), (ix), 

EXPRESSWAYS subsidiary (xiii). (xiv) 

LIMITED —— 
2 | TRICHY- U45200TG2006PLC049815 | Step down | (vii), (ix), 

THANJAVUR subsidiary (xiii), (xiv), (xix) 

EXPRESSWAYS 

LIMITED 

3 | CHHAPRA- LI45209TG2010PLCOBET42 | Step down | (ix), (xiii), (xiv) 

HAJIPUR subsidiary 

EXPRESSWAYS 

| LIMITED | 

4 | BARASAT- U45203TG2011PLCO73469 | Step down | (ix).(xiil), (xix) 

KRISHNAGAR subsidiary 

EXPRESSWAYS 

LIMITED a 
5 | VIJAYAWADA- U45209AP2011PLCO77676 | Step down | (xvii), (xix) 

MACHILIPATHAM subsidiary 

EXPRESSWAYS 

LIMITED 

6 | RAJAULI- U45203TG2012PLCOBOTTS | Step down | (xix) 

BAKHTIYARPUR subsidiary 

EXPRESSWAYS 

| LIMITED ! 

7 | MADURAI- U45203TG2006PLCO50114 | Subsidiary (vii) (lx), 

TUTICORIN (xiii) (xiv), (xix) 
EXPRESSWAYS 

[LIMITED 
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8 | NAMA HOTELS | U55101TG2007PTC056818 | Subsidiary (vil), (xiv) 
PRIVATE LIMITED 

9 | MADHUCON U45209TG2007PTC056733 | Subsidiary (vii), (xiv), 
HEIGHTS (xix) 
PRIVATE LIMITED 

10 | MADHUCON U45400TG2007PTCO56734 | Subsidiary (vii), (xiv) 
MEGA MALL 
PRIVATE LIMITED 

11 | MADHUCON TOLL | U83000TG2008PLC0B0479 | Subsidiary (vif), (xvi) 
HIGHWAYS 

LIMITED 

12 | MADHUCON INFRA | U45200TG2006PLC048235 | Subsidiary (vil). (ix), (xiv), 
LIMITED! (xix) 

13 | RANCHI U45209TG2011PLCO73568 | Step down | (vii), (ix), (xiv), 
EXPRESSWAYS subsidiary (xix) 
LIMITED 

For P. Murali& Co, 

Chartered Accountants, 

FRN No: 0072578 

A Krishna Rao 

Partner 

Membership No:020085 

UDIN: 23020085BGQFZ8683 

Place: Hyderabad 
Date: 16-05-2023 
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under clause (i) 

of the Sub-section 3 of the Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘The Act’) 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s. Madhucon 

Projects Limited (‘the company’) as of 31% March 2023 in conjunction with our audit of 

Financial Slatemanis of the company for the year ended on thal dale. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 

financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established 

by the company considering the essential components of intemal control slated in the 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issusd 

by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include 

the design, implementalion and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that 

were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 

including adherence toc company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention 

and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 

records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the 

Act. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company's Internal financial controls 

over financial reporting based on our Audit. We conducted our audit in accordance: with 

the Guidance note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting ( the 

"Guidance Note") and the standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 
143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an Audit of Internal Financial Controls, both 

applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and both Issued by the ICAL These 

standards and guidance note require that we comply wilh ethical requirements and plan 

and performed the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 

internal financial controls aver financial reporting was established and maintained and if 

such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of 

the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating 

effectiveness. Our Audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 

obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 

assessing the risk that a material weakness exists and testing and evaluating the design 

and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 

procedures selected depend on the Auditor's Judgment, including the assessment of the 

risk of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 

provide a basis for our audit epinion and the company’s intemal financial control system 

over financial reporting. 
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to 

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 

preparation of Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting principles: A Company's internal financial control over financial 

reporting includes these policies and procedures that (1) pertain lo the maintenance of 

records that, in reasonable detailed, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 

transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Financial Statements In 

acctirdance with generally accepled principles, and thal receipls and expenditures are 

being made only in accordance with authorization of management and directors of the 

Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely 

detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that 
could have a material effect on the Financial Statements. 

Inherent Limitation of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitation of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 

including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 

material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 

Projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting lo 

future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 

reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree 

of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Qualified Opinion 
In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matler described in the basis for 

qualified opinion, the company has in all material respectsreasonable internal financial 

controls system over financial reporting bul not adequate and such internal financial 

controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 312023 based 

on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the company 

cansidering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Mote on 

Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAL 

For P. Murali& Co., 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No: 0072575 

A Krishna Rao 
Partner 

Membership No; 020085 

UDIN: 23020085BGQFZ8683 

Place: Hyderabad 

Date: 16-05-2023 

54



‘Madhucon Projects Limited 
Balince Shivet ax at March 31, 2023 

{All the amounts are in lakhs except "No of Shares” , "Face value of Equity share” and Earning per shars) 
1 di lati 

Note [TE Ak st 
Eom oy Marah 31, 3025 Marih 31, 3023 

Hpu-G 

(i) fheogerrs, Plast and Kaige 20 ENCE 8 LH 

[b) Pinmocisl Asnets 
(hh Lgyeniinsgts 22 1.30 KFT AN | ARNE IN 

(1) Trade fren | valiles A3 a HR | ek 

fay, oommmpres 44 12481841 

Lis Chdtere Einnntind Aline 25 nEr4ar 

[rg Deeeared tus Kosa {uf EX 1. ETRnS 

(Lp Ciedasy Biges (Duin) Anauis 7 1.20% An 

Total Ho Annis . hSRad.06 | AIT FITOS 
Current Asselin 

(i) leypainiine aN To 3A AMET HA 
hy Vi FET 

11 “Frode Rednivatiben 295 413 = 10.00 

fin Cay ated Cond anopidorts Se TAA 1 IF5T = 

fein Crilkers Minaminnl Kneis 4.1 Had 97 ER EEN] 

Lo Le ie Thon Adis (Wie) J 1r TET BHTT.OE 

|W} Clidsey Cixrpesit Ssidess 21M 18 A948 0% [YS Wii] 

Tors) “Aunmte 34,383.50 TERT 

Total Assetn 2,15,875.57 2,47.060.08 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Equity 
J] Bguastie fuse cagpial 214 [RE 

[Bi Oiler Erpaily 213 

Tutal Eynity s3.430.00 52,231.38 | 
LIARILTTIES 

Han-Crrrent Liakilitio 

[a) Financial Lisbllizies 

[i Rarmmnngs 

(i) Troe Payahing EET 101400 7.470 00 

1A) (mal mjitsdmisteip tims wf alsiorm ails relaes 
tbc urpadl enaErpinive and 

[tf rota ousting dome ol creliimm pdr than 
Alli epterpellies sel simul) sli james 

fil Ebene Frmnmtiil Llsbdinken 21F a | 

fu) Proms Tile 1150 

Jig Le dee Aisi reid Loki Bailie aa bial 

Total Nop-Currest-Lishilitien B,A80.08 B, 768.87 
Llahiliies 

(8) Plummet] Tabilitio 
[- Hprrmrermgs 53.4798 11 SH aE 

Ally Trails Pryahins saa 
1A) bed] predated dims af ails er ostiirgilaes 
wrist snerprine: pad 

10] zatal ou ialenthng dyin of coedioem sure thas 
alti ron bre ises ml well serps | 

1h Ebi Finiseinl Lialiliees 14,955.78) [Rend 

[l} Cowie CTurenr Bikadatinog MT LE TIFT NR 

li Wemmaileing 2 LIE 10,994 A= 

iH) Shite) Too Elbe {| HAT RIES 

Total Current Elalilities §;R0,604.95 LAG, 348.72 

Tutsl Equity and Lishiltthes 21ESTSET 247.050.00 

Swrunouni osininny paces & Sores fu sogounis La 

The JBN HOLE se i ited] pun eof one otis finial stirrer 

AR pen i repo pons Hn assnnes 

For PME & Co. For nnd on behalf of the Board 

Clann Aremoalaiiy 

TIEN © DOFZISTE 

AMrishna Ren N. Beethalah Mohammad Shnfl 

Thre Monngng hrecior Whos tune Dineetor 

Menem & sdb GULL DI 00TRaqul DINO I TRSES 

LITA gdp a gr nana) 

Tosi = Hiptlra baud CHL Venlateswarlu Di. Malla Heddy 

Tint 1 Mug 1. 20 [Errotar mam CFD Company SeareinTy 

alt id Anon ACS URAY 

55



MADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED = E 

Madhucon Projects Limited 
Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year ended March 31, 2023 

1% in Lote] 

Note: Year ended Yeor ended 
Na, March 3], 2023 Match 31, 2022 

Ecame | 

Fever from Cperatinne fo SH Ee Te ES 

Clery Tneapre 2x7 10 40d TH 1.060,95 

Total Income 1,03. 485.42 T2,271.80 

Expernisci 
Car pl Majeriels Cammprrot] and Wik Exprenuss 375 2 ai hi qh &0d 33 

Euiplioyee Heilelits Doge ne 20 10 4 BAT fs 

Flame Cols 2.90 a7 417 34 

Tnprmeisting and wmirtizstnm expan EN fai 47E.06 

Qh’ Repeaters 2a 2HA1004 140A 

Total Bupenses 1,06,047,040 73,762.99 
Profit) Loss Before Tow before Exceptions] [toms [1,561,588 {1,511.19) 

Tipebdrrmeest af IHvestrmm 6 " 5 

Prafitf Loss Before Tox after Exceptional Items [1,561.58] [LE11.19) 

Tua Enponse 

Eurrent Ta (Indimne Tid 

Ipucicierie Tak Folia Heeedied _ —. 

Citflerad Tie 12.0070) 1; 870,13 

[3,007.69] 1,870.14 

Prafit Loss for the Yaar A44E.11 (3,381.33) 

Other Comprehensive Income | (Loss) 

Remnnsubement of the Delined Boned Mans 43.110 ~ 194k n 

Intrenne |Dermeane in hoTTmwing come pummel tn 

sppcabion of Kirctive Interest mato method 

Other Comprehennive Income J (Loon) for the year 43.00 19.48 
(net of tne] 

Total Compreliensive Inoome Lorn for the Ver 489.91 (3,361.88) 

Eamings per share of (see value of § 1 each 

Bande mod Hillibed 0.60 [4.58] 

Sigman acenuring poles & Nores in aecounts Ro] 

The acodrnahnyiing miles are an bnvegral prt al thes spdociabore Damen] siabients 

An fuels ene aepETed vad dale miei 

For P.Murall & Co For and on behalf of the Board 
Chartered Atoms iE 

FRM (0287S 

AMrinhaa Rao MN. Seethaish Mohammad Shafi 

Partner Managing Director Whinle- Lime IHrector 

Mesibersbip Muy ber COURS IMH-D0T7 E4401 [MN-O0F1782R5 

uri 3naloiEL Gira 

Maer Hydermbsy K. Venkateswariu D. Malla Reddy 

Crete «Aline | Gh, 2023 Dredior cum CFO 

EIN-DET ATE 

Company Secretary 

ACS: D550 

56 

tlhe (Lessin



= 
ADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED ZT MADHUCON PROJE ITED S4% 

Makinesn Frofects inde 
perspec Egrigty fer ihe Wier saded Marsh 21,3053 

prim ris Capris sll] p TAT, WAT alli Pe 

JP—— 2s LL S—- 

oo . ca oki yy Hiatal Bakasew ar vhf wipmtly whale Babin an fe el 
Uhre 51 Alin bppigrmrriomg al iin Sduawy Captiad dui lrg of ot ir trpibal ding Wh (hadi 
LTE) bin Peni. [IIT Rm iar Li i 

fully, failiky 

2h Prins Bapmtlig Ped — i . EET 
. i re Tepe Sabi rd Bangs i Hil ut she wliy share es Al 

Blincs stahe pul 3 i, Frevimms papieting  epiteil mo 
smmal Praziom suse ich] 

§ Tan THES 

Hi) Cilbery eure 
Wi Eipann Reppin Propet [Lr 

- JUrmmrues dow) apps 

Share myles ~ — Ca and ety || KR rd i Sl Sn Fn Capili) Bes | Srrnirilies Semmes bie peal mr] wr angie |p pen | 

wikeiieg : : dream i | So 

(LE Ee TR EIT ET ER RE TR 

eat i pom 41] fides | edie [+L18T]| E28 ll 
Tittle iit Asta linn pecticl’ ov i 

[Fp | [reper oy ery We | 
ine rpeing perasd = ~ - - | - 
Fame ebayer ae nm oe | 
vy bl AT sags? H 412 
MET 2 — 

[ pa TTR § . 
Hwant 1 if | iil 

AT 1h dF i] 1 Foiialiog RICE] AlAGH W ELLE! i SLANE 

Raper Ts HE = Fram Ra paiiny Pened te = 

. Frail mphirtodint, o wi | 
ive wpgilicaa) iil | IHS = whet View gomm = anima EE) mdb 411 {li Leary if 

mal | Wille [ECE bdo Poul ie Pa divi Endrin Cable brs 4 ATE vi gt donde 

Lili din daithaiil wii “Tikal 

iiiace a) (3 Dein nf Rami | | 
trast : ELLEN dass) ssa {harm mm 
hanpes. mpeg poe of 
fine ia 

ETT iw VT Teg 1 | 

[LE TRE) cu aig 

| ! =re=j = mm [Bay i 
- - poNAT fim 5 in A 513 ETT 

For FMiEEl A On Far and on beball of ide Doan 
tear fermi 
Fill | BOTEETE 

AM bis ae MN. Besthiiah Mahatiiad hall 
Paitier Sef nrrag Fhreglas Pita dismie Paes ide 

Mambswwtmi fr TY FANDTTANS THE TITRE 
ITRAN. SdouNR ELC ZI 

Mijfe 80st E Vankslanwesly Matis Reddy 
Ten Me TE 3A Mrmr wn o£ Crm Sern 

TRARY LA TTR T=] 

57



1 
— 

MADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED = 4 = 
tela jess] 

Madhucon Projects Limited 

Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the Year ended March 31, 2023 
(a1 the amounts are in lakhs except “No of Shares” , "Face value of Equity share” and Earning pir shire) 

Tin Ladhs) 

Familie Yur ended Year ehided 
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

A|Cash flow from operating activities 

Brafit/ios) bufors Income ta 1841 o8f {1511.19} 

Adjustments fori 
Exceptional lem - - 

Depreciation and amortisation sspense 58194 A7H.04 
Pividend and interest income chissfied ag investing cash ows [+6 75) [113.84 
Finance costs 20297 4717.54 

Change in operating assets and liabilities 

{Ieresma) decrease in rade receivables 337.60 [E7481] 

(Inereans] decreane in (nyentrnes 172.0 $34.24 

[Imcrestis)/dorrease in athier finincial dst FA448.12 5.600 38 

[Incressel/decraase in alg) carrantand non-current asset Ab7.A0 &. 133.18 
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Incressef{decrossa) in other carrentand non-current [|zhilitiss LFF.AQ |B/B23.47) 

Ine reasef{deceaasal in Non current nvedt ments 9.001.080 = 
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Net cash inflow from operating activities 17,792.07 1,905.09 

&|Cash flows from investing activities 
Payments for propery, plant and equipment agen 33.34 

Faymants far purchase of nyestments x = 

Dividend paid - - 

|itueest preyed 36.75 11384 

Met cash outflow from investing activities 75.95 147.22 

€|Cash flows from financing activities - - 

froceeds/ (Repayment) of long term borrowings - (13.53) 

Proceeds from short teem barrawings (net) 115245:54) [1 (574.82) 

inferest pad (20297) [477.54] 

het cash outflow from financing activities {16.451.51) {2.005.90) 
Met increase /{decreasal in cash and cash equivalents [S8E.49) Af AT 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 1,057.89 1,011.48 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year AT4.41 1,057.89 

Reconsilintion of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash flow statement 

31 Moreh, 2023 31 March, 2022 
Cash and cath equivalents as per above comprine of the following 

Cushy and cash equivalents 474.41 1,057.89 

[Balances per statement of cash flows 474.41 1,057.89 

Significant accounting polices & Notes to accounts | &2 
The accompanying nites are an Integral pir of the standalone firancial statements In terms of our report attarhed 

For P.Murall & Co. For and on behalf of the Board 

Chil tera] Accountants 

FRN : BOTIS75 

AKrishna Rag N. Szethalah Mohammad Shafi 

Partrer Managng Director While-time Director 

Mamtership Number 020085 DIN-DO7E44T] DIM-G7178265 

LDR © 230200850 GOFIRGERS 

Place: Hyderabad K. Venhateswarlu D. Malla Reddy 
Dats: May 16, 2023 Chrgctor cum CFC Company Secretary 

CHN-D27I3108 ALS! 9559 
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements 

Company Overview: 
Madhucon Projects Limited (MPL) or ‘the Company” is an integrated construction, Infrastructure 
development and management Company. The Corporate Office of the Company is located at 'Madhucor 
House' Road No.36, Jubilee Hills, Hyderabad, India. 

The Company |s engaged in the business of development and execution of Engineering, Procurement 
and Construction (EPC) and Tumkey Projects in multiple sectors such as Transportation, Irrigation. Water 
Resource Infrastructures, Railways, development of smart cities and properties In Inclia. Completing the 
projects with high guality workmanship and commitment to excellence made the Company a leader in the 
industry. The Company is best in innovation, creativity and technological mastery, delivering top-quality 
work, ahead of schedule, in all seclors. A majority of the development projects of the Company are based 

on execution of Engineering, Procurement and Construction (EPC) and Turnkey Projects, 

Basis of preparation: 

A) 

B) 

C) 

Statement of compliance 
The standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian 
Agcounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Gampanies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 
(as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule Ill to the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

The standalone financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 

May 16, 2023. 

Detalls of the Company's accounting policies are Included in Mote 1. The accounting palicles set out below 
have been applied consistantly to the years presented |b the standalone financial statements. 

Basis of Measurement 
These financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except 
for carlain financial instruments which are measured at fair value In accordance with Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS). Historical cost |s generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in 
exchange for goods and services, 

The Balance Shesl, the Statement of Profit and Loss and OC| are prepared and presented in the format 

prescribed in the Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’). The statement of cash flows has 

been prepared and presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash flows". The 

disclosure requirements with respect to items in the Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss, as 
prescribed in the Schedule Ill to the Act, are presented by way of notes forming part of the financial 
statements alond with the other notes required to be disclosed under the notified Accounting Standards and 
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015-as amended, 

Functional and presentation currency 

Amounts in the financial stalements are presented in Indian Rupees in lakhs rounded off to two decimal 
places as permitted by Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. Per share rata are presented in Indian 
Rupees to two decimals places. 
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements 

1. Summary of significant accounting policies 

1.1 Current versus non-current classification 

The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle. The operating cycle is the lime between 
the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents. 

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheel based on current! non-cument 
classification, 
An asset is treated as current when it is: 

+ Expected fo be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle 
= Held primarily for the purpose of trading 
» Expected to be realised within twelve months after the repaerting period, or 

= Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used lo settle a liability for at least 
twelve months after the reporting period, 

All other asseis are classified as non-current. 

All liability is current when: 
+ |tis held primarily for the purpose of trading 
+ |tis due to be settled within twelve months after the reparting period, or 
» There is no unconditional right lo defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the 

reporting period 

The Company classifies all other ligbiliies as non-current. 

Deferred tax assels and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 

1.2 Foreign exchange translation and foreign currency transactions: 
The functional currency and presentation currency of the Company is Indian rupees. 

Foreign currency transactions ‘are accounted at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of transactions. 

Gains and losses resulting from settlement of such transactions are recognised in the Statement of Profit 

and Loss. 

Monetary assets and liabilities related to foreign currency transaclions remaining unsetiled at the end of 
the year are translated at year end rales. The difference in translation of monetary assets and liabilities 
and realised gains and losses on foreign exchange transactions are recognised in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss. 

1.3 Fair value measurement 
Financial mstruments are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of 
the instrument. Fair value Is the price that would be received to sell an assel or paid lo transfer a liability in 
an orderly transactionbelween marke! participants al the measurement date. The fair value measurement is 
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability lakes place either; 
- in the principal marke! for the asset or liability, or 
- in the absence of a principal market, in the mostadvantageous market for the asset or liability 

The principal or the most advantageous market must beaccessible by the Company. 

Tha fair value of an asset or a liability Is measured usingthe assumptions that markat parficipants would 
usewhen pricing the asset or liability, assuming that marketparticipants act in their economic best interest. 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takesinto account a markel parficipanl's ability to 
generateeconomic benefits by using the asset in its highest andbest use or by selling il to another market 
participant thatwould use the asset in its highest and best use. 
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The Company uses valuation lechnigues thal arsappropriate in the ciroumstances and for which 

sufficlentdata Is available to measure fair value, maximising the useof relevant observable inputs and 
minimising the use ofuncbservable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measuredor disclosed in the standalone financial statements 

arecategorised within the fair value hierarchy, described asfollows, based on the lowest level input (hat is 
significantto the fair value measurement as a whole: 

Level 1 - Quoted (Unadjusted) market prices in activemnarkets for identical assets or liabilities 

Leval 2- Valuation technigues for which the lowest levelinput that is significant to the fair value 
measurement isdirectly or indirectly observable 

Level 3 -Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input thal is significant to the fair value 

measuremsnt is unobservable 

For assels and liabilities thal are recognised in the standalone financial statements, the 

Companydelermines whether franslers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing 
categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant fo the fair value measuremant as a whole) 
at the end of each reporting period. 

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities 
which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting policies. For this 

analysis, the Management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the 
information in lhe valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents. 

The managemenl alse compares the change in the fair value of each assel and liability with relevant 
external sources lo determine whether the change is reasonable. On an annual basis, the Management 
presenis thevaluation resdlis lo the Audit Committee and theCompany's Independent auditors. This 
includes adetailed discussion of the major assumptions used in thevaluations, 

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Companyhas determined classes of assets and liabilities on 
thebasis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the assetor lability and the level of the fair value 
hierarchy asexplained above. 

1.4 Use of Accounting Estimates & Assumptions: 
The preparation of the financlal stalements requires that the management lo make estimales and 
assumptions hat affect the reported amounts of asses and liabilities and disclosure of contingent 
liabilities as at the date of financial statements and the results of operation during the reported period. 

Although these estimates are based upon management's best Knowledge of current events and actions, 
actual results could differ from these estimales which are recognised in the period in which they are 
determined. 

1.5 Revenue recognition 

The Company has adopted Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, The Company has 
applied the following accounting policy for revenue recognition: 

Revenue fram contracts with customers: 

The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five step model as set out in 
Ihd AS 115; 
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Step 1. Identify the contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an agresment between two or 

more parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract that 
must be met. 

Step 2. Identify the performance obligations in lhe contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a 
contract with a customer lo transfer a good of service to the customer, 

Step 3. Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the 
Company expects lo be enlitied in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, 
excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties. 

Step 4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract: For a contract that 
has more than one performance obligation, the Company will allocate the transaction price lo each 
performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the Company 
expects to be enlilled in exchange for satisfying each performance obligation. 

Step 5. Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance abligation. 

The Company satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the following 
critena is met: 

1. The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the 

Company'sperformance as the Company performs; or 

2. The Company's performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset s 
crealed or enhanced; or 

3. The Company's performance does nol create an asset with an alternative use to the Company andthe 
entity has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date. 

Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price 

(net of variable consideration) allocated to that performance obligation. The 

transaction price of goods sold and services rendered is net of variable consideration on account of 
various discounts and schemes offered by the Company as part of the contract. 

Contract revenue (construction contracts) 

Revenue from works contracts, where the oulcome can be estimated reliably, is recognised under 
thepercentage of completion method by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity. The 
stage of completion is measured by calculating the proportion that costs incurred to date bear to the 
estimated total costs of a contract. Determination of revenues under the percentage of completion method 
necessarily involves making estimates by the management, 

When the Company salisfies a performance obligation by delivering the promised goods or services it 
creates a conlract assel based on the amount of consideration to be seamed by the performance. Where 
the amount of consideration received from a customer exceeds the amount of revenue recognised his 
gives rise to a contract liability. 

Any variations in contract work, claims, and incentive payments are included in the transaction price if it is 
highly probable thal a significant reversal of revenue will nat occur once associated unceraintias are 
resolved. 

Consideration is adjusted for the time value of money if the period between the lransler of goods or 
services and the receipt of payment exceeds twelve months and there is a significant financing benefit 
either to the customer or the Company. 
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Revenue is recognised 1o the extent that it Is probable thal the ecanoimic benefits will flow 1o the Company 
and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revanue Is 
measured al the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually 

defined terms of payment and Including taxes or duties collected as principal contractor. 

Revenue eamed in excess of billing has been reflected as unbilled revenue and billing in excess of 
revenue has been reflected as uneamed revenue. 

Operation and maintenance contracts 

Revenue from maintenance contracts are recognized over the period of the contract as and when 
services are rendered. 

Other Income: 

Dividend Income: 
Dividend income from Investments is recognised when the shareholder's right to receive payment has 
been eslablished. 

Interest Income: 
Interest income from a financial asset fs recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will 
flow to the company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income Is accrued on a 
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is 
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial 
asset lo that asset's nel carrying amount on initial recognition. 

Contract balances 

Contract assets 
A contract asset is the nght to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the 
customer. If the Company performs its obligations by transferring goods or services to a customer before 
the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised forthe earned 

consideration that is conditional. The contractassets are transferred to receivables when the rightsbecome 

unconditional. 

Trade receivables 
A recelvable represents the Company's right to anamount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e. 
onlythe passage of time is required before payment of theconsideration Is dug). 

Contract liabilities 
A contract lability is the obligation to transfer goodsor services fo a customer for which the Company 
hasreceived consideration {or an amount of consideration isdue) from the customer. If a customer pays 
considerationbefore the Company transfers goods or services lo thecustomer, a contract liability is 
recognised when thepayrment |s made or the payment Is due (whichever [searlier). Contract liabilities are 
recognised as revenuewhen the Company performs under the contract, 

1.6Taxes on Income 
Income tax expense represents sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax 

Current Tax 

Current tax is the amount of lax payable on the laxable income for the year as determined in accordance 
with Ite applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income tax Act, 1961, 
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Deferred tax 
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 
in the Company's financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used In the computation of taxable 
profit. 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. excepl! 

» When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a 
transaction lhat is not a business combination and al the time of the transaction, affects neither the 
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss. 

» In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing 
of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary 
differences will not raversa in the foreseeable fulure. 

Deferred tax assels are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent thal il is 
prabable thal taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be 

ulilised. Such deferred tax assels and liabilities are nol recognised If the lemporary differences arise from 

the Initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit rior the 
accounting profit, 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent 
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred 
tax asset lo be ulilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are 

recognised lo the exlent that it has become probable thal future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax 
assel lo be recoverad, 

Deferred tax assefs and liabilities are measured at the tax rales that are expecied to apply in the period in 
which the liability is settled ar the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted 
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to get off 
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred (axes relaie to the same taxable entily and 

thie same taxation authority. 

1.7 Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs directly altributable lo the acquisition, censiruction or production of an asset thal 

necessarily takes a substantial period of lime to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as 
part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they oceur, 
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of 
funds. 

1.8 Contingent Liabilities and Contingent assets 
A disclosure for Contingent liabilities is made in the notes on accounts when there |s a possible obligation 
or present obligations thal may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. A contingent 
liabilities arises where thers isa a liability that cannot be reconginsed because il cannot be measured 
reliably, 

A contingent asset is not recognised unless it becomes virtually certain that an inflow of economic banefits 
will arise. When an inflow of economic benefits is probable, contingent assets are disclosed in the 
standalone financialstatements. 

Cornitingenit liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance shee! date. 
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1.9 Provisions 

Notes forming part of Financial Statements 

The Company recognises provisions when there is present obligation as a result of past event and it is 
probahle that there will be an outflow of resources and reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the: 

obligation. 

1.10 Investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures 

The Company accounts for the investments in equity shares of subsidiaries and joint ventures al cos! in 
accordance with Ind AS 27- Separate Financial Statements. The Company reviews its carrying value of 
investments carried at amortised cost annually, or more frequently when there is indication for impairment. 

if the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is accounted for. On 
disposal of investments in subsidianes and joint venture, the differance between net disposal proceeds 
and the carrying amounts are recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss. 

1.11 Employee Benefits: 
Provident fund is defined Contribution scheme and contributions are charged to profit and loss account of 

the year when the coniributiohs lo the respective funds are due. Other retirement benefiis such as 

Gratuity, leave encashment etc., are recognized on basis of the independent actuarial valuation. 

1.12Financial Instruments: 
Financial assets and financial Habilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at 
transaction values and where such values are different from the fair value, at fair value. Transaction costs 
that arg directly atiributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assels and financial liabllities (other than 
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from 
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction 

costs directly atiributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

A. Financial Assets 
Financial assels are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the. 
instruments. Financial assels other than trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value plus 
transaction costs for all financial assets nol carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assels 
carried at fair value: through profit or loss is initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are 
expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
Subsequent Measurement 
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assels are classified In following calegaries: 

(a) Financial Assets at Amortised Cost 
A financial asset is subsequently measured al amortised cost if il is held within a business model whose 
objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the 
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interast 
on the principal amount outstanding. 

(b) Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value 
A financial assel is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held 
within a business model Whose objective |s achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling 
financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows 
that are solely payments of principal and Interest on the principal amount outstanding. Further, in case 
where the company has made an Irrevocable selection based on its business modal, for its Investments 
which are classified as equity instruments, the subsequent changes in fair value are recognized in other 
comprehensive income. In any other case, financial asset is fair valued through profit and loss: 
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{¢} Impairment of Financial Assets 

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial 
assels which are not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no 
significanl financing companenl is measured al an amount equal lo lifetime ECL. For all other financial 
assels, expected credit losses are measured al an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has 

been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured at 
lifetime ECL. The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is reguired lo adjust the loss 
allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognised is recognised as an 
impairment gain or loss in statement of profit or loss. 

(d) De-recognition of Financial Assets 
The Company de-recognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 
asset expire, or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the 
asset lo another entity. If the Company neither fransfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards 
of ownership and continues to control the transtarred asset, the Company recognizes its retained interest 
in the assets and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. 

If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a ransferred financial asset, 
the Company continues to recognise the financial assel and also recognises a coltateralised borrowing far 
the proceeds received. 

B. Equity Instruments and Financial Liabilities 
Financial liabilities and eqully instruments issued by the Company are classified according le the 

substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an 
equity instrument. 

(a) Equity Instruments 
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest n the assets of the Company after 
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments which are issued for cash are recorded at the proceeds 

received, net of direct issue costs. Equity instruments which are issued for consideration other than cash 
are recorded al fair value of the equity instrument. 

{b) Financial Liabilities 
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVPL, loans and borrowings 
and payables as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of 
loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 

{c) Subsequent Measurement 
Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. For 
trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts 
approximate the fair value due lo the short maturity of these instruments, 

{d) De-recognition of Financial Liabilities 
Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, 

cancelled or expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on 
subslantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substanlially modified, such an 
exchange or modification is treated as de-recognition of the original liability and recognition of a new 
liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss. 

C. Offsetting Financial Instruments 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are ofiset and (he net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if 
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offsel the recognised amounts and there is an intention to 
sellle on a net basis lo realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 
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1.13Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash al banks and an hand and demand deposits 
with an ariginal maturity of three months or less and highly liquid investments that are readily convertible 
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant nsk of changes in value net of 
outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the company's cash management. 

1.14Earnings per Share: 
Basic earnings per equity share are computed by dividing the nel profit of loss for the year attributable to 
the Equity Shareholders by lhe weighted average number of equity shares oulstanding during the year. 
Diluted earnings per share Is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the year, adjusted for the 

effects of dilutive potential equity shares, attributable to the Equity Shareholders by the weighted average 
number of the equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares putstanding during the year except where 
the results are-anti-dilutive. 

1.15 Lease 
The Company has no leasas or any contract containing lease and acoordingly, no disclosure has been 
made on the same: 

1.16 Impairment of non-financial assets 

Mon-financial assets other than inventories, deferred tax assets and non-current asseis classified as held 

for sale are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date to determine whether there is any Indication of 
impairment. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing 
for an asset is required, the Corporation estimates fhe assel's recoverable amount. The recoverable 
amount is the higher of the asset's or Cash-Generating Unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and 
its value Ih use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not 
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from olher assets or groups of assets, 

When the carrying amount of an asset or CGL exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered 
impaired and is written down ta its recoverable amount. 

1.17 Schedule lll amendment disclosures: 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") Issued notification dated March 24, 2021 to amend Schedule [Il of 
the Companies Act, 2013 to enhance the disclosures required to be made by the Company in its financial 
slatements. These amendments are applicable lo the Company for the financial year starting April 1, 2021 
and applied lo the standalone financial statements; 

+ Certain additional disclosures in the statement of changes in equity such as changes In equity share 
capital due lo prior period errors and restated balances al the beginning of the current reporting 
period. 

= Additional disclosure for shareholding of promoters. 
+ Additional disclosure for ageing schedule of trade receivables, trade payables and capital work-in- 
progress. 

+ Speciiic disclosure such as compliance with approved schemes of arrangements, compliance with 
number of layers of companies, litle deeds of immovable property not held in name of company, 

loans and advances to promoters, directors, key managerial personnel (KMP) and related parties ele. 
« Additional disclosure for relating to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) and undisclosed income. 

1.18Cash flow statement: 
Cash flow statement is prepared segregating the cash flows from operating, investing and 
financing activities. Cash flow from operating activities is reported using indirect method. Under the 
indirect method, the net profitf{lass) is adjusted for the effects oft 
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|. Changes during the year in inventorias and operating receivables and payables and transactions of 
a non-cash nature; 

ii. Non-cash items such as depreciation, provisions, unrealised foreign currency gains and losses. and 
undistributed profits of associates; and 

iil, All other tems for which the cash effects are investing or financing cash lows, 

The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company |s segregated based on 
the available information. Cash and cash equivalents (including bank balances) are reflected as such in 
the Cash Flow Statement. 

1.19Property, Plant and Equipment 

Froperty, Plant and Eguipment are stated at cost of acquisition including any directly attributable 
axpendilure on making the asset ready for ils intended use, attributable interest and finance costs, if any, 
till the date of acquisition/ installation of the assets less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, 

if any, Subsequent expenditure relating to Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalised only when it Is 
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of 
the itern can be measured reliably. An lem of properly, plant and equipment Is derecognised upon 
disposal or when no fulure economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset, 

On transition lo Ind AS, the Company has opted to continue with the carrying values measured under the 

previous GAAP as at April 01, 2015 of its Property, Plant and Equipment and use the camying value as 
deemed cost of the Property; Plant and Equipment on the date of transition i.e April 01, 2015. 

1.20Intangible Assets 
Identifiable intangible assets are recognised when the Company controls the assel. it is probable that 
future economic benefits attributed lo the asset will fiow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be 

reliably measured. Infangible assets are stated al cost, less accumulated amortisation and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any. The estimated useful life and amortization methed reviewed at the end of rach 
reporting penod, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. 

1.21Depreciation/ Amortisation 
Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an assel. or other amount substituted for cost less ils 
estimated residual value. Depraciation on Property, Plant and Equipment have been provided on Stralght- 

Line method in accordance with the Schedule ll of the Companies Act, 2013, based on the useful life 

estimated on the technical assessment as in force and proportionate depreciation are charged for 
additions/disposals during the year. In respect of additions / disposal to the fixed assets [ leasehold 
improvements, depreciation Is charged from the date the assel is ready to use / Up tn the date of disposal. 

The asset's useful lives are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, al the end of each reporting period. 

1.22Investment property 
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation (including property 

under construction for such purposes). Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including 
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recegnition, investment properties are measured in accordance 
with the Ind A516's requirement for cost model. 
An investment property is derecogrised upon disposal or when the investment properly is permanently 
withdrawn from use and no further economic benefits expected from disposal. 
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Madhucon Projects Limited 
Notes forming part of Financial Statements 
Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the property is included In profit or loss in the period in which 
the property ls derecognized, 

1.23Inventories: 
Raw Materials: 
Raw Materials, construction materials and stores & spares are valued al lower of weighted average cosl or 

niet realizable value. Cost includes all charges in bringing the materials fo the place of usage, excluding 
refundable duties and taxes. 

Wark in Progress: 
Work-in-Progress is valued at the contracted rates less profit margin / estimates. 

1.24Interest in Joint Operations 

A joint operation Is a [oint arrangement whereby the parties that have Joint control of the arrangement have 
rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement. Joint control is the 
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the 
relevant activities require unanimous consenl of the parties sharing control, 

When a company undertakes its activities under joint operations, the company as a joint operator 
recognises inrelation to its interest in a joint operation: 

1. its-assets, including its share of any assets held jointly, 

2. its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred jointly, 
3 its revenue, Including ifs share any revenue arising Jointly. 
4. its expenses, Including its share of any expenses incurred jointy. 

The Company accounts for the assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses relating to its interest in a joint 
operation in accardance with the Ind AS applicable to the particular assets, liabilities, revenues, and 

EXpenses. 

1.25Insurance claims 

Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted / expected to be admitted and to the 
extent thal the amount recoverable can be measured reliably and it is reasonable lo expect ullimate 
collection, 

1.26Claims 
Claims against the company not acknowledged as debis are disclosed under contingent liabilities. Claims 
made by the company are recognised as and when the same is approved by the respeclive authorities 

with whom the claim is lodged. 

1.27Commitments 
Commitments are future liabilities for contraclual exgenditure. Commitments are classified and disclosed 
as follows: 

a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be execuled on capital account and not provided for 
b) Uncalled liability on shares and other investments partly paid 
¢} Funding related commitment to subsidiary, associate and joint venture companies and 

d) Other non-cancellable commitments, if any, to the extent they are considered material and relevant 
ir the opinion of management. 

e) Other commitments related lo sales/procurements made in the normal course of business are not 
disclosed lo avaid excessive details. 
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2.32 Contingent Liabilities not provided for: 
(% in Lakhs) 

S.No | Particulars As at As at 
31.03.2023 | 31.03.2022 

| Bank Guarantees™ 24,105.61 19,929.38 

2 Corporate Guarantees issued by the Company on - B,526.29 
belialfl of its subuidiariés and others 

J | Disputed Sales Tax (on appeal) 637.42 687.42 

q Entry Tax H.85 B.BS 

5 | Service Tax 1,655.75 1,655.75 

6 | Provident Fund 1,083.64 - 

7 |The Company is a party to legal suits on | Amount not | Amount not 
construction contract terms related disputes, | ascertainable | ascertainable 
pending before various courts in India as well as 
arbiteation proceedings. It is not possible to make a 
fair sssessment of the likely financial impact of 
these pending disputes / litigations untl the cases 

are decided by the appropriate authorities 

“Includes issued on behalf of Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures 10,157.85 10,157.85 
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MADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED 

Madhucon Projects Limited 
Notes forming part of Financial Statements 

2.33 Employee benefits 

Gratuity: The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan ("the Gratuity Plan’) 
covering eligble employees of Madhucen. The Gratuity Plan provides a lumpsum payment to 

vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount 
based on the respective employee's salary and the tenure of employment with the Compeaty. 
Liabilities with regard to these defined benefit plan are determined by actuarial valuation, 

performed by an external actuary, at each Balance Sheet date using the projected unit credit 
method. These defined benefit plans expose the Company to actuarial risks, such as longevity risk, 
interest rate risk and market risk, 

Provident Fund: Eligible employees receive benefits from a provident fund, which is a defined 
benefit plan. Bath the eligible employee and the Company make monthly contributions to the 
provident fund plan equal to a specified percentage of the-covered employee's salary. 

2.34 Remuneration to auditors: 
(in Laklis) 

8.No | Particulars 2022-23 2021-22 
1 Statutory Audit Fee 3.00 8.00 

2 | Tax Audit Fee 2.00 2.00 
3 |'GST Audit Fee 3.00 3.00 

2.35 Segment Reporting: 
The Company's operations predominantly consist of construction / project activities. Hence 

there are no reportable segments under Ind AS 108, 

2.36 Disclosure in accordance with Ind AS 11 Construction contracts 

; ___[¥in Lakhs) 
Particulars 2022-23 2021-22 

Contract revenue recognized 86,338.99 | 60,431.64 
Aggregate of contract costs incurred and recognized profits 561,627.75 | 3,63,034.86 
(less recognized losses) up to the reporting date for Contracts 
Il Progress 

Amount of advances received for contracts in progress 2,975.12 3.238.27 

Amount of retention money for contracts in progress 154.24 1.068.26 

Gross amount due from customers for contracls in progress 414.15 1667.75 

2.37 Micro & Small Enterprises: Tlie Company has not identified the enterprises which have 
provided goods and services which qualify under tlie definition of Micro and Small 
Enterprises, as defined under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, 
Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to such enterprises as on 31% 
March, 2023 has not been made in the financial statements. Further, in the view of the 

Management, the impact of interest, if any, that may be payable in accordanes with the 
provisions of the Act is not expected to be material. 
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Madhucon Projects Limited 
Notes forming part of Financial Statements 

2.38 Earnings per Share: (% in Lakhs) 
Year ended | Year ended 
March 31, March 31, 

2023 2022 
Net Profit after tax available for equity sharehelders 446.11 {3,381.39 

Weighted Average number of equity shares for Basic EPS | 7.37,94,9490 | 7,37,94.940 

(Nos) } } } i} 
Weighted Average number of equity shares for Basic EPS | 7,37,94,940 | 7,37,94,940 
(Nos) 

Face Value per Share [) 1.00 1,00 

Basic and Diluted EPS * () 0.60 (4-58) 
The Company has ne dilutive instruments, As such Diluted Earnings per share equals to 

Basic Earnings per share, 

2.39 Related Party Transactions: 

1. Following are the list of related parties 

S.No. Particulars 

1) 

2) 

3) 

4 

5) 

Subsidiaries 

Madhucon Infra Limited [Incudes Subsidiaries (a'to i), mentioned below] 

a) Madhucen Toll Highways Ltd 

d) Barasat-Krishnagar Expressways Ltd (audited by others) 

€) Ranchi Expressways Ltd (audited by others) 
f) Vijavawada-Machilipatmam Limited (audited by others) 

g) Rajuli-Bakthivapur Expressways Lintited (audited by others) 

h) Chhapra-Hajlpur Expressways Limited (audited by others) 

1) 'T Madhucen Indonesia (nnaudited) 
Madurai-Tutidorin Expressways Limited (audited by others) 

Madhucon Mego mall Pvt Lid 

Nama Hotels Pvt Lid 

Madhucon Hotghts Pr Lic 
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Madhucon Projects Limited 
Notes forming part of Financial Statements 

{II} Related party transactions during the year as follows 

® in Lakhs) 
2022.23 2021-22 

Revenue from Contracts and Services 

Step-down subsidiaries 2,650.68 | 2,070.57 
Jointly Controlled entities and ventures 642.23 & 177.94 

Remuneration 

Key Management Personnel 134.53 124.38 
Director Sitting Fee 1.75 1.30 

Loans/Advances Given 

Subsidiaries (6,740,22) 604.28 
Step-down subsidiaries 57.69 (983.97) 

Jainitly Controlled fentities and ventures 2544 41 2251.68 

Loans/Advances Received 

Subsidiaries 530.97 - 
Step-down subsidiaries 1476.78 | 2,373.3¥ 

Associates 2,800.84 
Enterprises owned or significantly influenced hy key management 
personnel or their relatives - 1,273.19 

Retention Money 

Step-down subsidiaries 132.98 - 

Jointly Controlled entities and ventures 3521 | 12.41 

(II) Related Party balances outstanding at the end of the year as follows (x in Lakhs) 

2022-23 2021-22 

Trade Receivables 

Step-down subsidiaries 7.952. F7 7,036.77 

Jointly Controlled / entities and ventures 110.49 428.72 
Outstanding Receivables 

Subsidiaries 16,146.21 | 23,412.91] 

Step-down subsidiaries 2,256.50 | 2,214.81 
Associates - 473.65 

Jointly Contrdlled fentides and ventures - 12.41 

Key Management Personnel 64.78 49.33 

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by key managsment : 3,390.79 
personnel or their relatives 

Outstanding Payables 
Subsidiaries 4.50 

Step-down subsidiaries 15.786.78 14.5310.00 

Key Management Personnel - 0.48 

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by key management = 153.02 
personnel or their relatives 

Corporate Guarantees 

Subsidiaries 8,526.29 

Bank Guarantees 

Step-down subsidiaries 4,335.00 4,335.00 

Jointly Contralled Jentities and ventures 5,822.85 5.822.835 
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Madhucon Projects Limited 
Notes forming part of Financial Statements 

2.40 Some of the Bank Accounts at closed projects which are in dormant and have not been 
reconciled due to non-availability of statements. 

2.41 Some of the entries as per 26AS nol reflected in books of accounts and the same Is under 

reconciliation with books of account. 

2,42 One Financial creditor appeal is pending with NCLAT. 

2.43 Certain accounts are pending from long times which are not recoverable [payable as per 

limitation Act, passed necessary entries in books ol accounts. 

2.44 A portion of the balance receivable from Madhucan Infra Limited (subsidiary company) has 
been writen off in the books of aceaunt based on the internal assessement. 

2.45 Going Concern 
In Preparing the financial statements the Board of Directors have considered the operations of the 

Company as going concern notwithstanding that the Company incurred a net loss of Rs. 1,561.54 

Lakhs (Previous Year a niet loss Rs. 3,361.88 Lakhs) for the financial year ended 3151 march 2023, 

and as at that date, the Company is in net current liabilities position of Rs, 1,53,604.93 Lakhs 

(Previous year Rs. 1,85,349.72 Lakhs). The Company is also in net labilities position of Rs. 

1,61,954.98 Lakhs (Previous Year : Bs. 1,94,118.70 Lakhs ) as at 31st March 2023 and has 

defaulted in payments of dues to Banks. However, the management believes the use of poing 

concern assumption on the preparation of the financial statements of the company is still 

appropriate in view of implementation of OTS agreements already entered into in case of some 

banks, and its continuing discussions with its lenders to obtain approval for and an appropriate 

debt resolution plan and alse, that the company will continue to be in operation in the foreseeable 

futiare. 

2.46 Since OTE Process in some of the banks are under completion for which corresponding 

entries yet to be passed in the books of accounts. 

2.47 Additional Regulatory Information 
i] Title Deeds of all immovable properties are held inthe name of the company. 

ii) The Company is not in possession of any Investment property. 

ili) The Company has not revalued any of ité Property, Plant and Equipment during the year, 

iv] Na loans and advances were granted to promoters, directors, KMPs 

v) There is no capital work-in-progress 

vi) There are no procesdings initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami 
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules marie 
thereunder 
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Madhucon Projects Limited 
Notes forming part of Financial Statements 

vii) The company has borrowings from banks on the basis of security of current assets but those 
borrowings have been declared as NPAs by the banks and hence there are no returns or 
statements filed by the company. 

viii) The company was not declared as a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution. 

ix) The company did not enter into any transactions with struck off compariies, 

%] There are no charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period 

xi} The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 

of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017, 

xii) There are no Scheme of Arrangements approved by the Competent Authority in terms of 
sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013 

xiii) Utilization of Borrowed funds and share premium: 
(A) The company didn't advance or lend or invest funds (either borrowed funds or share premium 

or any other sources or kind of funds) to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign 

entities (intermediaries) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that 
the Intermediary shall 
(i) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons ar enlities identified in any manner 
whataaever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 
{li} Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries 
{B} The company didn't receive any fund from any person(s) or entity (ies), including foreign 
entities [Funding Party) with the underslanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that 
the company shall 
{i} Directly or indirectly lend or invest in otlier persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or oir behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 
{li} Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries 
xvi] The Company has nelther dealaved nor paid any dividend during the year, 
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Madhucon Projects Limited 
Notes forming part of Financial Statements 

xiv) Ratios 
51 | Particulars Numerator Denominator ist 3st Variance 
no March | March 

2023 2022 

1 | Current Ratio Current assels Current liabilities 0.158 0.090 77% 

2 | Debt-Equity Ratio Tital Debt Shareholder’s Equity 2.931 3.465 15% 

3 | Debit Service Coverage | Earnings available for debt | Debt Service 0.595 (19a 207% 
[Latin service 

4 | Return on Equity Net Profits after taxes Average 0.008 0,064) 113%: 

(ROE) Shareholders Equity 

5 | Trade receivables Revenue Average Trade 11.696 10.262 14% 

turnovar ratio Receivable 

6 | Trade payables Purchases of services and | Average Trade 1.803 0.814 974% 
turnover ratio other expenses Payables 

7 | Net capita turnover Revenue Working Capital (0.697) (0.418) 57% 

ratio 

B | Inventory Turnover Revenue Average Inventory 303.986 83.120 266% 

Ratio 

9 | Not profit ratio Net Profit Revenue 0.005 (0.048) 110% 

10 | Rehan on capital Farmings before interest Capital Employed (0.023) (0,020) 18% 
employed (ROCE) and taxes 

Return on 

Investment ROT) 

11 | Unguoted Income generated from Time weighted NIL NIL | There 
Investments average investments was no 

Income 

from the 

mvestme 

nis 

12 | Quoted hcome genetated from Tarmie werghtod NTL NIL | There 

investments average mvestments Wis No 

Income 

from the 

Investme 

nts 

Current Ratio 

Current Ratio is improved due to come down of Current Liabilities due to settlement 
payment of some of the liabilities and also slight increase in the Current Assets. 

Debt Service Coverage Ratio 
Significant improvement in'the ratio due to increase in the revenue from operations and 

reduction in the liabilities by clearing long pending dues. 

Return on Equity Ratio 
Improvement in the Return on Equity Ratio due to positive figure of Deférred Tax which 
affected the profitability. 

Trade payables turnover ratio 
Improvement in the Ratio due to reduction in the Trade Payables by clearing the Trade 
creditors dues. 
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Madhucon Projects Limited 
Notes forming part of Financial Statements 
Comments: 

Net capital turnover ratio 
Net Capital Turnover Ratio is improved due to increase in the Sales turnover and 

reduction in liabilities by clearing the dues. 

Inventory turnover ratio 
Inventory Turnover Ratio is increased as result of better utilization of materials and 

effective management policies. 

Net profit ratio 
Net profit Turnover Ratio is improved due to reduction of the net loss to the company 
and improvement in the sales turnover. 

xv) Undisclosed Income 
There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered or 

disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 [43 of 1961) during 

the year, 

xvi) Corporate Social Responsibility 
Since the campany is incurring lesses in current year and consecutively for preceding 2 financial 
years CSR is not applicable 

xvii) Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency 

The competiy las neither traded nor invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the 

financial year 

2.48 Figures for the previous year have been regrouped /re-classified to conform to the figures of 
the current year. 

In terms of our report attached 

For P.Murali & Co. For and on behalf of the Board 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN : 0072575 

A. Krishna Rao N. Seethaiah Mohammad Shafi 
Partner Mataglng Director Whole-time Director 
Membership Number 020085 DIN-00784491 DIN-OT7178265 

UDIN { 23020085BGOFZE683 

K. Venkateswariu D. Malla Reddy 
Place : Hyderabad Director cum CFO Company Secretary 

Date : May 16, 2023 DIN-02713108 ACS: 9559 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Members of 

M/s.Madhucon Projects Limited 
Report on theConsolidated Ind AS Financial Statements 

1. Qualified opinion 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of 

MADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as 'the Holding Company’), 

its subsidiaries(the Holding Company and its subsidiariestogether referred to ‘as ‘the 

Group’) which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31,2023.the 

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Less (including the statement of other 

comprehensive income), the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow, the Consolidated 

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended and a summary of significant 

accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred lo as 

‘Consolidated Ind AS financial statements’). 

The Consolidated Financial statements includes the following entities 

Subsidiaries 

1) 

2) 
3) 

4) 
5) 

Madhucon Infra Limited [Which includes its Subsidiaries (i to ix }, 
mentioned below] 

Madurai Tuticorin Expressways Limited (audited by other auditors) 

Madhucon Mega mall Pvt Lid 

Nama Hotels Pvt Ltd 

Madhucon Heights Pvt Lid 

Subsidiaries of Madhucon Infra limited 

Madhueon Toll Highways Lid 

TN (DK) Expressways Ltd (audited by others) 

Trichy-Tanjavur Expressways Ltd (audited by others) 

Barasat-Krishnagar Expressways Ltd (audited by others) 

Ranchi Expressways Ltd (audited by others) 

Vijayawada-Machilipatnam Limited (audited by others) 

Rajauli-Bakthiyapur Expressways Limited (audited by others) 
Chhapra-Hajipur Expressiays Limited (audited by others) 

PT Madhucon Indonesia (unaudited) 

Associate 
1 Madhucon Properties Limited (Ceased fo be associale w.ef 13-02-2023and 

hence not considered for consolidation) 

In cur opinion and lo the best of our Information and according to the explanations given to 

us, except for the possible effects of the matters described in the "Basis for Qualified 

Opinion"section of our report, the aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS financial statements give 
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the information required by the Companies Act, 2013('the Act’) in the manner so required 

and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting standards and 

other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs 

of the Group, as at March 31, 2023, its consolidated loss and consolidated total 

comprehensive income , consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for 
the year ended on that date. 

2. Basis for Qualified Opinion 

A.In case of the "Holding Company”, matters as reported in the Standalone 
Financials, are reproduced below: 

i. We refer to the carrying value of investments of Rs 1,34,212.99 lakhs held in 
subsidiaries/other companies and unsecured loans and advances of Rs 5624.18 
lakhs given by the company to its subsidiaries/other companies, Some of these 

have been incurring losses and in case of some of the subsidiaries. net worth was 
fully or substantially eroded [ Going Concern is affected. We are unable to 

comment upon the carrying value of investments and loans & advances whether 

any provision for jmpairment in the value of investments and loans & advances is 
required; the effect of same upon the profitability could not be ascertained in the 
absence of fair valuation. 

ii. “The Company “has written back Trade Payables amounting fo Nil and Rs 
10,001.95 lakhs for the quarter ended 31st March, 2023 and for the Year ended 
31st March, 2023 respectively. 

iii. “The Company “has writlen back Other Payables amounting to Rs 873.24 lakhs 
and Rs 1,211.82 lakhs for the quarter ended 31st March, 2023 and for the Year 
ended 31st March, 2023 respectively. 

iv. "The Company "has written off loans, advances and other Investments from 

Related Parties amounting to Rs 4,306.13 Lakhs and Rs 18,530.32 Lakhs for the 
quarter ended 31st March, 2023 and for the Year ended 31st March, 2023 

respectively, 

v. "The Company “has written off advances from Other Parties amouriting to Rs 
2,298 31 Lakhs and Rs 3,446.54 Lakhs for the quarfer ended 31st March, 2023 
and for the Year ended 31st March, 2023 respectively, 

vi. The company is yel to transfer unpaid dividend of an amount aggregating to Rs. 
4.48 Lakhs reiating to Financial Years 2008-09 to 2010-11 from unpaid dividend 
account to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF). 

vii. "The company has defaulted in repayment of dues to Banks and financial 
institutions amounting to Rs 48,839.25 lakhs and Rs 4,508.69 lakhs respectively 
as per books of account and the same were classified as NPA by the lenders. 
Interest on these loans have nol been provided for the FY 2018-19 to FY 2022- 
23. However, Dues in case of some banks were setiled through "One time 
settlement”, but eniries in respect of OTS have not been passed in the books of 
account and the effect of same has not been quanlified and as such the impact of 

the same an profitability could not be ascertained. 

Balance Confirmation in respect of the loans from banks have not been obtained. 

a7



MADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED = Dd
 

LUE =r] 

viii. As per nole in financial statement, in case of one financial creditor, Petition is 
pending in NCLAT, 

ix. Undisputed Statutory dues in case of following are outstanding carried from 

previous Year: 

S.No. | Name of the Status Nature of Due Period Rs. 

| . | | inlakhs 
1 The Income Tax Act, 1961 | Dividend 2011-12 to 2015-16 | 139.93 

Distribution Tax & 
Interest on it 

2 The Employees Provident | Provident fund 2013-14 to 2020-21 | 95.73 

funds and Miscellaneous 

provision act 1852 

3 Value Added Tax | VAT payable 2013-14 to 2017-18 | 9.77 

4 Works Contract Tax Works Contract Tax [2014-1510 2017-18 | 611.42 

x. In view of losses incurred by “the company” and in the absence of prior approval 

from the lender banks and financial Institutions, managerial remuneration of Rs. 
104.51 Lakhs paid by the company during the year [s in excess of the limits 
specified under section 197 read with schedule V of Companies Act,2013. 

xi. The turnover and input credits as per the books of account are subject to 
reconciliation with the GST returns filed. 

xii. Internal Audit has not been conducted for the period 01st April 2022 to 31st 
March 2023. Internal auditor has not been appointed for the period from October 

2022. 

xiii. The Company has not produced Title Deeds in respect of certain immovable 
properties (lands) held, 

xiv. “The Company” has given a Bank Guarantee for Rs 1,224.33 Lakhs on behalf of 
its step-down subsidiary “Vijayawada-Machilipatnam Expressways Limited” in 
favor of NHAI and the sama was invoked in FY 2014-15 by NHAL The Company 
has accounted the Invoked amount as receivable from "Vijayawada- 
Machilipatnam Expressways Limited” and subsequently "The Company” has 
written off the same by charging it to “Statement of Profit and Loss" in FY 2015- 
16. 

Consequent to receipt of claims on arbitration by “Vijayawada-Machilipatnam 
Expressways Limited", an amount of Rs 1,955.00 lakhs was paid by "Vijayawada- 
Machilipatnam Expressways Limited” to “The Company’, against the invocation 

of Bank Guarantee, which is offered as income during the quarter ending 30-08- 
2022. 

xv. In case of "Ranchi Expressways Ltd (REL)", a step-down subsidiary of the 
company, CBI has filed FIR against REL, its Promoters and Directors on 12-03- 
2019 under Prevention of Corruption Act and Indian Penal Code. Subsequently, 
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the Enforcement Directorale has raided the premises of “the company” on 11-06- 
2021 and the investigation is under progress. 

xvi. As per the press release dated 02-07-2022 and 17-10-2022 The Directorate of 
Enforcement has provisionally attached 105 immovable properties and 28 other 

assets worth Rs 96.21 Crore and Rs 80.65 Crore respectively belonging to 
Madhucon Group of companies, its directors and promoters in a case against M/s 
Ranchi Expressway Ltd, under the provisions of PMLA, 2002. Further 
investigation is going on. 

xvii. In the absence of confirmations of Trade Payables, Trade Receivables and 
various advancesfloans, we are unable to comment on the extent to which such 
balances are payable/recoverable. 

xvii. Balance confirmation of current accounts, which have become Dormant, are nol 

obtained in case of Bank Branches at various project sites, 

Matters Relating to Going Concern 

‘The Company's” current liabilities exceeded current assets and “The Company” has 
defaulted in payment of dues to banks, all these indicate a material uncertainty 

existing that may cast a significant doubt on "The Company's” ability to continue as a 
going concern. However, the management believes the use of going coneem 
assumption on the preparation of the financial statements of “the company” is still 
appropriate In view of Implementation of OTS agreements already entered into in 

case of some banks, and its continuing discussions with its lenders to obtain 
approval for and an appropriate debt resolution plan and also, that “The company” 
will continue to be in operation in the foreseeable future. 

Emphasis of Matter 

“The Company” has offered Rs. 259.60 Lakhs as Revenue during the year which n 
was an Advance received against work bills from a step-down subsidiary, 

Our opinion Is not modified with in respect of this matter. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters thal, in our professional judgment, were of most 

significance in our audit of the financial statements of the curren! period. 

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be 

communicated in our report 

= The carrying value of investments held in and unsecured loans and advances given 
by the company to ils subsidiaries, which have been incurring losses and in case of 
some of these companies, net worth was fully or substantially eroded. 

How the matter was addressed in our audit: 

We have examined the key controls in place for making investments in subsidiaries. 
We assessed the net worth of subsidiaries on the basis of latest available financial 

stalements. In the absence of fair valuation of investments, taken into account the 
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managemen! representations made for the internal assessments and initiatives to be 
implemented to improve the working of the subsidiaries basing on which they are of 
the view that the carrying value of the investments and loans and advances are 
realizable at the value slated in the books and no impairment is considered. 

» “The Company" has defaulted in repayment of dues to Banks and financial 
institutions All the loans outstanding were classified as NPA by the Banks and 

Financial Institutions. Interest on these loans have nol been provided for the financial 
years 2018-19 to 2022-23. Dues in case of some banks were settled through "Cne 
lime seftlement”, bul entries in respect of OTS have nol been passed in the books of 
account. 

How the matter was addressed in our audit : 

Dues in case of some of the banks were settied through "One lime settlement” but 
entries in respect of OTS have not been effected in the books of accounts due fo 
Procedural Formalities as explained by the management. However the same has 
been qualified in our Audit Report (Clause 7 of Basis for Qualified Opinion). 

B.In case of the Subsidiaries, matters as reported in their respective 
financials are reproduced below: 

a) Madhucon Infra limited 

I. We refer to the carrying value of investments of Rs 16,008.20 lakhs held in 
subsidiaries/other companies and unsecured loans and advances of Rs 
51,966.08 lakhs given by the company to its subsidiaries/other companies, Someof 
these have been incurring losses and in case of some of the subsidiaries, nel worth 
was fully or substantially eroded / Going Concern is affected. The Company has 

made provision for impairment ‘on the basis of internal evaluation. But, in the 
absence of fair value, we cannot ascertain whether the impairment made Is 
adequate. 

ii. Loan from Financial Creditor amounting to Rs 1057.91 lakhs is written back during 

the year offering it as income, as the managemerit is of the opinion thal amount is 
due from long time and is na longer payable. 

ii . Loan from RamkyEnviro Engineers Limited amounting to Rs 570.66 lakhs is written 
back during the year offering it as income, as the management is of the opinion that 
amount is due from long time and is no longer payable. 

iv. The IFCI Lid had approved one-time selllement (OTS) of its oulstanding dues of 
Rs.190.96 Crores vide its letters dated February 24th, 2020, In terms of seltlement, 
OTS amount of Rs.70 Crores was to be paid by the company in three instalments. 

However, the company made total payment of 15.56 crores up to 31st March, 2023 
and has represented to IFCI to reduce the OTS amount from Rs 70 Crores lo Rs 51 
Crores and the proposal is under process with [FCI 
Interest has not been provided on the amounts payable lo IFCI for the current FY 2022-23 

and the same is not quantified by the management. 
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v. Internal Audit has not been conducted for the period 01st April 2022 to 31st March 
2023, 

vi. Balances as at 31 March,2023 in respect of certain Debtors and Creditors in case of 
some of the subsidiaries are subject to Confirmation and Reconciliation. 

vii. In view of losses incurred by “the company” and in the absence of prior approval 
from the lender banks and financial Institutions, managerial remuneration of Rs 
17.49 lakhs paid by the company during the year is in excess of the limits specified 
under section 197 read with schedule V of Companies Act,2013. 

viii. a) Investments inSimhapuri Energy Limited amounting Rs 74,300.08 lakhs has 
besn written off during the year, for which provision of 100% already made in earlier 
years. 

b) Investments in Trichy-Thanjavur Expressways Limited amounting Rs 3,519.32 
lakhs has been written off during the year, for which provision of Rs 528.05 lakhs 
already made in earlier years. 

¢) Investments inMadhucon Toll Highways Limited amounting Rs 29,306.77 lakhs has 
been written off during the year, for which provision of Rs 4,396.02 lakhs already 
made in earlier years. 

Matters Relating to Going Concern 

Madhucon Infra Limited, which is a subsidiary to “the company”, has accumulated 
losses and also, current liabilities exceeded current assels and the company has 
defaulted in respect of installments and interest on loans and debentures, affecting 
the company's ability to continue as a going concem. However in view of what is 
stated in the note, the management believes thal lhe use of going concern 
assumption is still appropriate and that the subsidiary will continue to be in operation 
in the foresseable fullire. 

Emphasis of Matter 

» The company has nol appointed company secretary. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of above matier. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audil matters are those maiters thal, in our professional judgment, were of most 

significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. 

We have determined the matlers described below lo be the key audit matters to be 

communicated in our report 

» The carrying value of investments held in and unsecured loans and advances given 

by the company to its subsidiaries, which have been incurring losses and in case of 

some of these companies. net worth was fully or substantially eroded. 

91



1 
— 

MADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED = 4 - 

EK lie LL pesos 

How the matter was addressed in our audit: 

Provision for impairment was made by the company on the basis of internal evaluation. 

(b} Madhucon Mega Mall Private Limited 

i. Has written off capital work in progress amounting to Rs 3,577.47 Lakhs. 
ii. Has written back deemed equity amounting to Rs 3,500.00 Lakhs. 

Matters Relating to Going Concern 

Madhucon Mega Mall Private Limited, which is a subsidiary to “the company”, the 
accumulated losses have completely eroded lhe Net worth of the company. The 
Subsidiary have suffered recurring Losses. The accounts of the subsidiary have been 
prepared on the basis of going concern assumption. However, the eroded Net worth 
will significantly affects these subsidiary's ability to continue as a going concern unless 
it raises capital in order to fund the operations. 

(c) Nama Hotels Private Limited 
i. Has written back deemed equity amounting to Rs 5,500.00 Lakhs. 

ii. Has written off capital work in progress amounting to Rs 6,890.33 Lakhs. 

(d) Madhucon Heights Private Limited 
I. Has settled outstanding amount of Rs 9,047.76 lakhs under OTS with Axis Bank. 

ii. Inabsence of valuation report of capital work in progress, the realizable value is not 

ascertainable. However as per the management representation, the case in 

connection therewith is still pending in the Hon'ble High court of Telangana. 

“The Group's" current liabilities exceeded current assets and "The Holding Company’ has 
defaulted in payment of dues to banks and there are adverse observations in the Audit 
Reports of “The Helding Company” and Subsidiaries! Sub-Subsidiaries. All these indicate 
a material uncertainty existing that may cast a significant doubt on “The Group's" ability 
to continue as a going concern. However, the management believes the use of going 
concern assumplion on the preparation of the Consolidated Ind AS financial slalemants 
of “the Group" is still appropriale in view of implementation of OTS agreements already 
entered into in case of some banks, and its continuing discussions with its lenders to 

obtain approval for and an appropriate debt resolution plan by the"The Holding 
Company" and also, thal “The Group” will continue lo be in operation in the foreseeable 

future, 

3. Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements 

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 

134(5) of the Act with respect lo the preparation of these Consolidated Ind AS financial 

statements that give a true and fair view of the Consolidated financial position, Consolidated 

financial performance including consalidated other comprehensiveincome, consolidated 

changes in equityand consolidated cash flows of the Group In accordance withthe 
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accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards 

specified under section 133 of the Act, 

The respective Beard of Directors of the companiesincluded in the Group and its associates 

are responsible formaintenance of adequate accounting records in accerdancewith the 

provisions of the Act for safeguarding of theassets of the Group and its Associates and for 

preventingand detecting frauds and other irregularities; selectionand application of 

appropriate accounting pelicies;making judgments and estimates that are reasonable 

andprudent, and design, implementation and maintenance ofadequate internal financial 

controls, that were operatingeffectively for ensuring the accuracy and complatenassof the 

accounting records, relevant to the preparation andpresentation of the financial statement 

that give a true andfair view and are free from material misstaternent, whetherdue to fraud 

or error, which have been used for thepurpase of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS 

financialstatements by the directors of the holding company asaforesald. 

In preparing the consolidated Ind AS financial statements,the respective Board of Directors 

of the companiesincluded in the Group are responsiblefor assessing the ability of the Group 

to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable matters related to going concern 

and using the goingconcern basis of accounting unless the Managementeither intends to 

liquidate the Group orto cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to doso. 

The respective Board of Directors of the Companiesincluded in the Group are 

responsiblefor overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group. 

. Auditor's Responsibility for the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements 

Our objectives are lo obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Ind AS 

financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 

or error, and lo issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 

is a high level of assurance, bul is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with SAs will always detect a malerial misstalement when it exists. Misstatements can 

arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 

they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 

the basis of these Consolidated Ind AS financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and 

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

i. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 

responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 

appropriate lo provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not delecting a material 

misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 

fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 

the averride of internal contral. 
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vi. 

. Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order 

to design audit Procedures that is appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 

143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether 

lhe Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the 

operating effectiveness of such controls. 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 

of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis 

of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a maternal 

uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 

the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, If we conclude that a malerial 

uncertainty exists; we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the 

related disclosures in the Consolidated Ind AS financial statemenls or, if such 

disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 

the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future 

events or conditions may cause the Group to cease lo continue as a going concer, 

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial 

statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Ind AS 
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner 

that achieves fair presenlation. 

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of 

the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the 

consolidated Ind AS financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, 

supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities 

included in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of which we are the 

independent auditors. For lhe other enlilias included in the consolidated Ind AS 

financial statements. which have been audited by other auditors, such other 

auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the 

audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion 

Maleriality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Consolidated Ind AS financial 

statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes il probable that the economic 

decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Consolidated Ind AS financial 

statements may be influenced, We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative 

factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the statements 

of our work; and (ii) lo evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the 

financial slalements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such 

other entities included in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of which we are lhe 

independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 

audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 

that we identify during our audil. 
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied 

with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them 

all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought fo bear on our 

independence, and where applicable, relaled safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 

matters that were of most significance in the audil of the Consolidated Ind AS financial 
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe 

these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure 

about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter 

should not be communicated in our report because lhe adverse consequences of doing so 

would reasonably be expected lo outweigh the public interest benefits of such 

communication. 

5. Other Matter Paragraph: 

a) We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information of one 
subsidiary, seven step down subsidiaries included in the statement, whose financial 

statements together comprise total assets, before elimination, of Rs.3,52 355.05 
Lakhs as at March 31, 2023, lotal Revenue of Rs. 55,507.07 Lakhs and Rs. 
76,273.66 Lakhs and total Loss & total Comprehensive Income of Rs. 20,681.81 

Lakhs and 31,435.13 Lakhs for the quarter ended 31% March 2023 and for the 
period from 01-04-2022 to 31-03-2023 respectively. The financial statements 

and other financial information of these subsidiaries have been audited by other 
auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management, and our audit 

opinion on the consolidated financial results, to the extent they have been derived 
from such financial statement is solely based on the reports of the other auditors. 

b) The financial statements and other financial information of PT Madhucon Indonesia, 
a Foreign stepdown subsidiary of the company included in the statement. whose 
financial statements comprise lolal assets, befare elimination, of Rs. 6189.13 Lakhs 
as at March 31, 2023, total Revenue of Nil and Rs 5.76 Lakhs and total Loss & total 

Comprehensive of Rs. 547.60 Lakhs and 2,713.31 Lakhs for the quarter ended 31st 

March 2023 and for the period from 01-04-2022 to 31-03-2023. The Financial 
statements / financial information of this company are unaudited and have basen 
furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial 

stalements, in so far as it relates lo the amounts and disclosures included in respect 
of this Foreign step down subsidiary, and our report in terms of sub-sections (3) and 
(11) of section 143 of the Act, in so far iL relates to the aforesaid stepdown subsidiary, 
Is based solely on such unaudited financial statements / financial information. 

Our opinion on the statement is not modified in respect of the above matters with 
respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors. 

The"Opinion" "Emphasis of Matter Paragraph”/'Report on Other Legal and 

Regulatory Requirements” insuch audit reports are reproduce below: 

a) Barasat-Krishnagar Expressways Limited ('BKEL") 

Material Uncertainties Relating to Going Concern 
Barasat - Krishnagar Expressways Limited (BKEL) was formed for undertaking the 
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work of Four Laning of Barasat - Krishnagar Section of NH- 34 (km. 31.000 to km. 
115.000) on Design, Build, Finance, Operation & Maintenance and Transfer 

(DBFOT-Annuity) basis. As per clause No.10.3.1 of Concession Agreement, at the 

time of declaration of appointed date NHAI has to handover B0% of Right of Way to 
the Concessionaire. But even after 36 months NHAI has not handed over 80% of 
Right of Way and only 52.36% of Right of Way was handed over to the 
Concessionaire.Hence the Company has terminated the Contract on 31st December, 
2015 as NHAI was not able to provide ROW. The company and NHAI then entered 
into a Supplementary Agreement lo the Concession Agreement dated 20th June, 
2011 on 2nd May, 2016 for adjudication of disputes through Arbitration under the 
Rules of ‘The Society for Affordable Redressal of Disputes’ (SAROD). NHAI also 
subsequently issued notice for termination of the Contract vide its lefter daled 3rd 
May.2016 and seized all the project assels of BKEL on 12th May, 2016. 

These events or conditions, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. Based on 
our audit procedures and evaluation of the entity's financial statements and other 
relevant information, we have concluded that the entity is not a going concern, the 
financial statements have been drawn accordingly. Our conclusion is based on 
several factors, including the entity's financial position, cash flows from operations, 
and its ability to meet ils obligations as they come due. 

Emphasis of Matter 

i. We draw attention to note no. 1 in the financial statements ‘The construction work 
is delayed due to pending approvals and right of way to be provided by NHAL The 
Company had issued notice for termination of the project to NHAI on 31st 
December, 2015. The company and NHA| entered into a Supplementary 
Agreement {o the ‘Concession Agreement dated 20th June, 2011" on 2nd May, 
2018 for inclusion of the clause of ‘Society for Affordable Redressal of Disputes’ 
(SAROD) Committee for arbitration. NHAI had also issued notice for terminations 
of the project vide its letter dated 3rd May, 2016 and the company had replied that 
the notice is not valid. Both Company and MHA! appointed arbitrators. The 
Arbitration proceeding are in progress with SAROD. 

ii. The borrowings from secured lenders have been declared as non-performing 
assets by the lender. Hence, interest has not been recognized for the year on both 
long term and short-term portions of loans. The balances lying in the Bank current 
accounts are subject to external confirmation, 

ili, The cost incurred on the project til the closure of the financials dated 31-03-2023 
is Rs. 5,824091720/-. The amount has been accounted as 'NHAI Claim 
Receivables’ under the head 'Other Financial Assets’ which is In contravention to 
Ind AS 37 (Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets), as the 
claims are in the nature of contingent asset. This has resulted in over-statement 
of other financial assets and understatement of cumulative loss by the same 
amount in the Statement of Profit & Loss. 

Our opinion is nol modified in respect of these matters. 

b) Rajauli-Bakthiyarpur Expressways Limited (‘RBEL") 

Material Uncertainty related to Going Concern 
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We draw attention to Note no 25 of the standalone financial statements, which 
indicates that the project awarded to M/s Rajauli - Bakhtiyarpur Expressways Limited 
by Bihar State Road Development Corporation Limited (BSRDC) with a Concession 
Period of 30 years which included a construction period of 30 months has been 
foreclosed with mutual consent due to the non-handling over of Right OfWay (ROW) 
as per terms of the Contract by BSRDC. These events or conditions; indicate that a 
material uncertainty exists that may casl significant doubt an the Company's ability to 
continue as a going concern. Based on our audit procedures and evaluation of the 
entity's financial statements and other relevant information, we have concluded that 
the entity is not a going concern, the financial statements have been drawn 

accordingly. Our conclusion is based on several factors, including the entity's 
financial position, cash flows from operations, and its ability to meet its obligations as 
they come due. 

Emphasis of Matter 

i. The cost incurred on the project till the closure of the financials dated 31-03-2023 
Is Rs. 8,16,82,083/-. The amount has been accounted as ‘Claims Receivable from 
BSRDC against Expenditure incurred on the project’ under the head ‘Other 
Financial Assets’ which is in conlravention to Ind AS 37 (Provisions, Contingent 
Liabilities and Contingent Assets), as the claims are in the nature of contingent 
assel. This has resulted in over-statemenl of other financial assets and 
understatement of cumulative loss by the same amount in the Statement of Profit 
& Loss. 

ii. We draw attention to Note 27 to the Standalone financial statements, the company 
has approached BSRDC by invoking arbitral clause to initiate arbitration 
proceedings for the expenses incurred lor the project. As informed and explained 

fo us, statement of claims was initially filed on 04-03-2020 with BSRDC. The 
arbitration proceedings are currently in progress. 

Our opinien is not modified in respect of the above mentioned matters. 

c) Madurai Tuticorin Expressways Limited (MTEL) 

Material Uncertainty related to Going Concern 

We draw attention lo Note no. 49 of the standalone financial statements, which slales 

that the project awarded to M/s Madural-Tuticorin Expressways Limited has been 
terminated by NHAI on 17-03-2023 though company has commenced Periodic 
Maintenance works and its obligations. These events or conditions, indicate that a 
material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubl on the Company's ability to 
continue as a going concern. Based on our audit procedures and avaluation of the 
entity's financial statements and other relevant information, we have concluded that 

the entity is not a going concern, the financial statements have been drawn 
accordingly. Our conclusion is based on several faciors, including the entity's 
financial position, cash flows from operations, and its ability to meet its obligations as 
they come due. 

Emphasis of Matter 

i. As detailed in Note 48 to the Standalone financial statements, the company has 
submitied claim fo NHAI for the works already completed. The company has 
initiated arbitration by invoking arbitral clause and the arbitration proceedings 
commenced. 
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il. As detailed in Note 2.09 lo the Standalone financial statements, company has 
taken loans from banks and financial insfitutions. Those loans became NPAs. 
Hence, interest has not been recognized for the year on both long term and 
shoriterm portions of loans. The balances lying in the Bank current accounts are 

subject to extemal confirmation. 

iii. As detailed In Note 52 to the Standalone financial statements, since the contract 
has been terminated: 

« Fixed Assels and Intangible Assets have been completely written off; 

« Provisions created for Operations and Maintenance have been reversed, 

= Capital grant Income has been recognized in full. 

As a result, there is a significant impact on the financial statements and its ratios. 

iv. The adequacy of the IND AS adjustments Is not corroborated and is subject to 
other Ind AS adjustments carried oul during the year. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the abovementioned matters, 

d) Vijayawada-Machilipatnam Expressways Limited 

Material Uncertainties Relating to Going Concern 

Vijayawada-Machilipatnam Expressways Limited was formed for Design, Build, 
Finance, Operate and Transfer of 4-laning of Vijayawada-Machilipatnam Section of 
NH-2 from Km. 0.000 to Km. 63.800 in the state of Andhra Pradesh under NHDP 
Phase Ill en Toll basis and to carry on the business of O&M (operation & 
Maintenance) contracts relating to the road works. NHAL has not handed over the 
ROW and the project was terminated. 

These events or conditions indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast 
significant doubt on the Cornpany’s ability. to continue as a going concern. Based on 
our audit procedures and evaluation of the entity's financial statements and other 
relevant information, we have concluded that the entity is not a going concern, the 
financial stalements have been drawn accordingly. Our conclusion is based on 
saveral factors, including the enlity's financial position, cash flows from operations, 
and its ability lo meet jis obligations as they come due. 

e) TN (DK) Expressways Limited 

Emphasis of Matter 

i. As detailed in Note 1 to the Standalone financial statements, the company has 
submitted claim to NHAI for the works alrsady completed. The company has 
initiated arbitration by invoking arbitral clause and the arbitration proceedings 
pommencad, The arbitration is currently in progress. 

ii. TN (DK) Expressways Limited (TNDK) has taken loans from banks and financial 
institutions. Those loans became NPAs. Hence, interest has not been recognized 
for the year on both long term and short term portions of leans. The balances lying 
in the Bank current accounts are subject to external confirmation. 

lil. The adequacy of the IND AS adjustments is not corroborated and Is subject to 

other Ind AS adjustments carried out during the year. 

Our opinion is nat modified in respect of the above mentioned matters. 
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f)Trichy-Thanjavur Expressways Limited 

Uncertainties Relating to Going Concern 

Trichy - Thanjavur Expressways Limited was incorporated under the Companies Act, 
1956, on 13th April, 2006 as a Special Purpose Vehicle of Madhucon Projects Limited 
for execution of four lanes Trichy - Thanjavur Section road Project on NH-67 in the 
state of Tamil Nadu on Build, Operate and Transfer (BOT) basis. Due to delays in 
undertaking periodic mainlenance works NHAI terminated the project on 17-03-2023 
through issue of termination notice. 

Based on our audit procedures and evaluation of the entity's financial statements and 
other relevan! information, we have concluded thal the entity is nol a going concern, 

the financial statements have been drawn accordingly. Qur conclusion is based on 
several factors, including the entity's financial position, cash flows from operations, and 
its ability to meet its obligations as they come due. 

Emphasis of Matter 

i. As detailed in Note 1 lo the Standalone financial statements, the company bas 
submitted claim ta NHAI for the works already completed. The company has 

initiated arbitration by invoking arbitral clause and the arbifration proceedings 
commenced. The status of the arbitration is currently in progress. 

il. Trichy-Thanjavur Expressways Limited (TTEL) has taken loans from banks and 

financial institutions. Those loans became NPAs. Hence, interest has nol been 
recognized for the year on both long term and short-term portions of loans. The 
balances lying in the Bank current accounts are subject to external confirmation. 

ili. Since the contract has been terminated: 

+ Fixed Assets and Intangible Assets have been completely written off; 

= Provisions created for operating and maintenance (O&M) expenses have been 
reversed; 

= Capital grant income has been recognized in full. 

As a result, there is a significant impact on the company's financial stalemenls and jis 
ratios. 

iv. The adequacy of the IND AS adjustments is not corroborated and is subject to other 
Ind AS adjustments carried out during the year. 

Our opinion |s not modified in respect of the abovementioned matters. 

g) Chhapra-Hajipur Expressways Limited 

Qualified Opinion 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 

given to us, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the ‘Basis for 

Qualified Opinion’ section of our report, the aforesaid standalone financial 

statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in 
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the manner sa required and give a true and fair view In conformity with the Indian 

Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read wilh the 

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS" 

and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the stale of affairs of 

the Company as at 31st March, 2023, the loss, changes in equity and ils cash flows 

for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Qualified Opinion 

Chhapra-Hajipur Expressways Limited has been incorporated on 2nd day of June 

2010 as Special Purpose Vehicle for design, build, operate, Finance and Transfer of 

4 laning of Chhapra-Hajipur section of NH-19 from KM 143.200 fo Km 207.200 in 
the state of Bihar on annuity basis for a concession period of 15 years (2. 5years of 

construction period and 12.5 years of operating period). 

This contract was awarded by National Highway Authority of India (NHAL). The 

company shall hand over project to the NHAI on expiry of concession period. The 

Concession Agreement, on execution, will entitle the company to take a fixed sum 

of annuity every 6 months, in arrears, starting from the date of commencement of 

commercial operalions (COD) from NHAL However, the company has nol 

commenced the commercial operations till the date of balance sheet. 

In this scenario, the managament must recognise the amount receivable form NHAI 

at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income as per IND AS 

116 "Appendix C - Service Concession Arrangements” Para 25. 

As per Ind AS 108 interest must be calculated using the effective interest method 

which is to be recognised in profit or loss. 

With reference to notes to accounts stated in the financial statements ..........., and 

the above stated accounting measurement as per IND AS, we differ our opinion, as 

the company has nol complied with respective IND AS for arriving al the amount 

stated as "Project cost” in Non-current Assets amounting Rs.1,03,683.77 Lakhs for 

FY 2022-23 and Rs.97,314.15 Lakhs for FY 2021-22. 

We conducted our audit of the Financial Statements in accordance with the 

Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our 
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We 
are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the 
independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements 
under the provisions of the Acl and the Rules made thereunder, and we have 

fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and 
the ICAl's Code of Ethics. 

However, because of the matlers described in the above paragraphs, we were 

unable to obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an 
audit opinion on these Financial Statements. 
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Emphasis of Matter 

1. We draw attention to Note 36.12 to the Standalone financial statements, company 
has taken loans from banks, Those loans became NPAs. Hence, interest has not 
been recognized for lhe year on both long term and short term portions of loans 
except NHAI loan. The balances lying in the Bank current accounts are subject lo 
external confirmation. 

Qur apinion is not modified in respect of the above mentioned maliers. 

h) Ranchi Expressways Limited 

Qualified Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Standalone financial statements of M/s RANCHI 
EXPRESSWAYS LIMITED ("REL") which comprises the Balance Sheet as at 31st 
March, 2023, and the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Cash flows and 
the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial 
statements and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for 

Qualified Opinion section of our report, the aforesaid Standalone financial statements 
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted 

in India, on the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March 2023, and its Cash 
flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Qualified Opinion 

i. No Internal audit was conducted for the financial year as applicable under section 
138 of the Companies Act, 2013 and relevant rules made thereunder. 

ii. The Company has nol complied with the provisions of Indian Accounting Standard 
Ind AS 37 (Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets) Claims being 
Contingent assel in nature. This has resulted in over-staternent of Current Assets by 
Rs. 1,34,175.20 Lakhs and understatement of Cumulative loss by the same amount, 

iii. Note 14 lo the Financial Statements which describes the Outstanding balances of 
loans and interests thereon from Banks or financial institutions for which no 
Confirmations were received from banks, 

iv. The Company has defaulted on payment of Statutory Dues, which was due and 

pending for more than 5 Years. 

Emphasis of matters: 

We draw your atlention to the following matters in the Notes to the financial stalements: 

Ranchi Expressways Limited was incorporated under the Companies Act, 1856, on 25th 
Day of March 2011 as a Special Purpose Vehicle for Design, Build, Finance, Operate 
and Transfer (DBFOT) of Four Laning of Ranchi-Rargaon-Jamshedpur Section of NH- 
33 from Km. 114.000 to Km. 277.500 in the state of Jharkhand on DBFOT (Annuity) 
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basis for a concession period of 15 years. This contract was awarded by National 
Highway Authority of India. The Company shall hand over the Froject Highway to NHAI 

on expiry of the Concession Period. Note- 1(b) to the financial statements which 
describe the suspension of rights of concessionaire pursuant to Article 38 of the 
Concessionaire Agreement with NHAL 

The company has achieved physical progress of 50.24% and about 10% is in WIP and 
approached NHAI for Gna Time Fund Infusion (OTF) for completion of the remaining 
stretch, NHAI initially. sanctioned an amount of Rs.223 Crs as One Time Fund Infusion 
and subsequently NHAI has gone back by cancelling the already sanction OTFI| amount 
of Rs.223 Crs. Lenders and the company have preferred One Time Settlement (OTS) 
with NHAI for the works already completed. 

While negotiations are going on for OTS proposal, NHAI has terminated the Concession 
Agreement on 30/01/2019 without following the termination procedure laid down in the 

Concession Agreement and called for tenders from public to complete the balance work 
on EPC basis. Since the project gol terminated, Lenders are seeking for One Time 

Settlement. Company and Lenders agreed and requested the NHAI to refer the matter 
to Conciliation Committe of Independent Engineers. 

The NHAI had given its consent for referring the matter to CCIE vide its letter dated 18- 
04-2019, The company has submitted the claim to NHAl, The proceedings of CCIE 
commenced on 25-09-2019. CCIE vide their order dated 10-08-2020 informed that 
Both parties, despite their attempts at reaching an amicable settlement of their disputes 
through conciliation before this committee, have nol been successful. The committee 
hereby records the failure and closure of the conciliation proceedings on this matter, 
The company has inifiated arbitration clause the arbitration commitiee formed, and 

arbitration proceedings commenced. EPC contractor has made claims against the 
company. On receipt of arbitration award the company will negotiate with the EPC 
Contractor to settle the claims.  Nole - 5.2 lo the financial statements which describe 

the reconciliation of outstanding balances of loans including interest thereon between 
books and confirmations from banks or financial institutions, 

CBI has filed FIR against the Company, Promoters, Directors and Holding Companies 
on 12/03/2018 under Prevention of Corruption Act and Indian Penal Code. 
Subsequently, the Enforcement Direclorale has raided the premises of the Company an 

11-06-2021 and the ED is collecting information and investigation is under progress. 

Cost incurred on the project up to 31st March 2023 Rs.1,34,175.20 Lakhs instead of 
writing-off, has been accounted as Claims receivable under the head "Other Financial 
Assels” which is in contravention of the provisions of Indian Accounting Standards Ind 
AS 37 (Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets) Claims being 

Contingent asset in nature. This has resulted in over-statement of Current Assets by Rs. 
1,34,175.20 Lakhs and understatement of Cumulative loss by the same amount. 

In view of the above, the termination of the Concession Agreement indicates that 
existence of material uncertainty that casts significant doubt about the Company's ability 
ta continue as a Going Concern. 

Interest an Loans is not provided for during the year under Audit. 

We draw attention to Note 13 to the Financial Statements which indicated thal the 

Company has accumulated losses of Rs.20,946 Lakhs and its Net worth has been 
substantially eroded, 

Our Opinion is not modified in respect of these matters. 
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6. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we further report that: 

a)we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit; 

b) Except for the possible effects of the matter described in the basis for Qualified opinion,in 

our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Group so far 

as appears from our examination of those books; 

c) Except for the possible effects of the matter described in the basis for Qualified 

opinionthe Consolidated Balance Sheel, Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 

including Consolidated Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of Cash 

Flows and the Cansolidaled statement of changes in equity deall with by this Report are in 

agreement with the books of account; 

d)Except for the possible effects of the matter described in the basis for Qualified 

opinion, The aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the Indian 

Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules 

issued thers under. 

e)0n the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023, 

and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 

March 31, 2023, from being appointed as a director In terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of 

the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in 

‘Annexure A"; and 

g) With respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with 

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended, in our opinion and 

to the best of our information and according te the explanations given to us; 

1. The Group has disclosed the pending litigations which would impact its financial position in 

its notes to Consolidated Ind AS financial statements. 

il. The Group does nol have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which 

there were any material foreseeable losses. 

iii. The Holding Company' has not complied with the provisions of section 124(5) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 regarding the remittance of unpaid dividend of an amount 

aggregating to Rs. 4.46 Lakhs relating to Financial Years 2009-10 to 2010-11 from 
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unpaid dividend account to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) within the 

stipulated period. 

iv.{a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds 

{which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or 

invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of 

funds) by The company or “The Group™to or in any other person or entity, including foreign 

entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, 

that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or 

entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate 
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 

Beneficiaries; 

{b) The Managemen! has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds 

(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received 

bythecompany or"The Group” from any person or entity, including foreign entity ("Funding 

Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 

Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or enlities 

identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate 

Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 

Beneficiaries; 

{¢) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in 

the circumstances, nothing has come (0 our notice that has caused us to believe that the 

represertations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) 

above, contain any material misstatement. 

v. None of the companies In"The Group”has neither declared nor paid any dividend 

during the year. 

For P. Murali& Co, 
Chartered Accountants, 

FRN No: 0072573 

A Krishna Rao 

Partner 

M.No:020085 
UDIN:- 23020085DGQFGAS5559 

Place: Hyderabad 
Date:16-05-2023 
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under clause (i) 

of the Sub-section 3 of the Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('The Act’) 

In conjunction with our Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the 

company as of and for the year ended 31% March 2023, we have audited the Internal 
financial controls ever financial reporting of Madhucon Projects Limited (‘the Holding 

company') and its subsidiary companies which are incorporated in India, as of the date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The respectivecompany’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining 

internal financial controls: based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 

established by the company considering the essential components of internal control 

stated in the Guidance Nole on Audil of Internal Financial Cantrols over Financial 

Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl). These 

responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 

conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its 

assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness 

of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 

required under the Act. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company's internal financial controls over 

financial reporting based on our Audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 

Guidance note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 

"Guidance Note") and the standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 

143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an Audit of Internal Financial Controls, both 

applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and both issued by the ICAI. These 

standards and guidance note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan 

and performed the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 

financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such 

controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of 

the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating 

effectiveness. Our Audit of intemal financial controls over financial reporting included 

obtaining an underslanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing 

the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and 

operating effectiveness of intemal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures 

selected depend con the Auditor's Judgment, including the Assessment of the risk of 

malerial misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have oblained is sufficient and appropriate to 

provide a basis for our audit opinion and the company's internal financial control system 

aver financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A Company's intemal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to 

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 

preparation of Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial 

reporting includes these policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of 

records thal, in reasonable detalled, accuralely and fairly reflect the lransactions and 

dispositions of the assets of the company, (2) provide reasonable assurance thal 

transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Financial Statements in 

accordance with generally accepted principles, and that receipts and expenditures are 

being made only in accordance with authorization of management and directors of the 

Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection 

of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets thal could have a 

malerial effect on the Financial Statements. 

Inherent Limitation of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitation of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 

including the possibility of collusion er improper management override of controls, material 

misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, Projections of 

any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods 
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may 

become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance 

with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Qualified Opinion 

In our opinion, except possible effects of the matter described in the basis for qualified 

opinion to the consolidated Independent Auditor's Report, reasonable internal financial 

controls system over financial reporting but net adequate and such internal financial 

controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31%, 2023, based 

on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the company 

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Noie on 

Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAL 
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Other Matters 

Our report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness 

of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these 

Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements of ‘the Holding Company’, In so far as it relates 

to separate financial statements of one subsidiary, seven slep down subsidiaries, which 

are companies incorporated in India, is based on the respective reports of the auditors of 

such subsidiary and step down subsidiaries incorporated in India. 

For P. Murali& Co, 

Chartered Accountants, 
FRN No: 0072575 

A Krishna Rao 
Partner 

M.No:020085 
UDIN:- 23020085DGQFGAS5559 

Place: Hyderabad 
Date: 16-05-2023 
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Madhucon Projects Limited 
Cengolidated Cash Flow Statements for the year ended Muareh 37st, 2023 
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Madhucon Projects Limited 
Notes forming part of Consolidated Financial Statements 

Company Overview: 
Madhuecon Projects lmited (MPL) or “the Company” Is an integrated construction, 
Infrastructure development and management Company. The Corporate Office of the 
Company is located al 'Madhucon House’ Road No.36, Jubilee Hills, Hyderabad, India. 

Basis of preparation: 

A) Statement of compliance 
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance 
with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation 
requirements of Division Il of Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013. 

The consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company's 
Board of Directors on May 16, 2023. 

Details of theGroup's accounting policies are Included in Note 1. The accounting 
policies set out below have been applied consistently to the years presented in the 
consolidated financial statements. 

B) Basis of Measurement 
These consolidated financial statements are prepared under the historical cost 
convention on lhe accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are 
measured at fair value in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS). 
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in 
exchange for goods end services. 

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and OCI 
are prepared and presented in the format prescribed in the Schedule Ill to the 
Companies Acl, 2013 ("the Act"). The Consolidated statement of cash flows has been 
prepared and presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash 
flows". The disclosure requirements with respect to items in the Balance Sheet and 
Statement of Profit and Loss, as prescribed in the Schedule 1] to the Act, are presented 
by way of notes forming part of the financial statements along with the other notes 
required to be disclosed under the notified Accounting Standards and the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended, 

C) Functional and presentation currency 
Amounts in the financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees in lakhs rounded 
off to two decimal places as permitted by Schedule ll to the Companies Act, 2013. Per 
share dala are presented in Indian Rupees to two decimals places. 

1. Summary of significant accounting policies 

Basis of consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements of the group comprise the financial statements of 

the Madhucon Projects Limited ("Parent Company”) and its subsidiaries and associates 
("the group”) as at 31st March 2019. 
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Entity which is directly or indirectly controlled by Parent Company. is treated as 
subsidiary. Control exists when the Parent Company, directly or indirectly, has power 
over the investes, is exposed to variable returns from its invalvement with the investes 
and has the ability to use its power to affect its returns. 

The Parent Company starts consolidation of a subsidiary when it obtains control over 

the subsidiary (directly or indirectly) and ceases when it loses control (directly or 
indiractly) of the subsidiary. 

Consolidation procedure: 
The accounting policies of subsidiaries have been harmonised lo ensure lhe 
consistenoy with the policies adopted by the Parent Company. 

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consclidation aredrawn 
up to same reporting date as that of the parent company, i.e., year ended on 31st 

March. When the end of the reporting period of the parent is different from that of a 
subsidiary, the subsidiary prepares. for consolidation purposes, additional financial 
informalion as of the same date as the financial statements of the parent lo enable the 
parent fo consolidate the financial information of the subsidiary. 

The consolidated financial statements of the Group combines the financial statements 

of Parent Company and its subsidiaries on line by line basis by adding together the like 
items of assets, liabilities. equity, income and expenses. 

Unrealised profitsilosses on inka group transactions, Inlra group assets, liabilities, 
income and expenses are eliminated in consolidation. Parent's investment in each 
subsidiary and the Parent's portion of equity of each subsidiary are eliminated in 
consolidation. 

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the 
owners of lhe Parent Company and to the non controlling interests. Total 
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is atiribuled to the owners of the Parent 

Company and to the non controlling interests even if this results in the non controlling 
interests having a deficit balance: 

Non-controlling interest represents that part of the tolal comprehensive income and net 
assels of subsidiaries atiributable to interests which are not owned directly or indirectly 
by Parent Company. 

1.1 Current versus non-current classification 

The Group has identified twelve months as its operating cycle. The operating cycles is 

the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash 
and cash equivalents. 

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on currenl/ non 
current classification. 

An asset is treated as current when itis: 
* Expected to be realised or inlended to be sold or consumed in normal operaling cycle 

« Held primarily for the purpose of trading 
+ Expecled to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
+ Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a 

liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. 

113



1 
— 

MADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED = = - 
tribe LL pei] 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

All liability is current when: 
= It is held primarily for the purpose of trading 
« |Lis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 

» There is no unconditional right to defer the settiement of the liability for at least twelve 
months after the reporting period 

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 

1.2Foreign exchange translation and foreign currency transactions: 

The functional currency and presentation currency of the Group is Indian rupees. 

Foreign currency iransactions are accounted at the exchange rates prevailing on the 
date of transactions, Gains and losses resulting from settlement of such transactions 

are recognised in the Statemant of Profit and Loss, 

Monetary assels ‘and liabilities relaled to foreign currency transaclions remaining 
unsetlled at the end of the year are translated at year end rates. The difference in 
translation of monetary assets and liabilities and realised gains and losses on foreign 
exchange transactions are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

1.3 Fair value measurement 
Financial instruments are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument. Fair value is the price thal would be received 
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the 
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place 
either: 
- in the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
= in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or 
liability 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market 
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market 

participants acl in their economic best interest. 

A fair value measurement of a-non financial asset takes into account a market 
participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in ils highest and 
best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its 

highest and best use, 

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for 

which sufficlen| data is available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant 
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the 

consolidated financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, 
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described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement as a whole: 

Level 1- Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities 

Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest leve input that is significant to the 
fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable 

Level 3 - Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the 
fair value measurement is unobservable 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in theonsolidated financial statements, 
the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy 
by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowesl level input that is significant to the 
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. 

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of 
assels and liabilities which are required to be remeasured or-re assessed as per the 
Group's accounting policies. For this analysis, the Management verifies the major 
inputs applied in the |alest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation 

computation to contracts and other relevant documents. 

The managemen! also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability 
with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable. On an 
annual basis, the Managemen! presents lhe valuation results lo the Audit Commiitlee 
and the Group's independent auditors. This includes a detailed discussion of the major 
assumptions used in the valuations. 

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, theGroup has determined classes of assets 
and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the as set or liability 
and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. 

1.4 Use of Accounting Estimates & Assumptions: 
The preparation of the conselidated financial statements requires that the management 
lo make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of asseis and 

liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the date of financial statements 
and the results of operation during the reporied period. Although these estimates are 
based upon management's best knowledge of current events and aclions, actual 

results could differ from these estimates which are recognised in the peried in which 
they are determined. 

1.5Revenue recognition 
The Group has adopted Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, The 

Group has applied the following accounting policy fer revenue recognition: 

Revenue from contracts with customers: 
The Group recognises revenue from contracts with customers based on a five step 
model as set oul in Ind AS 118: 

Step 1. Identify the conlract(s) with a customer: A coniract is defined as an agreement 

between two or more parties that creates enforceable rights and obligations and sets 
out the criteria for every contract that must be mel. 
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Step 2. Identify the performance obligations in the contract: A performance obligation is 
a promise in a contract with a customer to transfer a good or service to the customer. 

Step 3. Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of 
consideration to which theGroup expects lo be entitled in exchange for transferring 

promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of 
third parties. 

Step 4. Allocate the transaction price fo the performance obligations in the contract: For 
a contract that has more than one performance obligation. the Group will allocate the: 

transaction price to each performance obligation in an amount that depicts the amount 
of consideration to which theGroup expects lo be entitled in exchange for satisfying 
each performance obligation. 

Step 5. Recognise revenue when {or as) the entily satisfies a performance obligation. 

The Group satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one 
of the following criteria is met: 

1. The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the 

Group's 
perforrnance as the Group performs; or 

2. The Group's performance creales or enhances an assel that the customer controls 
as the assel is created or enhanced; or 

3. The Group’ s performance does nol create an asset with an alternative use to the 
Group and 
the entity has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date. 

Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of 
transaction price (nel of variable consideration) allocated to thal performance 
obligation. The transaction price of goods sold and services rendered is net of variable 
consideration on account of various discounts and schemes offered by the Group as 
part of the contract. 

Contract revenue (construction contracts) 

Revenue from works contracts, where the outcome can be estimated reliably, is 
recognised under the percentage of completion method by reference lo the stage of 

completion of the contract activity. The stage of completion is measured by calculating 
the proportion that costs incurred to date bear to the estimated total costs of a contract. 
Determination of revenues under the percentage of completion method necessarily 
involves making estimates by the management, 

When the Group satisfies a performance obligation by dalivering the promised goods or 
services il creates a contract asset based on the amount of considerfion to be earned 
by the performance. Where the amount of consideration received from a customer 
exceeds the amount of revenue recognised this gives rise to a contract liability. 

Any variations In contract work, claims, and incentive paymenis are included in the 
transaction price if it is highly probable thal a significant reversal of revenue will not 
occur once associated uncertainties are resolved. 
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Consideration is adjusted for the time value of money if the period between the transfer 
of goods or services and the receipt of payment exceeds lwelve months and there is a 

significant financing benefit either to the customer or the Group. 

Revenue is recognised lo the extent thal it is probable that the sconomic benefits will 
flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the 
payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration 
received or receivable, taking info account contractually defined terms of payment and 
including taxes ar duties collected as principal contractor. 

Revenue samed in excess of billing has been reflected as unbilled revenue and billing 
in excess of revenue has been rellecled as unearned revenue. 

Operation and maintenance contracts 

Revenue from maintenance contracts are recognized over the period of the contract as 
and when services are rendered. 

Income from toll contracts 
Toll collections from the users of the infrastructure facility constructed by the Company 
under the Service Concession Arrangement is accounted for based on actual 
collection. Revenue from sale of smart cards Is accounted on cash basis, 

Other Income: 

Dividend Income: 
Dividend income from Investments Is recognised when the shareholder's right to 
receive payment has been established. 

Interest Income: 
Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the 
economic benefils will flow to the Group and the amount of income can be measured 

reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal 
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly 

discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset 
to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition. 

Contract balances 

Contract assets 

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services 
transferred to the customer. If the Group performs its obligations by transferring goods 

or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is 
due. a contract asssl is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional. Tha 

contract assets are transferred to receivables when the rightsbecome unconditional. 

Trade receivables 
A receivable represents the Group 's right te an amount of consideration that is 
unconditional (i.e.. only the passage of time is required before payment of the 
consideration is due). 
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Contract liabilities 
A contract liability Is the obligation to Iransfer goodsor services lo a customer for which 

the Group has received consideration (or an amount of consideration isdug) from the 
customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Group transfers goods or 
services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or 
the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue 
when the Group performs under the contract, 

1.6Taxes on Income 
Income tax expense represents sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax 

Current Tax 
Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year as 
determined in accordance with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the 
Income tax Act, 1961. 

Deferred tax 
Deferred lax is recognised on lemporary differences between the carrying amounts of 
assels and liabilities in the Group's financial stalements and the corresponding tax 
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except: 

» When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset 
or liability in a transaction thal is not a business combination and at the time of the 
fransaciion, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss. 

* In respect of taxable temporary differences associated ‘wilh Investments in 
subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be 

controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the 
foresaeable future. 

Deferred lax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to 
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those 
deductible lemporary differences can be ulilised. Such deferred tax assels and 

liabilities are not recognised if the temporary differences arise from the initial 
recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit 
nor the accounting profit. 

The carrying amount of deferred lax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and 
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be 
avallable to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised 
deferred tax assets are re assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the 
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax 
asset to be recovered, 

Deferred tax assels-and liabilities are measured at the tax rates thal are expected to 
apply in the period in which the liability is seffled or the assel realised, based on fax 
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the 
reporting period. 

Deferred tax assels and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right 
exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes 
relate lo the same laxable entity and the same taxation authority. 
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Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT): 
Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future 
economic benefits in the form of adjustment to future Income tax liability, Is considered 
as an asset if there is convincing evidence that the entity will pay normal income tax. 
Accordingly, MAT is recognised as an assel when it is highly probable that future 

economic benefit associated with it will flow to the entity. 

1.7 Borrowing costs 
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an 

asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended 

use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are 
expensed in the period in which they ocour. Borrowing costs consist of interest and 
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. 

1.8 Contingent Liabilities and Contingent assets 
A disclosure for Contingent liabilities is made in the notes on accounts when there is a 
possible obligation or present obligations that may, but probably will not, require an 

outflow of resources. A contingent liabilities arises whara there isa a liability that cannot 
be raconginsed because it cannot be measured reliably. 

A contingent assel is nol recognised unless it becomes virtually certain that an inflow of 
economic benefits will arise. When an inflow of economic benefits is probable, 
contingent assets are disclosed in the consolidated financial statements. 

Contingent llabllities and contingent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date. 

1.9 Provisions 
The Group recognises provisions when there is present obligation as a result of past 

event and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources and reliable estimate 
can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

1.10 Investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures 

The Group accounts for the investments in equity shares of subsidiaries and joint 
ventures at cost in accordance with Ind AS 27 Separate Financial Statements. The 
Group reviews its carrying value of investmenls carried at amortised cost annually, or 
more frequently when there is indication for impairment. If the recoverable amount is 
less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is accounted for. On disposal of 

investments in subsidiaries and joint venture, the difference between net disposal 
proceeds and the carrying amounts are recognised in the consolidated Statement of 
Profit and Loss. 

1.11 Employee Benefits: 
Provident fund is defined Contribution scheme and contributions are charged to profit 
and loss account of the year when the contributions to the respeclive funds are due. 
Other retirement benefits such as Graluity, leave encashment etc., are recognized on 

basis of the independent actuarial valuation, 

1.12Financial Instruments: 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a 
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial 
liabilities are Initially measured at transaction values and where such values are 
different from the fair value, al fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable 

to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial 

19



1 
— 

MADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED = 4 - 
tribe LL pei] 

assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or 
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, 
on Initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial 

assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised 
immediately in profit or loss. 

Financial Assets 
Financial assets are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instruments. Financial assets other than trade receivables are initially 
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assels not carried at fair 
value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss is 
initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. 

Subsequent Measurement 
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following 
calegories: 

Financial Assets al Amortised Cost 
A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost ff it is held within a 
business model whose objective is fo hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash 
flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to 
cash flows thal are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding. 

Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value 
A financial asset is subsequently measured al fair value through other comprehensive 
income if it is held within a business madel whose objective is achieved by both 
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms 
of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments 
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Further, In case where the 
group has made an imevocable selection based on its business model, for ifs 
investments which are classified as equity instruments, the subsequent changes in fair 
value are recognized in other comprehensive income. In any other case, financial asset 
is fair valued through profit and loss. 

Impairment of Financial Assets 
The Group recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for 
the financial assets which are not fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for 
trade receivables with ne significant financing component is measured at an amount 
equal to lifetime ECL. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are 
measured atan amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant 
increase in cradil risk from initial recognition in which case those ars measurad al 
lifetime ECL. The amount of expected credil losses (or reversal) that is required to 

adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be 
recognised is recognised as an impairment gain or loss in statement of profit or loss. 

De-recognition of Financial Assets 
The Group de-recognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash 
flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all risks 
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers 
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues lo control 
the transferred asset, theGroup recognizes its retained interest in the assels and an 
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. 
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If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred 
financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial assel and also 
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received. 

Equity Instruments and Financial Liabilities 
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified according 
to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a 

financial liability and an equity instrument. 

Equity Instruments 
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of 
the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments which are issued for 
cash are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Equity 
instruments which are issued for consideration other than cash are recorded al fair 
value of the equity instrument. 

Financial Liabilities 
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVPL, 
loans and borrowings and payables as appropriate. All financial liabilities are 
recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of leans and borrowings and payables, 

net of directly attributable transaction costs, 

Subsequent Measurement 
Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective 
interest method. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the 
balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate the fair value due to the short 
maturity of these instruments. 

De-recognition of Financial Liabilities 
Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation specified in the contract is 
discharged, cancelled or expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by 

another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an 
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated 
as de-recognition of lhe original liability and recognition of a new liability. The difference 
in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Offsetting Financial Instruments 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the 
Balance Sheet il there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised 

amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis to realise the assets and 
settle the liabilities simultaneously, 

1.13Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand 
and demand deposits with an original maturity of three months or less and highly liquid 
investments that are readily’ convertible into known amounts of cash and which are 
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value net of outstanding bank overdrafts as 
they are considered an integral part of the Group's cash management. 
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1.14 Lease 
The Group has no leases or any coniract conlaining lease and accordingly, no 
disclosure has been made on the same. 

1.15 Impairment of non-financial assets 

Mon-financial assets other than inventories, deferred tax assets and non current assets 

classified as held for sale are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date to determine 
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, or when 
annual impairment testingfor an asset isrequired, the Corporation estimates the asset's 
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's or Cash 
Generating Unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. 
Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not 
generale cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assels or groups 
of assets. 

When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the 
assel is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. 

1.16 Cash flow statement: 
Cash flow statement is prepared segregating the cash flows from operating, investing 
and 
financing aclivilies. Cash flow from operating activities is reported using indirect 

method. Under the indirect method, the net profit/(loss) is adjusted for the effects of: 

Changes during theyear in inventories and operating receivables and payables and 
transactions of a non-cash nature; 

Non-cash items such as depreciation, provisions, unrealised foreign currency gains and 
losses, and undistributed profits of associates; and 

All other items for which the cash effects are investing or financing cash flows. 

The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Group is 
segregated based on the available information. Cash and cash equivalents (including 
bank balances) are reflected as such in the: Cash Flow Statement. 

1.17Property, Plant and Equipment 
Froperty, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost of acquisition including any directly 
attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use, attributable 
interest and finance costs, if any, till the date of acquisition/ installation of the assets 
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Subsequent expenditure 
relating to Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalised only when it is probable that 
future aconomic benefits associated with the item will flow to theGroup and the cost of 
the item can be measured reliably. An item of property, plant and equipment is 

derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise 

from the continued use of the asset, 

On iransition lo Ind AS, the Group has opted to continue with the carrying values 

measured under the previous GAAP as at April 01, 2015 of its Property, Plant and 
Equipment and use the carrying value as deemed cost of the Property, Plant and 
Equipment on the dats of transition i.e April 01, 2015. 

122



1 
— 

MADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED = 4 - 
telah jess 

1.18Intangible Assets 

Identifiable intangible assels are recognised when the Group controls the asset, it is 
probable that future economic benefits altributed lo the asset will flow to theGroup and 
the cost of the asset can be reliably measured. Intangible assets are stated al cost, less 
accumulated amertisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The estimated 
useful life and amortization method reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with 
the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for an a prospective basis, 

Rights under Service Concession Arrangements 
Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that fulure economic benefits that 
are attributable to the assel will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the assel can be 

measured reliably. Intangible assets are stated at original cost net of tax/duty credits 
availed, if any, less accumulated amortisation and cumulative impairment, 

1.19Depreciation/ Amortisation 
Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for 
cost less its estimated residual value, Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment 
have been provided on Straight-Line method in accordance with the Schedule |i of the 
Companies Act, 2013, based on the useful life eslimated on the technical assessment 
as In force and proportionale depreciation are charged for additions/disposals during 
the year, In respect of additions / disposal to the fixed assets / leasehold improvements, 
depreciation is charged from the date the asset is ready to use / up to the date of 
disposal. The asset's useful lives are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end 
of each reporting period. 

1.20 Investment property 
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation 

(including property under construction for such purposes). Investment properties are 

measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, 
investment properties are measured in accordance with the Ind AS16's requirement for 
cost model. 
An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property 

is permanently withdrawn from use and no further economic benefits expected from 
disposal. 

Any gain or loss arising on de recognition of the property is included in profit or loss in 
the period in which the property Is derecognized. 

1.21Inventories: 
Raw Materials: 

Raw Malerials, construction materials and stores & spares are valued al lower of 
weighted average cost or nel realizable value Cost includes all charges in bringing the 
materials to the place of usage, excluding refundable duties and taxes. 

Work in Progress: 
Work-in-Progress Is valued at the contracled rates less profil margin / estimates. 

1.22Interest in Joint Operations 
A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the 
arrangement have rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relaling to the 
arrangement. Joint contral is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an 

arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require 
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control, 

123



1 
— 

MADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED = 4 - 
Iola Leis] 

When aGroup undertakes its activities under joint operatisn the Group as a joint 
operator recognises inrelation to its interest in a joint operation: 

1. its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly, 
2. ils liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred jointly, 
3 its revenue, including its share any revenue arising jointly. 
4. its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred jointly. 

The Group accounts for the assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses relating to its 
interest in a joint operation in accordance with the Ind AS applicable to the particular 

assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses, 

1.23Insurance claims 
Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted / expected to be 
admitted and lo the extent thal the amount recoverable can be measured reliably and it 
is reasonable to expect ultimate collection. 

1.24Claims 
Claims against theGroup net acknowledged as debits are disclosed under contingent 
liabilities. Claims made by the group are recognised as and when the same is approved 
by the respective authorities with whom the claim is lodged. 

1.25Commitments 
Commitments are future labilities for contractual expenditure. Commitments are 
classified and disclosed as follows: 

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capimdcount and not 
provided for 
Uncalled liability on shares and other investments partly paid 
Funding related commitment to subsidiary, associate and joint venture companies and 
Other non-cancellable commitments, if any, to the extent they are considered material 
and relevant in the opinion of management. 

Other commitments related to sales/procurements made in the normal course of 
business are not disclosed lo avoid excessive details. 

1.26Earnings per Share: 
Basic earnings per equity share are computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the 
year attributable to the Equity Shareholders by the weighted average number of equity 
shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share Is computed by dividing 
the net profit or loss for the year, adjusted for the effects of dilutive potential equity. 

shares, attributable to the Equity Shareholders by the weighted average number of the 
equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during the year except 
where the results are anti-dilutive. 

1.27S5egment Reporting: 
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting 
provided to the chief operating decision maker. Revenue and expenses directly 

attributable to segments are reported under each reportable segment. Expenses which 

are nol directly identifiable to each reporting segment are allocated on the basls of 
associated revenue of the segment and manpower efforts. All other expenses which 
are not attributable or allocable to segmerits are disclosed as un allocable expenses. 
Assels and liabilities thal are directly attributable or allocable lo segments are disclosed 
under each reportable segment and all other assets and liabilities are disclosed as un 
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allocable. Properly, plant and equipment that are used interchangeably among 
segments are not allocated to reportable segments. 

1.28 Toll Projects (Right to charge users); 

Toll collection rights obtained in consideration for rendering construction services, 
represent the right to collect toll revenue from the users of the public service 

(road) during the concession period in respect of- Build Operate-Transfer ("BOT") 
project undertaken by the Group. Toll collection rights are capitalized as intangible 
assets upon completion of the project at the cumulative construction costs plus the 

present value of obligation towards negative grants and additional concession fee 
payable to National Highways Authority of India ("NHAI"/State authorities, if any. Till 
the completion of the project, the same is recognised under intangible assets under 
development, 

The cost incurred for work beyond the original scope per Concession agreement 
(normally referred as "Change of Scope”) is capitalized ‘as intangible asset under 
development as and when Incurred. Reimbursement in respect of such amounts from 

NHAI/Stale authorities is reduced from the carrying amount intangible assets lo the 
extent of actual receipts. 

Extension of concession period by the authority in compensation of claims made are 
capitalised as part of Toll Collection Rights at the time of admission of the claim or 
when there is a contractual right to exiension at the estimated amount of claims 
admitted or computed based on average collections whichever is more evident, 

Any Viability Gap Funding (VGF) in the form of equity support in connection with project 
construction is accounted as a receivable and is adjusted to the extent of aclual 
receipts. 

Pre-operative expenses including administrative and other general overhead expenses 
that are directly attributable tothe development or acquisition of intangible assets are 
allocated and capitalized as part of cost of the intangible assets. 

Intangible assels that are nol ready for the intended use on the date of the Balance 

Sheet are disclosed as "Intangible assets under development”. 

1.29 Impairment of Assets: 
Al the end of each accounting year, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of 
Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment whether there Is any indication that 
those assels have suffered an impairment loss. 

Impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its 
recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is determined at the higher of the fair value 
less cosl to sell and the value in use in case of an individual asset and at higher of the 
cash generating unit's (CGU) net selling price and the value in Use. 

Impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss as 
impairment loss and the carrying amount of the asset or CGU is reduced to iis 

recoverable amount. 

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amouni of the asset 
CGU is Increased lo the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the 

increased carrying amauint does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been 
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determined had no impairment loss is recognised for the asset or CGU in prior years. A 
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss. 

1.30 Schedule lll amendment disclosures: 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") issued notification dated March 24, 2021 to 
amend Schedule lll of the Companies Act, 2013 to enhance the disclosures required to 
be made by the Group In its financial staternents. These amendments are applicable to 

the Group for the financial year staring April 1, 2021 and applied to the consolidated 
financial statements: 
* Certain additional disclosures in the stalemenl of changes in equity such as changes 
in equity share capital due to prior period errors and restated balances at the beginning 
af the current reporting period. 
* Additional disclosure for shareholding of promoters. 
+ Additional disclosure for ageing schedule of trade receivables, trade payables and 
capilal work-in-progress. 
+ Specific disclosure such as compliance with approved schemes of arrangements, 
compliance with number of layers of companies, tile deeds of immovable property not 

held in name of Group, loans and advances to promoters, directors, key managerial 
personnel (KMP) and related parties etc. 
» Additional disclosure for relating to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) and 
undisclosed income. 
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2.37 Subsidiaries companies considered in the financial statements are: 

[DELETE =) 

S.No. | Name of the Entity Country of Proportion of Ownership Interest 

Incorporation | Madhucon | Madhucon | Madhucon 
Projects Infra Tall 
Limited Limited Highways 

Limited 

1 Madhuecon Infra Limited India 94.89% - - 

2 Nama Hotels Private Limited [India 99.96% - 

3 Madhucon Mega Mall Private India L667 - 
’ Limited 

4 gen Heights Private Ihdia 66.67% . 

Limited 
5 Madhural Tuticorin [ndia 54.12% . 24.48% 

Expressways Limited 
i Madhucon Toll Highways Limited India 0.01% 99.98% - 

7d Ranchi Expressways Limited India 0.02% (3.02% 99.94%, 

H Barasat Krishnagar Lidia 0.03% 0.04% 98.88% 
Expressways Limited 

9 TN(DK) Expressways Limited India 0.13% 50.97% 48.86% 
10 Trichy-Thanjavur Expresswavs Lidl 0.15% 76.10% 23.70% 

Limited 
11 Chhapra- Hajipur Expressways [ndia 0.08% 27.80% 23.41% 

Limited ~ 

12 Vijayawada-Machilipatnam Inclize 1.78% 13:33% 80.44% 
= Expressways Limited 

13 Rajauli Bakhtiyarpur India 4.80% 4.00%, 83.20% 

Expressways Limited 

14 PT Madhucon Indonesia Indonesia 4.86% B5.00% 

2.38 (a) Contingent Liabilities not provided for: 

(* % in Lakhs) 

Particulars As at As at 
31.03.2023 31.03.2022 

Bank Guarantees” 24,105.61 19,926.38 

Corporate Guarantees issued by the Company on behalf of its - 8,526.29 

subsidiaries:and others 

Disputed Sales Tax (on appeal) 63742 687.42 
Entry Tax B85 B.B5 
Service Tax 1.655.735 1,655.50 

Provident Fund 1,083.64 - 

The Group is a party te legal suits on construction contract Amount not Amount not 

terms related disputes, pending before various courts in India | ascertainable ascertainable 
as well as arbitration proceedings. It is nol possible to make a 
fair assessment of the likely financial impact of these pending 
disputes / litigations until the cases are decided by the 
appropriate authorities 

*on behall of Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures 
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[DELETE =) 

2.39 The long term unquoted investments in equity shares of subsidiary companies as given 

hereunder and included in Schedule V are pledped with Banks and Financial Institutions which 

have extended loan Acilitates to the respective Investee companies, 

S.No | Name of the entity 

| Madurai Tuticorin Expressways Limited 
| Nama Hotels Private Limited 
| Madhuron Infra Limited 
| Madhucen Toll Highways. Limited 

| Madhucon Heiglats | Private Limited 
| TN (DE) Expressways Limited 
|? Trichy-Thanjavur Expressways Limited 

Chhapra-Hajipur Expressways Limited 

pr
eg

la
 i

e 
AE
 
A
l
N
 

AE
 
E
R
E
 

| Ranchi Expressways Limited 

2.40 Deferred Tax Asset | (Liabilities) (net) 

| Barasat-Krishnanagar Expressways Limited 

No of Shares 

pledged 

as at 

31 03. 2023 

13.98,20,500 
1,38:41,000 

al,74.77,705 

12, 00, 00, 000 

9,000 
6,04,87.600 

4,59,30,000 
4,74,96,637 

2.27,34,000 

7,52,08,000 

No of Shares 

pledged 

as at 

31.03.2022 

13,98,20,500 
1,38,41,000 

53,94,77,705 
12,00,00,000 

9,000 
6,04,87 600 

4,59,30,000 
4.74.96.637 
2,21,34.,000 

7.52,08,000 

Significant components of deferred tax Asset /[Liabilities) for the year ended March 31, 

2023: 

[® in Lakhs) 

As at As at 

March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022 

Deferred Tax Asset 

Opening Balanee 2,568.36 4,438.51 

During the Year 2,007.69 (1,870.14) 

Deferred Tax Asset / (Liability) (net) 4,576.05 2,568.37 

2.41 Disclosure in accordance with IND AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 

{2 in Lakhs) 

2022-23 2021-22 
Contract revenue recognized 

in progress 

Aggregate of contract costs incurred and recognised profits 

[less recognised losses) up to the reporting date for Contracts 

Amount of advances received [or contracts in progress 

Amount of retention money for contracts in progress 

Gross amount due from customers for contracts in progress | 

| 86,338.99 | 
561,627.75 | 3,63,034.86 

60,431.64 

| 2975.12 3,238.27 
54.2 

194-29 4,058.26 
414.15 1,667.75 
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tribe LL pei] 

2.42 Micro & Small Enterprises: The management has not identified the enterprises which 
have provided goods and services to the Group and which gualifv under the definition 

of Micro and Small Enterprises, as defined under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 

Development Act, 2006. Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable 

to such enterprises as on 31+ March, 2023 has not been made nm the financial 

statements: Further, in the view of the Management, the impact of interest, if any, that 

may be payable in accordance with {le provisions of the Act is not expected to be 

material. 

2.43 Earnings per Share: 

Year ended Year ended 

March 31, March 31, 
2023 2022 

Net Loss after tax available for equity shareholders 

("In Lakhs) 

Weighted Average number of equity shares for Basic EPS (Nos) 

Weighted Average number of equity shares for Basic EPS (Nos) 

Face Value per Share |) 

Basic and Diluted EPS * () 

(14,369.90) 

7.37.,94,940 

7.37,94,940 

1.00 

(19,47) 

(16,617.06) 

7.37.94,940 

7,37,94,940 

1.00 

(14.91) 

*The Company has no dilutive instruments. As such Diluted Earnings per share equals to 

Basic Earnmgs per share. 

2.44 Related Party Transactions: 

I. Following are the list of related parties and relationships 

S.Na., | Particulars 

A. | Enterprises where significant influence exists 

| Madhucon Estates Limited 

2 MBN Anchored Earth Limited 

B. | Joint Ventures 

i Madhueon Sino-Hydro JV 

4 Madhucon Shreehari Hule JV 

5 | MPL SCCPL SSBBC JV 

C. | Key Management Personnel 

x Sri K. Venkateswarlu - Director cum CFO 

EY Sri Md Shafi’ - Whole-time Director 

i) Sri D Mall Reddy - Company Secretary 
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II. Related party transactions during the year as follows 

tribe LL pei] 

111. Related Party balances outstanding at the end of the year as follows 

(" ® mn Lakhs) 

2022-23 2021-22 

Revenue from Contracts and Services 3301.91 | 8.2485] 

Remuneration 

Key Management Personnel 134.53 124.38 

Sitting Fee 1.75 1.30 
Loans /Advances Given 
Subsidiaries (6,740.22) 6014.28 

Step-down subsidiaries 657.69 | (983.97) 
Jointly Controlled /entities and ventures 2544.41 2,251.68 
Loans/{Advances Received 

Subsidiaries 330.97 = 
Btep-down subsidiaries 1476.78 | 2,373.37 

Associates - 2,809.84 

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by key management 

personnel or their relatives - 1,273.19 

Retention Money 

Associates 132.98 : 
Jointly Controlled/ entities and ventures 35.21 12.4] 

("= in Lakhs) 

2022-23 2021-22 

Trade Receivables 
Jointly Controlled / entities and ventures 3 

Outstanding Receivables 
Associates 473.65 

Jomtly Controlled entities and ventures - 12.41 

Key Management Personnel b4.78 49.33 
Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by key management -| 3.890.749 
personnel or their relatives 

Outstanding Payables 

Associates 4,814.39 

Jomntly Controlled /entities and ventures . y 

Key Management Personnel - 0.48 

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by key management = 153.02 
personnel or their relatives 
‘Bank Guarantees 

Jointly Controlled / entities and ventures 5822.85 5,822.85 
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i) Barasat — Krishnagar Expressways Limited 

A subsidiary company entered into an agreement with National Highway Authority of India for 

undertaking the work of Four Laning of Bamsar - Krishnagar Section of NH- 34 (km. 31.000 to km. 

115.000) on Design, Build, Finance, Operation & Maimenance und Transier (DBFOT-Annuity) basis, 

in the State of West Bengal: The construction work is delayed due to pending approvals and not 
handing over of Right of Way hy NHAL to concessionaire, Honee the Company has terminated the 

Contract on 31st December, 20135 as NHAT was not able to provide ROW. Both company and NHAI 

uppointed arbitrators and the arbitration proceedings are in progress with “Society for Affordable 

Redressal oF Disputes’ (SAROD), 

The borrowings from secured lenders have been declared as NPA by the lenders and no no mterest has 

been provided for on the borrowings from institutions, 

Cost incurred on the project upto 31-3-2023 at Rs.5.82.41,04.000/- instead of writing-off to profit & 

less hive been accounted as NHAT Claims receivable under the head "Other Current Financial Assets" 

which is In contravention of the provisions of Indian accounting standard Ind AS 37. This has resulted 

in over-statement of Current Assets and understatement of loss for the year accordingly and 

Cumulative loss to that extent. 

ii) Ranchi Expressways Limited, 

A subsidiary company entered into an agreement with National Highway Authority of India for 

undertaking the work of Four lamine of Ranchi<Rangoan-lamshedpur section of NH-33 from KM 

114.00 to Km 277.300 in the state of Jharkand on annuity basis. The company has achieved physical 

progress of 50.24% as certified by IE and unmeasured: progress of about 10% in respect of works in 

Progress, 

NHAI terminated the Concession Agreement on 30/01/2019 without following the termination 

procedure laid down in the Concession Agreoment, Since project gol termunated, the company has 

mtiated arbitrution clause and arbitration procedings commenced. The loans taken financial institutions 

became NPAs and interest on these loans have not been provided tor. 

CBI has filed FIR against the Company, Promoters and Directors on 12/03/2019. CBI 1s collecting 

information and investigation is going on. ED also mided on [1-06-2021 and the ED investication 1s 

£oing on, 

iii} Madurai — Tuticorin Expressways Limited 

During the year the NHAL has levied penalty amount of Rs.606.32 Crs for delay in wo carry out the 

operation and periodic maintenance obligations in the project strech. The company has commenced 

Periodic Maintenance works and its obligations however the NIHAL has terminated the project on 17- 

03-2023 through termination notice issued, 

The company has taken loans from different [nancial mstitutions: Now those loans became NPAs 

Interest on these loans have not been provided for. 
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iv) Trichy - Thanjavir Expressways Limited 

MHA has levied penalty of Rs.144.36 Crs for delay im ounderaking of Periodic mamtenance works. 

The company has communeed Periodic Maintenance works. However the NHAL hag terminated the 

project on 17-03-2023 through issie of termination notice, 

V) TN (DK) Expressways Limited 

During the vedar the MHAL has levied ponaley of Rs.260.01 Crs for delay in to cary oul the operation 

undertaking of Periodic maintenunce obligations in the project stretch, The compiny lus commenced 

Periodic Mamtenanee works and completed the major portion of the Periodic maintenance works and 

its obligations 04 per the notice piven. 

The company has taken loans from different Anancial instititions, Now (hose losns became NPAs, 

Interest om these loans huve not been provided hi. 

2.45 Segment Reporting 
The details of primary segment information for the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 
2022 are given below: 
The Group is currently focused on three business segments Construction, and Toll Colleetion 

i" % In Lakhs) 

As at 

March 31, 2023 
As at 

March 31, 2022 

Segment Revenue 
Construction 90,335.68 | 649,941.63 
Energy | 

Toll Highways 25,928.08 19,685.19 

Others 10,187.97 

Less: Inter Segment Revenue 132.30) 

Total 1,16,230.46 94,814.79 

Segment Results before Interest and Taxes 

Construction 11,886.92 (5.953.70) 

Energy . - 

Tol] Highways (26,889.01) (1,504,659) 

Others - (933.93) 

Total (15,002.09) (8,692.33) 

Less: Interest Expenses 4712.18 3,137.00 

Profit Before Tax (19,714.27) (10,847.04) 

Segment Assets” 

Construction TT.OHB.ET 4,79, 114.57 

Energy . - 

Tall Higliways 3,53,794.56 4,32,898.43 

E - w 
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Others 8,734.30 11,710.23 

Less © Inter Segment Elimination [33.575.44) (3, 74.361.46) 

4,06,342.29 5,49,361.77 

Segment Liabilities** 

Construction 246,345.78 5.158.989 52 

Energy = = 

Toll Highways 5.05,285.01 5,31.634.47 

Others 3,242.41 16,450.51 

Less @ Inter Segment Elimination (108,180.85) (3,74.361.46) 

6,46,692.35 6,92,713.04. 

* Segment Assets excludes current and nov-cutrrent investments, deferred tax assets 

= Segment Liabilities excludes deferred tax liabilities 

2.46 Some of the Bank Accounts in Holding Company at closed projects which are in dormant 
pnd have not been reconciled due to non-availability of statements 

2.47 Figures for the previous vear have been regrouped/re-classified to conform to the figures 

of the current year. 

In terms of our report attached 

For P.Murali & Co. For and on behalf of the Board 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN : 0072575 

A. Krishna Rao N. Seethaiah Mohammad Shafi 

Partner Managing Director Wholé-time Director 

Membership Number 020085 DIN-0078449] DIN-07 178265 
UFOIN : 230200850 GOQFGASSS9 

Place : Hyderabad K. Venkateswarlu D. Malla Reddy 
Date : May 16, 2023 Director cum CFO Company Secretary 

DIN-09713108 ACS: 9559 
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MADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED 

CIN: L74210TG1820PLC11114 
Reg off, Madhucon Complex, 1-7-70, Jublipura, Khammam - 507002 

Tel: 040-235589001, Fax: 040-23556005, Website: www.madhucon.com 

[fe heraby record mylour presence at the 337 annual genaral meeting of the company being hald on 20% September, 
2023 at 3:00 P.M, at 12 raglstersd office. 

Member Foli/DF 1D- Cltent 1D No Member /Proxy's name in Black Letters Sighature of Member Proxy 

Regd. Folio/ Client 10: 
“Applicable for members holding shite in Eléctronic Form 
Note to be signed and handed over at the enterence of the Meeling Venue 

MADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED 
CIN: LT4210TG1090PLC11114 

Reg offi Madhucon Gamplex, 1-7-70, Jubllputa, Khernmam - 507002 
Tel: 040-235589001, Fax: 040-23856005, Website: www. madhucan com 

FORM NO.MGT-11 

I i . PROXY FORM } ) 
Pumuan! to Seaton 1056{6) of the Companies Act 2013 arid rule 19(3) of thie Companies (Management and Administration) Rules 2014) 

Mame of the Membsr(a): | Folio Mosclient of; 

Registered Address: 

E-mall id: DF bed 

[fvie, being the MEmBar (8307 oceans shams of the above names Company hereby appoint: 

Ne MNEmes sn maann Em, E-mail wd: Lai 
ER ER yi mE EE EE EEE COE ONO 0-H signature 

EE  ——— Cr falling kim 
a MRE a BT BT pe i Sr YI 

aE EE signature 

ER Ee ER ed Or alilng him 

As mylour proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for mefus and on myfour behalf at the 337 Annual General Masting of the 

Company, be held on Friday, the 28" day of September, 2023 at 3:00 P.M. at Registered Office; Madhucon Complex, 1-7- 
70, Jublipura, Khammam — 507 002 and al any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolullans as are indicated below! 

Resolution Mo. Resolutions Vaoig™ 
Ordinary Business Fer | Against 

) i To receive, consider and adopt Annual Accounts FY andad 37s March, 
1. Ordinary Resolulion | 2024 

a) The Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company In 
ING AS format for the financial year ended 31" March, 2023 
together with the Reports of the Bosrd of Directors and Auditors’ 
tharaon, and 

bi The Audited Consolidated Financial Statemenis of tha Company in 
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a Lice 

D 

MADHUEON 

MADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED 
CIN: L74210TG1990PLC11114 

Reg off: Madhucon Complex, 1-7-70, Jublipura, Khammam - 507002 
Tel: D40-235569001, Fax: 040-23556005, Website. www.madhucon.com 

IND AS formal for the financial year anded 313 March, 2023 together 
with he rapart of the Auditors’ thereon 

2. Ordinary Resolulion | To appoint a director In place of Mi, Ssethalsh Nama (DIN: 00784491) whi 
retires by rotation snd Being sligibls offers Himsa! for reappointment. 

Special Business 

3.0rdinary Resolution Ratification of the appointment of Mr. EK. Venkateswariu (DIN 09713108) as 3 

“Director Cum CFO’ of the Company. 
4 Ordinary Resolution | Ratification of the appointment of Mr. Sambasiva Rao Jasty (DIN: 08526475) 

as a “Dlrettop-Finance & Acgounts’ of the Company. 
5 Special Resalulion Ralifigation of the appointment of Mrs. Geeta Baitula (DIN 10205129) a8 an 
I “Indepandant Director” of the Company. I 
6 Ordinary Resalution | To appoint and approve the remuneration of the Gest Auditor for lhe 

financial yaar anding on 31" Margh, 2024, 
7 Ordinary Resolution | Approval for Non-Provision of fhe Interest an Working Capital Loans & 

) Linsacured Loans of lhe Company. 

Signed... dayal oon 2023 Lo 
affix ohe 

Stgnaturn of tha-shareholdor(B). co.cc. rupea 
stamp 

Notes: 

1. The proxy duly compli=ied should be deposited al tha Registered. Office of the Company nol fess (hah 4a {forty 

eight) hours before the time fixed for holding the Meeting, 
2A proxy need nol be a member of {ha Company, 

3. A parson can acl as proxy on behalf of the members not exceeding 50 (Fly) and holding In the aggregate nol 

more than 10% {Ten percent) of tha total share capital of the Company camying voting rights. & member holding 
more than 10% (ten percent) of total share capital of the Company camying voting fghls may appoint a singles 

person as proxy and such person shall not act as a prody Tor any other person or shareholder. 

4. *"This is only optional. Piease put-an Xn the appropriats column against the resolutions Indicated In the Bow IT 

you leave the ‘For’ or ‘Against’ column blank against any or all the resolutions, your proxy will be-entitled 1o vote in 

the manner as hifshs thinks approprials 

5 Appointing a proxy does nol praven| a membar fom allending (he mealing in person If he so wishes. 

6. Inthe case of joinl holders, the Signalura al any one holder will be sufficient, bul names of all the joint holders 

shuld be-stated. 
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